I“V{] AAm

ann

WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
Monday, September 13, 2021 Board Meeting

1280 N. Congress Ave. Suite 215
West Palm Beach FL 33409

NOTE: Agenda Summary (Pages 3-8)
Staff Report (Pages 9-15)
. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
. AGENDA APPROVAL
1. Additions, Deletions, Substitutions to Agenda
2. Adoption of Agenda
. ADOPTION OF W/BH CRA MINUTES (Pages 16-20)
IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS
V. DISCLOSURES

V. CONSENT AGENDA

1. Loan Forgiveness from the Westgate CRA Covid-19 Small Business
Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program (Page 21-28)

VIl. REGULAR AGENDA

1. Approval of Bid Proposal for the Westgate Dog Park (Pages 29-70)

2. DRO Site Plan Approval for EZ Express Car Wash; 1098 N. Military
Trail (Pages 71-100)

3. Approval of the FY 2021-2022 CRA Budget (Pages 101-103)

4. Approval of Information Technology Policies and Procedures
(Pages 104-127)

5. Approval of Funding for Belvedere Heights Phase | Streetlights and
Sidewalks Construction (Page 128-134)

VIll. REPORTS

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 - Tel 561.640.8181 - WwWw, westgatecra.org



A. Staff Reports
Correspondence (Pages 135-187)

B. Attorney’s Report
C. Committee Reports and Board Comments

Administrative/Finance —

Capital Improvements — Chair, Mr. Daniels
Land Use —

Real Estate — Chair, Mr. Kirby

Marketing —

Community Affairs —

Special Events — Chair, Ms. Rufty
Correspondences

GNOGNAON=a

IX. ADJOURNMENT

ANY PERSON MAKING IMPERTINENT OR SLANDEROUS REMARKS OR WHO
BECOMES BOISTEROUS WHILE ADDRESSING THE BOARD WILL BE BARRED FROM
FURTHER AUDIENCE BEFORE THE BOARD BY THE PRESIDING OFFICER, UNLESS
PERMISSION TO CONTINUE OR AGAIN ADDRESS THE BOARD AS GRANTED BY A
MAJORITY VOTE OF THE BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT.

IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THIS BOARD WITH
RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING, HE WILL NEED A
RECORD OF THE PROCEEDING, AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE HE MAY NEED TO ENSURE
THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH RECORD
INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE
BASED.

ON JUNE 7, 1994, THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS APPROVED
RESOLUTION NO. 94-693, KNOWN AS THE CODE OF ETHICS. UNDER SECTION 11, IT
IS REQUIRED THAT PAID AND UNPAID LOBBYISTS REGISTER. PLEASE REFER TO
SECTONS 11.01 AND 11.02 IN THE CODE OF ETHICS FOR REGISTRATION SPECIFICS.
FOR YOUR USE, REGISTRATION FORMS ARE AVAILABLE FROM THE CRA'S
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT.

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = Tel 561.640.818} = WWW, Westgatecra.org



VESTGUEBENEDERERDIES

I IR R IR N

AGENDA ITEMS
Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Board Meeting
September 13, 2021

CONSENT AGENDA

1. Loan Forgiveness from the Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business Emergency
Relief Forgivable Loan Program

A. Background and Summary: On September 14, 2020, the Westgate CRA Board of
Commissioners approved a forgivable loan for Yingel Inc. D/B/A Mufflers Brakes and
More for $10,000 funding from the CRA’s COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief
Forgivable Loan Program. On August 23, 2021, the owner of the small business
submitted a request to the CRA for the forgiveness of the forgivable loan. The owner
met all the requirements for forgiveness. They have provided proof that the funds were
used for payroll expenses.

On September 14, 2020, the Westgate CRA Board of Commissioners approved a
forgivable loan for Shubway Group Inc. for $10,000 funding from the CRA’s COVID-19
Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program. August 20, 2021, the
owner of the Shubway Group Inc. submitted a request to the CRA for the forgiveness of
the forgivable loan. The owner met all the requirements for forgiveness. They have
provided proof that the funds were used for payroll expenses.

Staff recommends approval of loan forgiveness of $10,000 COVID-19 Small Business
Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program for both Yingel Inc. D/B/A Muiflers Brakes and
More, and for Shubway Group Inc. and approval of the release of the related promissory
notes.

REGULAR AGENDA

1. Approval of Bid Proposal for the Westgate Dog Park

Page | 1
WCRA Board Meeting
September 13, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 ¢  Waest Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax 561.640.8180



A. Background and Summary: On June 27, 2021, the CRA issued an invitation to Bid
(ITB) for the development of the Westgate Dog Park. The work entails the construction
of a dog park at the corner of Seminole Boulevard and Oswego Avenue. The
development will include the installation of berms, landscaping material, irrigation,
fencing, site furnishings, park equipment, signage and any site amenities consistent
with these types of improvements along with other works necessary to complete the
project as specified in the construction drawings. The construction will be funded by
CRA Tax Increment Financings (TIF) funds leveraged by a grant of $92,700 provided by
the Solid Waste Authority (SWA) on April 1%, 2018.

Staff hosted a non-required onsite pre-bid meeting on July 12 for prospective bidders.
Two contractors attended the pre-bid meeting. All bidders were required to visit the site.
During the bidding period, there were a lot of inquiries, at least eight contractors had
registered to pick up the bid package. Several others have seen and downloaded it
online,

On July 26, the bid submittal deadline date, the CRA received one proposal from Ali-
Site Construction, Inc. Staff has reviewed the proposal and found that all the required
documents were included in the submittal including site inspection form, bid bond, bid
proposal form, bidders license, bidders qualification form, liability insurance certificate,
construction schedule and complete sub-contractors list. All-Site has bid to complete the
project for $189,468.76 within four months with substantial completion to occur after 90
days. The price also includes a 15% contingency consideration. The company will be
completing most of the work (69%) and will sub out the landscaping and the fence
works. They plan to exceed Palm Beach County's Equal Business Opportunity
expectation since the company is a registered Small Minority Business Enterprise.

Staff is checking reference and discussing the cost of mobilization with the contractor.
The bid is somewhat higher than our designer's estimate; however, if a cost saving can
be achieved, the proposed construction cost will align with our consultant's estimate.
Thus, the staff recommendation to award the bid is contingent upon obtention of
positive feedbacks from the references and clarification of the mobilization cost.

The CRA has paid for the permit application through a Letter of Intent with the
contractor.

Page | 2
WCRA Board Meeting
September 13, 2021

1280 N, Congress Avenue, Suite 215 & Woest Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.818%1 e Fax 561.640.8180

4



B. Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Board approve All-Site's proposal and
execute the construction contract to hire them to develop the Westgate Dog Park. Staff
recommends also that the permit application fees paid by the CRA be deducted from
the Contract price.

2. DRO Site Plan Approval for EZ Express Car Wash; 1098 N. Military Trail

A. Background and Summary: The subject site is an outparcel at the Walmart Plaza,
located on the northeast corner of N. Military Trail and Belvedere Rd. The Walmart
Plaza is approximately 22.4 acres in total and consists of four buildings: the anchor
tenant, a Walmart Supercenter, a vacant restaurant, a Murphy Express gas station, and
a vacant Walgreen's pharmacy. The application requests the redevelopment of the
vacant restaurant parcel into an automatic car wash.

The overall site was originally zoned for multifamily and general commercial
development, but was rezoned to exclusively CG in 1993 via R-1993-0508. In 1997, the
site plan accompanying R-1993-0508 was amended to increase the site area to 25
acres, and added a Lowe's as a proposed use. R-2001-1667 rezoned the overall site
from CG to MUPD. The final resolution governing the overall site is R-2003-0940, which
amended the site plan to allow the existing Walmart Supercenter as the anchor
development, and reduced the size of the MUPD to 22.4 acres. The current total square
footage of the MUPD is 209,734 sf., and the total area of the outparcel affected by the
proposed redevelopment is 0.68 acres or 29,538 sf.

The entire site is within the UH (Urban Highway) Sub-area of the WCRAO, and is zoned
MUPD (Multiple Use Planned Development) with a Future Land Use designation (FLU)
of CH/8 (commercial high with an underlying residential land use of 8 du's/acre). The
site is in the URA (Urban Redevelopment Area), the U/S (Urban/Suburban) Tier, and in
the Westgate CCRT area. There are Vehicle Sales & Rental Uses to the north on
Military Trail (zoned CG/SE with a CH/8 FLU). To the west, across N. Military Trail is the
Town of Haverhill, to the south, across Belvedere Rd. is a KFC Restaurant (zoned
CC/SE with a CH FLU), and to the is vacant PBIA owned land zoned PO with a
Transit/Utilities (U/T) FLU.

Proposed Redevelopment — EZ Express Automatic Car Wash

Page | 3
WCRA Board Meeting
September 13, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 & West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax 561.640.8180

D



DD

The applicant proposes to redevelop the outparcel located to the north adjacent to the
existing Murphy Express Gas Station. The existing site is a vacant, abandoned 1,893 sf.
Type Il Restaurant. The project would demolish the existing restaurant structure,
reconfigure access and parking, to construct an automated EZ Express Car Wash
consisting of a 2,700 sf. wash tunnel, with 2 pay stations, and 16 self-service vacuum
stations.

All other areas within the MUPD are to be unaffected as a part of the application. ULDC
Art. 4 requires a Car Wash use in MUPDs to be approved by the DRO. MUPD zoning
standards allow for revisions to square footage for permitted or DRO approval uses
within a percentage range without requiring BCC approval for a Development Order
Amendment to the MUPD.

Summary of Petition
The application requests the following approvals:
1. Final DRO site plan approval for a 2,700 sf. Car Wash use within the Walmart
Plaza MUPD; and,
2. An increase of 166 net new trips per day and 14 pm peak hour trips to be
allocated from the WCRA Transportation Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA)
pool.

B. Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of applicant’s request for:
1. Final DRO site plan approval for a 2,700 sf. Car Wash use within

the Walmart Plaza MUPD; and,

2. An increase of 166 net new trips per day and 14 pm peak hour
trips to be allocated from the WCRA Transportation Concurrency
Exception Area (TCEA) pool.

3. Approval of the FY 2021-2022 CRA Budget

A. Background and Summary: This is the second and final reading of the Budget. The
CRA Budget includes three parts, the Redevelopment Trust Fund, the Capital
Improvement Project, and the Transportation Enhancement grants. The Redevelopment

Page | 4
WCRA Board Meeting
September 13,2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 e West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fex561.640.8180



VB EEE

Trust Fund presents in a line-by-line format all the items funded by the tax increment
revenues and rental income. The fotal amount projected for the Trust fund is
$5,028,100. This part details the administrative and the programmatic expenses. A new
program is being proposed to encourage public arts development throughout the CRA.
Also, a percentage increase is added in the Administration Expenses to provide for
potential cost of living and salary adjustment.

The preliminary tax roll value shows that the TIF might increase by 7.8% this year (an
increase of $212,691 to last year's TIF); The final tax is computed at the end of the
year. We won’t have a final number until March 2022,

The Capital Improvement Project portion provides funding from the trust fund and grants
to complete infrastructure improvement projects and acquire properties for
redevelopment. The grants received from CDBG and SWA are included in this portion
of the Budget. An amount is also included for the USDA grant. The Total amount
projected for Capital Improvement is $2,729,000.

The Transportation Enhancement part shows the grants received from the
Transportation Planning Agency and the Department of Transportation. These grants
are being managed by the Paim Beach County Engineering Department, but they were
awarded to the CRA through grant applications submitted by CRA Staff. These funding
is provided on a reimbursement basis. This information is being shared with the Board
to show the TPA grant activities and timeline. These funding are not administered by the
CRA.

B. Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of FY 2021 - 2022 CRA Budget
including a 3% cost of living adjustment for all staff and merit raises for three staff.

4. Approval of Information Technology Policies and Procedures

A. Background and Summary: As any other business, the CRA uses technology daily.
This Policy and Procedure recommendation is prepared to guide the Agency in
selection and use of Information Technology (IT). It provides guidelines the CRA will
use to administer these policies with the correct procedure to follow. Policies and
Procedures are required. Staff is trying to put this policy in place before the end of the
fiscal year. It covers the purchase of hardware and software that the Agency needs to

Page | 5
WCRA Board Meeting
September 13, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenueg, Suite 215 ¢ West Palm Beach, Florida 33402 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

1



G

operate. It also addresses policies regarding the use of software and computer
equipment. Policies regarding IT security, website, internet, emails and personal
mobile devises are included in this document. This policy also allows the CRA to
contract with |IT experts for services that the CRA may need.

B. Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the IT Policy and Procedure Manual.

5. Approval of Funding for Belvedere Heights Phase | Streetlights and Sidewalks
Construction

A. Background and Summary: The CRA has already approved an Inter Local Agreement
to pay up front for the construction of Belvedere Heights Phase | Streetlights and
Sidewalks construction. The Engineering Department is asking the Board of County
Commissioners to execute the construction contract. The construction cost is
estimated at $1,743,000. The CRA needs to provide the funds up front in order for the
BCC to execute the contract. The Department of Transportation will be reimbursing
$1,334,856 as the project is being constructed.

B. Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Board authorizes a pre-payment of
$1,743,000 to PBC Board of County Commissioners through the Engineering
Department for the construction of Belvedere Heights Phase |.

Page | 6
WCRA Board Meeting
September 13, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 o West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 e Ph561.640.8181 e Fax561.640.8180

3



Page | 1

WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES CRA BOARD MEETING
September 13, 2021

Staff Update on In-House Projects

FY21 TCRPC Brownfields Site Assessment Grant (SUBMITTED)

On August 25, 2021, CRA staff submitted an application for funding from the TCRPC (Treasure Coast
Regional Planning Council) Brownfields Program for a Phase | Environmental Assessment for the
Chickagmauga redevelopment site. Due to historic auto salvage and a dry cleaning use on
Okeechobee on the site now occupied by Cumberland Farms, there is a likelihood that the site has
some degree of contamination. The grant would fund a Phase | assessment, and a possible Phase I
assessment depending upon initial findings. Any remediation timelines and cost to be determined. State
funding is possible.

Background: The Chickagmauga site consists of 3 parcels, one containing an occupied single family
dwelling, purchased by the CRA in December 2019 for $550,000. The site is located directly south of
Spencer Square facing the Dennis Koehler Preserve to the south. The site is earmarked for the CRA
for mixed use or high density residential redevelopmeni. CRA staff anticipates issuing an RFP in FY22.

FY21 USDA Urban Agriculture Innovation & Production (UAIP) Grant (SUBMITTED)

On July 30", CRA staff in collaboration with DHED Special Projects staff, submitted an application for
$300,000 in funding from the USDA UAIP 2021 grant program for Implementation Projects. The grant
opportunity is a $4 million competitive nationwide offering, with a maximum of only $300,000 available
to individual awardees. If successful, the CRA would implement a 3-year initiative to expand production
and enhance community programs at the Westgate Community Farm. The scope of the project would
include the construction of a permanent greenmarket structure, a pavilion in the children’s garden, and
site improvements; the farm would be expanded to a satellite site on CRA owned properties along the
L2 canal on Oswego Ave.; and, programs would be developed that expand training and education for
Westgate residents that live with food insecurity. The CRA’s participation in this project would be
$378,802 over 3 years allocated for construction and personnel costs. The USDA will award grants in
September 2021.

CDBG Funding for Demolition of CRA-Properties (STARTED)

In April 2021 the Board approved a request to authorize PBC DHES to demolish 4 vacant homes on
CRA-owned properties on Cherokee and Westgate Avenues. The CRA purchased the properties in
2018 with the optic of holding the land for private redevelopment. The homes are severely dilapidated,
structurally unsafe, and have become a magnet for criminal activity, contributing to slum and blight in
the community, particularly on Westgate Avenue. Staff applied to a DHES program to access CDBG
funding for the demolition of the homes. The process is to be administered and managed by DHES staff
who will be responsible for procuring contractors, administering the mitigation of asbestos and lead
based paint, and ensuring that the demolition process follows all federal guidelines. The DHES
contractor will acquire all necessary permits and complete the work. The CRA will likely plant grass
following site clearance. The demolition is anticipated to cost $60-80,0000.

2021-01 ULDC Amendment Round (COMPLETED)

This round of ULDC amendments was initiated by the Zoning Division at the January 28" BCC
meeting. A draft of the amendment language was presented to the LDRAB on April 28th with a
unanimous recommendation and no changes requested by the LDRAB. The 1% reading of the
amendments is scheduled for July 22" with adoption by the BCC on August 26", 2021.

The CRA is seeking to make amendments to the WCRAOQ in the first round of 2021. The foliowing are



Page | 2

highlights: corrective and clarifying amendments to overlay language and tables generally; introducing
a new housing type called “South Westgate Estates Single Family Alternative” which allows smaller
single family homes, limited to 45% building coverage, to be constructed on 25’ wide lots; creating a 10’
minimum front and side street setback in the UH Sub-area; and, exempting all development in the
WCRADO to the provisions of Art. 3.D.1.E.2 which states that a structure must be set back one foot for
each foot of height over 35 - applying this provision conflicts with build to line and frontage
requirements.

Background: Amendments to the County’'s Unified Land Development Code (ULDC) occur twice
annually. The CRA regularly participates in this process to update areas of its WCRA Zoning Overlay fo
better achieve the goals and objectives of the agency and the amended Community Redevelopment
Plan, respond to industry and market trends, simplify processes, and correct technical and language
glitches.

2021 Comprehensive Plan Amendments {STARTED)

Update: The WCRA TCEA amendment was recommended for approval by the Planning Commission
on August 13, 2021. BCC adoption of the TCEA amendments to occur later this year. Amendments to
the FLUE are on hold.

The PBC Planning Division is moving forward to amendments to the WCRA TCEA program that would
remove all conditions of approval in this Comp. Plan amendment cycle. CRA staff would still be
required to submit annual reports on the status of built projects and remaining daily and pm peak trips,
until the pool is exhausted. Planning has determined that due to the legislative introduction of
proportionate share, there is no longer a cost benefit to continue TCEA incentive programs. All TCEA
pregrams Countywide are anticipated to sunset over time.

The Planning Division is initiating amendments to the WCRAO in the Future Land Use and
Transportation Elements of the Comp Plan. FLUE amendments will address an outdated policy
allowing a 20% commercial bonus increase without amendments to the FLUA, and TE amendments will
update policies related to WDRAO Density Bonus Program income categories following the adoption of
the 2020-02 amendments to the DBP in the ULDC. Amendments may also include updates to the
WCRAO narratives in both elements. Planning will take the lead in drafting amendment language.

COVID-19 Small Business Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program (ONGOING)

The Board approved the Program at their June meeting. The program is advertised on our website as
well as Facebock page. Staff completed a direct mail out promoting the availability of the program to
Westgate businesses at the end of August. Business types are screened by uses permitted in certain
WCRAO sub-areas. Interest in the program has been robust. Five (5) applications were approved by
the Board at their September 2020 meeting; four (4) more were approved by the Board at their Ociober
2020 meeting; 1 application was approved at the November 2020 meeting; and one application was
approved at the January 2021 meeting. The program budget spans two budget years: $50,000 was
allocated to FY 19/20 and $100,000 is allocated to FY 20/21. The program has budget capacity for four
more applications. Two businesses applied for and received loan forgiveness by the Board in February
2021.

Background: Small businesses have suffered financial loss and hardship due to the COVID-19 crisis.
Small businesses in the CRA district with less than 25 employees can apply for up to $10,000 in
financial assistance in the form of a forgivable loan for eligible expenses associated with rent, payroll
support, inventory purchases, utilities, expenses associated with technology upgrades to facilitate
remote working, and/or expenses asscciated with the reconfiguration of interior spaces to
accommeodate a 6’ physical separation. First come, first served basis. $150,000 from the CRA’'s FY

\O



Page | 3

19/20 and 20/21 budgets has been allocated to the program.

Public Assistance Grant (ONGOING)

FEMA has approved nearly $100,000 to pay for debris removal, and clean up detention ponds as a
result of Hurricane Irma. Staff is working with the Florida Department of Emergency Management to
implement this project.

Community Garden/Greenmarket (ONGOING)

Update: The Plat has been granted technical compliance. Foliowing the completion of corner clip
dedications, the project can move into the permitting phase. Electricity, an irrigation pump and an
irrigation system have been installed. Staff is working on developing a design and securing a contractor
for site improvements and installation of a pre-manufactured structure to act as a permanent
greenmarket.

Background: Staff engaged Schmidt-Nichols (SN) to prepare a site plan for the community garden and
the green market. The CRA initiated new regulations to allow green markets to operate as an
accessory to community gardens without having to buffer surrounding residential uses with an opaque
wall and 20 ft landscape buffer. The site plan includes an enclosed structure with a bathroom and a
walk-in cooler. The community garden/greenmarket received site plan approval in March 2018.

CRA staff proposed amendment language, adopted in the 2018-02 Round, to eliminate the community
garden use from landscaping requirements, and modified code language regarding hours of operation
and building size and placement for the accessory greenmarket use. Schmidt Nichols submitted an
administrative amendment (ZAR) to remove the landscape buffers and ROW utility easement. The ZAR
was approved in April 2019. The permits have been approved to operate the community garden, The
electrician and plumbing contractors are working with the utility companies. The CRA wili begin to work
with a contractor/architect to design the greenmarket structure and prepare plans to submit for building
permit. Platting is a condition of approval and is underway.

PBC Solid Waste Authority (SWA) Blighted & Distressed Properties Grants

FY 18/19 — Oswego Avenue Properties Clean-up - Westgate Dog Park (STARTED)

Update: To move the project forward and prevent further delay, CRA staff entered into an LOI (letter of
intent) with All-Site Construction on August 20, 2021that allows the contractor to submit for permit and
begin ordering materials and equipment that have a long lead time, ahead of Board approval of the
contract. The permit has been submitted and is under review: the CRA paid the permit fees directly.

CRA staff issued an ITB (Invitation to Bid) to construct the park on June 26", following Board approval
on June 14", Bids were due on July 26™. Despite interest from several contractors (there were 8 plan
holders at bid close), only one contracior, All-Site Construction, submitted a bid proposal for
consideration. CRA staff has reviewed the bid and is verifying references. The proposal amount is
$189,468 which is in excess, although not substantially, of the CRA’s original cost estimate for the
project, however, due fo current construction costs, the proposal is reasonable. Given the SWA grant
timeline, already extended, and the risk of no response should the bid be reissued, Staff is
recommending that the contractor be selected.

A revised cost estimate, generalized to reflect increases in construction and materials costs, prepared
by Schmidt Nichols projects the budget on the project to reach approximately $143,500 with
contingency. The SWA grant will fund $92,700 of the project with the CRA’s responsibility at $50,800.
Staff will review bid submittals 30 days after ITB issuance, and bring the tabulations to the Board for

\ A



Page | 4

final selection at their August meeting.

The CRA has paid a landscape contractor to remove invasive trees, vegetation and debris on the sites.
An additional time extension of the grant agreement has been provided by the SWA.

Staff worked with Schmidt Nichols on the dog park design. A site and landscape plan, along with cost
estimate have been provided. The CRA is also working with County Purchasing to see if the agency
can utilize the County’s annual contract “piggyback” policy. The remaining lots will be cleared, sodded,
and fence commensurate with the original scope.

Background: The CRA was awarded in the amount of $92,700 to clean-up, clear, sod and fence 6
vacant CRA-owned properties on Oswego Avenue east of Seminole Blvd. previously earmarked for the
L-2 Canal Expansion project. The CRA is proposing match funds in the amount of $34,460. An
Interlocal Agreement between the CRA & SWA was approved by the BCC in March 2018. The CRA
received a 50% disbursement of total funds in April 2018.

SWA has approved an extension to the grant timeline and a change of scope to develop a dog park on
three of the Oswego Avenue parcels targeted for the properties clean-up. The dog park will include
areas and equipment for small and large dogs, fencing, landscaping, and benches. By the fall of 2018,
the LWDD cleared a majority of the vegetation overgrowth along the L-2 canal leaving a window of
opportunity in the budget to create a simple dog park and still maintain the overall budgeted amount.

PBC Transportation Planning Agency (TPA) Transportation Alternatives (TAP) & Local
Initiatives (LI} Grants

FY20 Cherry Road Pedestrian & Safety Improvements (NEW)
Update: The Cherry Road project received approval for funding by the TPA Governing Board in July,
2020.

The CRA engaged consultants, WGI to refine the Cherry Rd. improvements project for TPA TAP grant
application submittal in the 2020 cycle. CRA Staff and WGI worked with Engineering on improving the
proposed typical sections. The project proposes reduced with travel lanes for traffic calming, new
sidewalks on the south side of Cherry Rd east and west of the bridge to the intersection of Country
Club Rd., a new 12’ shared multi-use path on the north side of the corridor, new crosswalks, pedestrian
scale lighting, and shade trees where allowed. The total project cost is $1.96 million. The grant
reimburses $1 million. The application was submitted to the TPA on February 28, 2020.

FY19 and Seminole Bivd. Complete Streets (FUNDED/ONGOING)
Update: PBC Engineering has requested administration and design fees to initiate the project.

The Transportation Planning Agency Governing Board approved funding for the Seminole Blvd project
at their July 18" meeting. The Seminole project was ranked #1. Staff and WGI presented the projects to
FDOT and BTPAC in early April; Seminole was ranked #1 and Cherry Rd was #4. The Board
recommended that the Seminole Blvd project should be prioritized since it ranked higher and is a larger
project.

Background: The Board approved a two-fold work assignment with WGI in November 2018 to prepare
a feasibility analysis to identify the best two projects to submit to the TPA for the 2019 Transportation
Alternatives Program (TAP) cycle. Based on findings presented by WGI, the Board selected the
following projects:

1. Seminole Blvd Complete Streets which expands existing sidewalks to 10-12 ft. multi-use paths on
each side of the roadway, adds high visibility crosswalks at each intersection, adds pedestrian scale
lighting, and shade trees. The project boundaries are from Okeechobee Bivd. to Oswego Ave. Total
construction cost is $1,622,979. The grant reimburses $1 million.

\2



Page | 5

TAP grant projects are designed and constructed within 3 years of prioritized funding. Design will begin
in 2020 with construction completion in 2022.

FY18 — Westgate Avenue Corridor Complete Streets (DESIGN 50% COMPLETE)

Update: Design is nearly completed. American Consulting Engineers, ACE), the design engineers have
finished phase 2 of the constructability plans. Due to the number of driveways and regulations for safe
sight lines, the CRA must now work with certain owners to get approval to close access from Westgate
where side and rear access is available in an effort to add more landscaping and on-street parking. The
project cost estimate is $4,752,321; $2,324,351 in participating costs funded by FDOT. The CRA is
responsible for PBC Engineering administrative, design and CEl costs.

Design is moving forward without a roundabout. CRA Staff met with County Roadway Production and
the project consulting engineers in February to discuss the design, scope and timeline of the project.
The CRA has been asked to provide input on lighting design and landscaping.

A County Selection Committee met in November 2019 and selected American Consulting Engineers of
Florida (ACE) to design the project. CRA staff was in attendance for the presentations and scoring. The
County Engineering Department had shortlisted three firms for the project, including CRA consultants
WGI, however, volume of previous work was an overriding factor in selection.

Backaround Information: Staff engaged WGI to coordinate the preparation of travel demand forecast
modelling to determine the impact of reducing Westgate Ave from 5 lanes to 3 lanes utilizing a road diet
approach. WGI facilitated communication with PBC TPA and Engineering to determine the best design
alternative, held a public input meeting, and drafted the final design for the project be used to obtain
funding. WGI met with the Engineering Department to present the lane elimination plan. County staff is
in support of the lane reduction from Wabasso to Congress, but they are not in support of the elevated
landscape median. An alternative design, which allows for 3 lanes (2 thru lanes and one center turn
lane), bike lanes, and floating landscape islands on both sides of the ROW alternating with on street
parking was presented to County Engineering for approval and support. With assistance from WGI, the
LI grant application was submitted on March 2, 2018. CRA staff is working with County Engineering
and Administration to design and administer all 3 of the TPA grant projects.

The TPA Governing Board voted to adopt the TPA List of Priority Projects for the LRTP FY 2020-2024
at their September 20, 2018 meeting. Projects that met TPA and FDOT eligibility requirements were
ranked by internal advisory boards, committees and TPA Staff to be forwarded the Governing Board.
The Westgate Avenue Complete Streets project was ranked #1 of 6 entries to receive Local [nitiatives
Program funding. This project has been moved up the timeline due fo the inability of other funded
projects to proceed. Design can start in July 2019 for FY 2019/20. Construction funding will be
approved after the design is completed.

FY18 — Phase |l Belvedere Heights Streetlights & Sidewalks (DESIGN STARTED)

Update: The BCC is considering an agenda item on June 16% for the design of this second phase. The
TPA Governing Board voted to adopt the TPA List of Priority Projects for the LRTP FY 2020-2024 at
their September 20, 2018 meeting. Projects that met TPA and FDOT eligibility requirements were
ranked by internal advisory boards, committees and TPA Staff to be forwarded the Governing Board.
Phase Il of the Belvedere Heights Streetlights and Sidewalks project was ranked #3 of 4. This project
has been moved up the timeline due to the inability of other funded projects to proceed. Design can
start in July 2019. Construction funding will be approved after the design is compieted. The CRA needs
to execute an MOU and provide upfront funding to the County for design.

Background Information: CRA staff prepared and submitted a Transportation Alternatives Program
(TAP) grant application for Phase Il — Wellington Road to Bridgeman Road, of the Belvedere Heights
Neighborhood for sidewalks and streetlights to PBC TPA in March 2018.

\D



Page | 6

FY17 — Phase | Belvedere Heights Streetlights & Sidewalks (DESIGN COMPLETE)

Update: The neighborhood has experienced chronic poor drainage and the water mains have reached
the end of their useable life and must be replaced. Mock Roos, the contractor for the
sidewalks/streetlights project requested that PBC Water Utilities do the water main work prior to the
installation of sidewalks and they have agreed; Mock Roos will also do this work. Engenuity Group has
been working on a drainage design for the area and a request has been made for Water Ultilities in
collaboration with Engineering fo do this work ahead of sidewalk installation as well. Water main
replacement will occur January thru March, 2021 with drainage in March thru July, 2021. Construction
on the sidewalks project is set to begin in August 2021.

Engineers are preparing the second part of the design. The Engineering Department has engaged
several consultants through a CRA/County MOU to implement the project. Design is almost completed.
The County is currently reaching out o the residents.

Background Information: An application was submitted to the TPA Transportation Alternatives Grant to
request almost $1 Million to install sidewalks and streetlights in Belvedere Heights in 2017. The funds
will not be available until 2019. The BCC approved Engineering Department sponsorship of the project
via resolution in May 2018.

CRA Strategic Plan (ONGOING)

CRA staff is continuing to work on a 5-year strategic plan that will implement the goals and objectives of
the amended Redevelopment Plan. A strategic plan will outline the specific tasks, timeline and budget
required for redevelopment activities over the next 5 years. It can also serve as a platform for the CRA
to refine its vision and mission statement in a way that is current with its shifting priorities. Staff has
received some initial input from Board members. Work on the Strategic Plan is ongoing.

Streetlights for Belvedere Homes (ONGOING)

The Engineering Department is partnering with Office and Community Revitalization to install streetlight
in Belvedere Homes. An initial meeting has been held. Citizens are currently gathering signatures and
easement authorization from residents and property owners.

\4



Proposed Private Redevelopment Projects

Page |7

Below is list of private development projects in the Westgate CRA that are in the entitlements or the

permitting process:

Projects Address Status
Carwash 1098 N. Military Tralil = Demolish vacant restaurant, site plan
(Walmart MUPD) abandonment of restaurant use & DRO
approval for a 2,600 sf automated
carwash
Cherry Road Plaza MUPD Cherry Rd = ABN, DOA, Variances, DRO approval for

a 161,000 sf (phased) self-service storage
facility

Broward Motorsports

2300 Okeechobee Blvd

DOA to address phased plan, additional
square footage for storage & retail, access

Murphy Express Gas
Station/C-store

1010 Military Trail (Walmart
MUPD)

In Zoning

Demolish vacant Walgreens & relocate
and expand existing Murphy Express and
add c-store

Palm Key Apartments

Cherokee Ave

In Zoning
7 townhome-style multifamily units on .46
ac — utilizing CRA density bonus units

1713 Quail (former Opportunity
Inc.)

1713 Quail Drive

Repurposing existing building for new
medical office use
Rezoning to CG, multiple variances

Museo Vault self-service
storage (now Uovo Art)

4200 Westgate Ave

In Zoning
proposing a 4-story, 50,000 sf fine art and
antigue storage facility

Autumn Ridge LITC mixed use

Congress Ave

In Zoning

106 units by Landmark Construction, 90%
of units at or below 60% of AMI - 77 DBP
units, TCEA and rezoning from RM to CG

Soapy Shark Car Wash
(formerly KFC/Jack's)

2200 Okeechobee Blvd.

Permitted
DRO Approval & 6 variances required

Duplex development

1115 Osceola

Utilizing 1 WCRA density bonus unit, non-
conforming lot

Small Home project

2611 Saranac

Construction on first 7 units has begun in
early 2021

1-acre site newly subdivided into 14 25 ft.
lots for small homes

Congress Avenue -
Greene Apartmenis

1600 N. Congress Ave

Permitted

198 units (138 density bonus units from
WCRA pool; 55 income restricted)
SFWMD permit received at end of July
utilizing available acre feet from the
Preserve

MacDonald Industrial/McArthur
Dairy

N. Florida Mango

On hold
Type 2 waiver for extended hours of
operation. BCC approved January.

Mi Pais Express (Fernandez)
Mixed Use -

2633 Westgate Ave

Construction complete

Dos Hermanos Mixed Use

Westgate & Seminole Blvd

Administratively withdrawn
Rezoning & variances approved. DRO site

plan approval. New architect

\D



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
1280 N. CONGRESS AVE., SUITE 215, WEST PALM BEACH, FL. 33409

MINUTES OF THE MONTHLY MEETING
July 12, 2021

CALL TO ORDER (IN PERSON MEETING BROADCASTED ON ZOOM PLATFORM)

Ms. Rufty, the Madam Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:15p.m. The roll was called
by Ms. Pennell ang Mr. Michel.

Present:

Absent:

Staff Present:

Absent:

Others Present:

Joanne Rufty
Ruth Haggerty
Joseph Kirby
Ralph Lewis

Ronald L Daniels
Enol Gilles
Yeraldi Benitez

Elizée Michel, Executive Director
Denise Pennell, Senior Planner

Carmen Geraine, Bookkeeper

Thomas J. Baird, Esq., General Counsel

Mai Bui, Administrative Assistant
Dorritt Miller, Assistant County Administrator, Deputy George

Gomez, Deputy Adam Robinson, Keith Jackson, PE, Engenuity
Group, CRA Engineer (All Virtually Via Zoom)

AGENDA APPROVAL

1. Additions, Deletions, Substitutions to Agenda

- No Deletions, Substitutions to Agenda

2. Adoption of Agenda

- It was moved by Mr. Kirby and seconded by Ms. Haggerty to adopt the Agenda
as amended. Motion carried (4-0)

ADOPTION OF W/BH CRA MINUTES

- It was moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Mr. Kirby to adopt the minutes
of the June 14, 2021 meeting. Motion carried (4-0)

Wo



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
July 12, 2021
Page 2

IV. PUBLIC COMMENT

- Due to technical difficulty, PBSO Deputy Robinson and Deputy Gomez could
not give a brief report to the Board about police activities in the Westgate CRA
area for the previous month.

V. DISCLOSURES

-  No disclosures

Vi.  CONSENT AGENDA

- Approval of Site Development Assistance Program Grant for Elite Capital
& Development for Seven Single Family Homes on Osceola Drive and
Saginaw Avenue.,

- Approval of Loan Forgiveness of COVID-19 Small Business Emergency
Relief Forgivable Loan Program for Anita’s Mexican Grill

it was moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Mr. Kirby to approve
consent agendas. The motion passed unanimously (4-0)

VIl. REGULAR AGENDA

1. Authorization to Submit Grant Application and Approval of Technical Assistance
Funds for USDA Grants

Mr. Michel presented that the CRA is partnering with the Department of Housing and
Economic Development (DHED) to submit an application to solicit funding from the United
States Department of Agriculture (USDA) through the Office of Urban Agriculture and
Innovative Production {OUAIP) to enhance and expand the Community Garden and Green
Market program. The purpose of the grant is to assist eligible entities with projects that
support the development of urban agriculture and innovative production by providing
funding to promote and encourage urban, indoor, and other emerging agricuitural practices
fo improve access to local food in a target area.

The CRA is eligible to submit a request as a unit of local government and would qualify to
receive up to $300,000 out of the $4,000,000 available for the nationwide competition. If
the application is approved, the CRA will use the funds to leverage Tax Increment
Financing Funds to build a greenmarket structure, develop satellite sites and additional
community garden and greenmarket programs.

We believe that the partnership with the County will make the application more
competitive. After the grants is received, DHES staff will also be a partner in the
implementation of the grant.

\7l



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
July 12, 2021
Page 3

The funding may be spread over a period of three years. Staff is seeking Board approval
to set aside funding equivalent o a maximum of 15% of the grant award to cover
administrative costs for the Department of Housing and Community Department for their
participation in the implementation of the grant.

The 15% will not be included in the grant budget as applicants get more points if they spent
more money on innovative programs instead of administrative acitivities. The Admin funds
will come from the CRA TIF budget and can also be spread over three years.

Staff recommends that the Board authorize the grant application and approve admin
technical assistance funds for DHED.

It was moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Mr. Kirby to authorize the grant
application and approve admin technical assistance funds for DHED. The motion
passed unanimously (4-0}

2. Draft Budget for FY 2021-2022

Mr. Michel presented the first reading of the Budget. The CRA Budget includes three
parts, the Redevelopment Trust Fund, the Capital Improvement Project, and the
Transportation Enhancement grants. The Redevelopment Trust Fund presents in a line-
by-line format all the items funded by the tax increment revenues and rental income. The
total amount projected for the Trust fund is $5,028,100. This part details the
administrative and the programmatic expenses. A new program is being proposed to
encourage public arts development throughout the CRA. The preliminary tax roil value
shows that the TIF might increase by 7.8% this year (an increase of $212,691 to last
year's TIF); The final tax is computed at the end of the year. We won't have a final
number until March 2022.

The Capital Improvement Project portion provides funding from the trust fund and grants
to complete infrastructure improvement projects and acquire properties for
redevelopment. The grants received from CDBG and SWA are included in this portion of
the Budget. An amount is also included for the USDA grant. The Total amount projected
for Capital Improvement is $2,729,000.

The Transportation Enhancement part shows the grants received from the
Transportation Planning Agency and the Department of Transportation. These grants are
being managed by the Palm Beach County Engineering Department, but they were
awarded to the CRA through grant applications submitted by CRA Staff. These funding is
provided on a reimbursement basis. This information is being shared with the Board to
show the TPA grant activities and timeline. These funding are not administered by the
CRA.

\'D



Westgate/Belvedere Homes CRA Minutes of the Monthly Meeting
Juiy 12, 2021
Page 4

VIIL.

IX.

This is the first reading of the budget. Staff is only seeking input. A final budget will be
presented at next month meeting. It will include considerations and input from the July
meeting.

Approval Funding for Construction and Engineering and Inspection (CEl) for
Belvedere Phase Il

Mr. Michel introduced the item. The CRA is working with Palm Beach County
Engineering to install streetlights and sidewalks in Belvedere Heights with a grant from
the Florida Department of Transportation. The construction project is scheduled to start
early next year. When the project starts, the County will hire consultants for construction
engineering and inspection (CEIl). This cost is estimated at $275,000. The County is
requesting a prepayment for that amount to avoid delaying the project.

Staff recommends that the Board authorizes staff to prepay the County $275,000 for CEl
for Belvedere Heights Phase 1.

It was moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Mr. Kirby to authorize staff to
prepay the County $275,000 for CEl. The motion passed unanimously (4-0)

STAFF REPORTS
In response to Ms. Haggerty's inquiry about page 106 and 107 of the Board packet

referring to the neighborhood letter and map, Mr. Michel clarifies that the County's Water
Utility Department is informing the residents of Belvedere Homes that they are designing
a watermain replacement project for the area located south of Cherry Road and West of
Clubhouse Dr. The pipes in that area are at the end of their useful life. WUD is working
with Keshavarz and Associates to complete the design. Construction of the project is
planned to start in the fall of 2022.

The Belvedere Heights drainage and watermain replacement is progressing on
schedule. It is planned to be completed at the end of August.

AJOURNMENT

It was moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Mr. Kirby to adjourn the meeting.
The meeting adjourned at 5:50p.m.

J

'—'Q Administrative Assistant, Westgate CRA
\ Mai Bui

\Q



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
1280 N. CONGRESS AVE., SUITE 215, WEST PALM BEACH, FL.. 33409
MINUTES OF THE MONTHLY MEETING

August 09, 2021

L CALL TO ORDER (IN PERSON MEETING BROADCASTED ON ZOOM PLATFORM)

Mr. Daniels, the Board Chair, called the meeting o order at 5:40p.m. The roll was called

by Ms. Bui.
Present: Ronald Daniels
Ruth Haggerty
Ralph Lewis
Absent: Joanne Rufty
Joseph Kirby
Enol Gilles
Yeraldi Benitez
Staff Present: Elizée Michel, Executive Director

Denise Pennell, Senior Planner

Carmen Geraine, Bookkeeper

Mai Bui, Administrative Assistant
Thomas J. Baird, Esq., General Counsel

Others Present:  Dorritt Miller, Assistant County Administrator, Deputy George
Gomez, Deputy Adam Robinson, Keith Jackson, PE, Engenuity
Group, CRA Engineer (All Virtually Via Zoom)
IX. AJOURNMENT

It Was moved by Ms. Haggerty and seconded by Mr. Lewis to adjourn the meeting
due to no qUXI:lm. The meeting adjourned at 5:42p.m.

@ Administrative Assistant, Westgate CRA
j =~ \Mai BJi




YINGEL INC. D/B/A MUFFLERS BRAKES AND MORE
2536 OKEECHOBEE BLVD.
WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33409
561-684-0543, 561-684-6585 (FAX)

To Whom It May Concern,

This letter is to request forgiveness for the Westgate CRA COVID-19 Small Business
Emergency Relief Forgivable Loan Program loan we obtained from you (approved on
9/14/2020) in the amount of $10,000.00 as we have submitted supporting
documents to show that the money was used for payroll expenses. The supporting
documents were transmitted to Ms. Denise Pennell via email attachment on
8/20/2021.

Thank You For Your Kind Attention,

SO e

Shel Shanak {Co-Director Yingel Inc d/b/a Mufflers, Brakes and More)



o 941 for 2020: Employer's QUARTERLY Federal Tax Return

950

117

(Rev. January 2020) Department of the Treasury — Internal Revenue Service OMB Mo, 1545-0029
Employer identification number (EIN) 6 5 - 0 3 9 3 8 1 4

Name (not your frade name) [YINGEL INC.

Trade name (fany) [MUFFLERS BRAKES AND MORE

Address (2536 OKEECHOBEE BLVD.
Number Street Suite or room number
WEST PALM BEACH FL 33409
City State ZIP code
Foreign eountry name Forelgn province/county Forelgn postal code

Report for this Quarter of 2020 JI¥
{Check one.}

|:] 1: January, February, March
I:] 2: April, May, June
]:] 3: July, August, September

4: October, November, December

Go to www.irs.gov/Form941 for
instructions and the latest information.

Read the separate instructions before you complete Form 941, Type or print within the boxes.
Answer these questions for this quarter,

1

Ha
5h
be

5d

5e

of

10

11

12

13

14

15

AT L L P

Number of employees who received wages, tips, or other compensation for the pay period

including: Mar. 12 (Quarter 1}, June 12 {Quarter 2), Sept. 12 (Quarter 3), or Dec. 12 (Quarter4) 1 | 3 |

Wages, tips, and other compensation 2 | 18,000 « 00|

Federal income tax withheld from wages, tips, and other compensation 3 | 1131 OOI

If no wages, tips, and other compensation are subject to social security or Medicare tax |:| Check and go to line 6.
Column 1 Column 2

Taxable social security wages . . | 18,000 « OOl x 0.124 = | 2,232 u OOI

Taxable social securitytips . . . I . ! %0124 = | " |

Taxable Medicare wages & tips. . | 18,000 « 00| % 0.029 = | 522w 00|

Taxable wages & tips subject to

Additional Medicare Tax withholding = | x 0.009 = | L |

Add Column 2 from lines 5a, 5b, 5¢, and 5d Se| 2,574 o 00|

Section 3121(q) Notice and Demand—Tax due on unreported tips (ses instructions) 5f | " |

Total taxes hefore adjustments, Add lines 3, 5e,and5f , . . . 6 | 3,885 00|

Current quarter’s adjustment for fractions of cents . 7 | " |

Current quarter’s adjustment for sick pay 8 l u |

Current quarter’s adjustmenits for tips and group-term life Insurance . . . . . . 9 | " |

Total taxes after adjustments. Combine lines 6 through 9 10| 3,885 00|

Qualified small business payroll tax credit for increasing research activities. Attach Form 8974 11 | a J

Total taxes after adjusttnents and credits. Subtract line 11 from line 10 . 12' 3,885 4 00[

Total deposits for this quarter, including overpayment applied from a prior quarter and

overpayments applied from Form 941-X, 841-X (PR}, 844-X, or 944-X (SP) filed in the current quarter 13 | 3,885 « 00[

Balance due. If line 12 is more than line 13, enter the difference and see instructions 14| 0a 00!

Overpayment, If ling 13 Is more than line 12, enter the difference | . Check one: |:| Apply 1o next return. D Send a refund.

P You MUST complete hoth pages of Form 941 and SIGN it.

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the back of the Payment Voucher.

Cat. No. 170012

Form 941 (Rev, 1-2020)

22



950217

Name (not your frade name)

YINGEL INC.

Employer identification number (EIN)

65-0893814

Tell us about your deposit schedule and tax liability for this quarter.

If you are unsure about whether you are a monthly schedule depositor or a semiweekly schedule depositor, see section 11

of Pub. 15.

16 Check one: D Line 12 on this return is less than $2,500 or line 12 on the return for the prior quarter was less than 32,500, and you didn’t
incur a $100,000 next-day deposit obligation during the current quarter. If line 12 for the prior quarter was less than $2,500 but
line 92 on this return is $100,000 or more, you must provide a record of your federal tax liability. If you are a monthly schedule
depositor, complete the deposit schedule below; if you are 2 semiweekly schedule depositor, attach Schedule B (Form 941), Go to

Past 3.

You were a monthly schedule depositor for the entire quarter. Enter your tax liability for sach month and total

liability for the guarter, then go to Part 3.

Tax liability: Month 1 I 1,295, 00|
Month2 | 1,205, 00|
Month3 | 1,295. 00|

Total liability for quarter | 3,885 00| Total must equal line 12.

D You were a semiweekly schedule depositor for any part of this quarter. Complete Schedule B (Form 941),
Report of Tax Liability for Semiweekly Schedule Depositors, and attach it to Form 841.

Tell us about your business. If a question does NOT apply to your business, leave it blank,

17 If your business has closed or you stopped paying wages ., D Check here, and

enter the final date you paid wages /

18 If you are a seasonal employer and you don’t have to file a return for every quarter of the year L—_J Check here.

May we speak with your third-party designee?

Do you want to allow an employee, a paid tax preparer, or another person to discuss this return with the [RS? See the instructions
for details.

D Yes. Designee’s name and phone number | | |

Select a 5-digit Personal Identification Number (PIN} to use when talking to the IRS, D D D |:| I:I

[ZI No.

Sign here. You MUST complete both pages of Form 941 and SIGN it.

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowiedge
and belief, it is true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than taxpayer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Print your | AK |
Sign your name here |[SHELDON SHAN
name here Print your
ttlohere  |CO-DIRECTOR |
Date |/ / Bestdaytime phone|  561-793-4849 |
Paid Preparer Use Only Check if you are self-employed . . . |
Preparer's name r l PTIN | I
Preparer's signature | | Date | / / |
Firm's name (or yours ]
if self-employed) | | EIN |
Address | | Phone [ l
City | State I:I ZIP code | l
Page 2 Form 941 (Rev. 1-2020)

25



IR AT AR
August, 20 2021
Re: Loan Forgiveness

| SHUBWAY EROUR ING.

S SHNIVITUPARYATRAILY
WESTRRACVIIBEACHHAERSIZ09

WESTGATE CRA, PALM BEACH COUNTY
1280 N CONGRESS AVE., SUITE 215
WEST PALM BEACH, FL 33409

]
Dear Westgate CRA,

Please Iet this letter serve as a request for forgiveness for the loan
in the amount of $10,000.00 that was granted to us in 09/2020. I do
not only want to ask for forgiveness but, I would also like to thank
you very much for the funds that helped us get thru the difficult
times we all to had to endure.

I have previously provided via email on 08/17/2021 to Denise
Pennell our companies 941s for the 4& quarter of 2020. The
documents will reflect that we completely expended the
$10,000.00 loan on employee payroll.

I once again want to thank the Westgate CRA for helping us during
this crisis. We are proud to be pazt of the Community.

R4



0038-17085490 TAXPAY® 21001
rom 941 for 2020: Employer's QUARTERLY Federal Tax Return

{Rev. July 2020) Department of the Traasury — Internal Revenue Service

950120

OMB No. 15645-0028

Empleyer identification number (E{N}

Name {not your frade name) | SHUBWAY GROUP INC

Trade name (if any)

_ Report for this Quarter of 2020
4116 3118 [|9]|51|71]i5 1|8 (Check one.)

l:] 1: January, February, March
D 2: April, May, June
D 3: July, August, September

Read the separate instructions before you complete Form 941. Type or print within the boxes.
m Answer these questions for this quarter.

1

5a

Sa

5a

5b

ae
5d

5e

5f

11a

11b

1fc

Address (1334 N MILITARY TRAIL
E 4: October, November, December
Number Sireet Suile or roor number
Go to www.irs.gov/Form941 far
WEST PALM BEACH FL 33409 instructions and the latest information.
City State ZIP code
Foreign country name Farelgn provincelcounty Fereign postal code

Number of employees who received wages, tips, or other compensation for the pay period

including: Sept. 12 (Quarter 3) or Dec. 12 (Quarter4} . . . . . . . . . . 1 | |

Wages, tips, and other compensation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 2 | 65,463.28|

Federal income tax withheld from wages, tips, and other compensation. . . .. . ... .. 3 | 3,648.13|

If no wages, tips, and other compensation are subject to social security or Medicare tax [:l Check and go to line 6.
Column 1 Column 2

Taxable soclal security wages . . | 65,463.28| %0124 = l 8,117.45]

(i) Qualified sick leave wages . . . . | | % 0.062 = i |

(i} Qualified family leave wages . . . | . | X 0.062 = | . |

Taxable social security tips . . . I . | x0.124 = | : l

Taxable Medicare wages & tips . . | 65,463.28] x 0.029 = | 1,898.44]

Taxable wages & tips subject to I 1 | |

Additional Medicare Tax withholding - *0.009= -

Total social security and Medicare taxes. Add Column 2 from Tines 5a, 5a{i), 5a(ii), 5b, 5c, and 5d Sel 10,015.89l

Section 3121(q} Notice and Demand —Tax due on unreported tips (see instructions) . . 5f| . I

Total taxes before adjustments. Add lines 3, 5e, and 5f R L. . . 6| 13‘554_02|

Current quarter’'s adjustment for fractions of cents . L .. ?l .01|

Current quarter’s adjustment for sick pay e . . 8 ! ' |

Current quarter's adjustments for tips and group-term life insurance ... .. 9 | . l

Total taxes after adjustments. Combine lines 6 through9 . . . . . . . . . 10| 13,664.03!

Qualified small business payroll tax credit for increasing research activities. Attach Form 8974 11 a|

l

Nonrefundable portion of credit for qualified sick and family leave wages from Worksheet 1 11b|

Nonrefundable portion of employee retention credit from Worksheetd. . . . . . . .. .. 11c|

» You MUST complete all three pages of Form 941 and SIGN it,

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the back of the Payment Voucher.

Cat. No. 17001Z

Form 941 (Rev. 7-2020)

PAN
Z=D



-0038-27085450 TAXPAY® 21001

750220

Name (not your trade name} Employer identification number (EIN}
SHUBWAY GROUP INC 46-3855758
CEIHE  Answer the questions for this quarter. (continued)
11d Total nonrefundable credits. Add lines 11a11b,and e, . . . . o .o . oL oo oo Lo 11d| . ‘
12 Total taxes after adjustments and nonrefundabie credits. Subtract line 11d fromtine 10 . . . . . 12 I 13,664.03 |
13a Total deposits for this quarter, including overpayment appfied from a prior quarter and

overpayments applied from Form 941-X, 941-X (PR}, 944-X, or 944-X (SP} filed in the current quarter . . .. 13a L 13.664.0:|
13b Deferred amountof socialsecuritytax. . . . .. .. .. .. oL Lo Lo oL, 13k l . |
13¢ Refundable portion of credit for qualified sick and family leave wages from Worksheet 1. . . . 13c [ . |
13d Refundable portion of employee retention credit from Worksheet1. . . . . . .. .. .. .. . 13d L . |
13e Total deposits, deferrals, and refundable credits. Add lines 133, 13b, 13¢,and 13d. . . . . . . . 13e | 13,664.@
13f Total advances received from filing Form(s) 7200 forthequarter . . . . . . . ... ... ... 13f | . |
13g Total depasits, deferrals, and refundable credits less advances. Subtract line 13ffrom line 13¢ . .13g | 13,664.03]
14  Balance due. If line 12 is more than line 13g, enter the difference and see the instructions . . . . . . 14 | . |
15  Overpayment. If line13g is more than line 12, enter the difference - Check one: DApDIy 1o next return.l:l Send a refund.

m Tell us about your deposit schedule and tax liability for this quarter,

If you're unsure about whether you're a monthly schedule depositor or a semiweekly schedule depositor, see section 11 of Pub. 15.

16 Check one: D Line 12 on this return is less than $2,500 or line 12 on the return for the prior quarter was less than $2,500,
and you didn't incur a $100,000 next-day deposit obligation during the current quarter. If line 12 for the prior
quarter was less than $2,500 but line 12 on this return is $100,000 or mare, you must provids a record of your
federal tax liabifity. If you're a monthly schedule depositor, complete the deposit schedule below; if you're a
semiweekly schedule depositor, attach Schedule 8 {Form 941). Go to Part 3.

D You were a monthly schedule depositor for the entire quarter. Enter your tax liability for each month and totai
liability for the quarter, then go o Part 3.

Tax liabillty: Month1 |

Month 2 |

Manth 3 l . I
Total liability for quarter I . | Total must equal line 12.

You were a semiweekly schedule depositor for any part of this quarter. Complete Schedule B (Form 941),
Report of Tax Liability for Semiweekly Schedule Depositors, and attach it to Form 941, Go to Part 3.

»  You MUST complete all three pages of Form 941 and SIGN it.
Page 2

Form 941 {Rev.7-2020)




0038-17085490

TAXPAY® 21001

550920

Name (not your trade name}

SHUBWAY GROUP INC

Employer identification number (EIN})

46-3855758

17 If your business has closed or you stopped payingwages . - . . . .« .« o v 00 e h e ool oL
enter the final date you paid wages : also attach a statement of your return. See Insfructions.
18  If you're a seasonal employer and you don't have to file a return for every quarter of the year. . . [:] Check here.
19  Qualified health plan expenses allocable to qualified sick leavewages . . . . . . . . .. 19 r
20  Qualified health plan expenses allocable to qualified family leavewages . . . . .. . .. 201
21 Qualified wages for the employeeretentioncredit . . . . . . . . . ... ..o 21|
22 Qualified health plan expenses allocable to wages reported onfine21. . . . ... . .. 22|
23  Credit from Form 5884-C, line 11, forthisquarter. . . . . . . . ... .. .. ... .. .. 23|
24 Deferred amount of the employee share of social security tax included on line 13b . . . 24|

Tell us about your business. If a question does NOT apply to your business, leave it blank.

[ ] Check here, and

25  Reserved for future use

May we speak with your third-party designee?

Do you want to aliow an employee, a paid tax preparer, or another person to discuss this return with the IRS? See the instructions

for details.

D Yes. Designee's name and phone number [

Select a 5-digit personal identification number (PIN) to use when talking to the IRS.

No.

!

HiNn.

IEZRE] 5ion here. You MUST complete all three pages of Form 941 and SIGN it.

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and slatements, and lo the best of my knowledge
and belief, it is true, correcl, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than taxpayer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowlsdge.

Sign your
name here

REFERENCE COPY PREPARED BY PAYCHEX
DO NOT FILE

Date r

|

Print your I '
name here

Print your l |
title here

Best daytime phone r |

Paid Preparer Use Only Check if you're self-employed . . . [ ]
Preparer's name I | PTIN | |
Preparer's signature l l Date | |
s cama o yours | e | |
Address I J Phane ] i
City | I State |:| ZIP code | l

Page K Form 941 {Rev. 7-2020}

o)
o~



0038-17085490

TAXPAY®

Schedule B (Form 941):

Report of Tax Liability for Semiweekly Schedule Depositors

{Rev. January 2017)

Employer identification number

{EIN)

Name (not your trade name)

Calendar year

Department of the Treasury -- Internal Revenue Service

21001

6

1318

5

5[17|15

SHUBWAY GROUP INC

0

2|0

{Also check guarter)

L0311

OMB No. 1545-0029

Report for this Quarter ...
{(Check one.)

|:| 1: January, February, March
I:' 2: April, May, June

I:I 3: July, August, September
4: Qctaber, Novernber, December

Use this schedule to show your TAX LIABILITY for the quarter; don't use it to show your deposits. When you file this form with Form 941 or
Form 94188, don't change your tax liability by adjustments reported on any Forms 841-X or 944-X. You must fill out this form and attach it to
Form 941 or Form 941-5S if you're a semiweekly schedule depositor or became one because your accumulated tax liability on any day was

$100,000 or more. Write your daily tax liability on the numbered space that corresponds to the date wages were paid. See Section 11 in
Pub. 15 for detaiis.

Month 1

1I = | gl . |17| = l25| = Tax liability for Month 1

2| - |1nl o |1s| . |2ﬁ| = | 3 955 86
3 - | v | <l - |2 - | —
4| : | 12l e . ] 2 971.02]

5 | - | - |2 999,33] -]

5| . ]14[ 971.07| zz| . |3o’ -T

q 1,01444| 15| « | 2 - | s . |

8| o |l « | 2| - |

Month 2

1i - | 9| " |17f - |25| 1,033.48 Tax liability for Month 2

2| - | 10 1,070.70| 15| 1,054,51] 26| . 116811
3l « | . | 19 . | . .

o} 1,009.42] 1| . | 2| . | 28] .

s | o] 1l ] e | 2] . |

6 - ] 1el - | 2| Y - |

7| . |15| = |23| x |31| . l

B| . |1s| " ]24' . l

Month 3

1l < | o 1,161.74| 17| . | 2 . | [ TextiabittyforMonths

2| 1,090,76] 10| e - | 2 . | 5 540,06
3 - | 1l « | o] - | 2 |

| - | 2| . | 2] - | 2 .|

5| - |1 e |2 . | 2 -

o - ] 4l . | 2| - | 3| 1,056.76]

q - | | x| 112117 41| . |

8| . | 4 1,109.63] 24| . |

Fill in your total lizbility for the quarter (Month 1 + Month 2 + Month 3}

Total must equal line 12 on Form 941 or Form 941-8S.

Total liability for the quarter

13,664,03

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions,

IRS.goviformg41

Schedule B (Farm 9241) (Rev, 1-2017)

0 Yo

LO



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (“WESTGATE CRA”)
PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA
BID PROPOSAL

WESTGATE DOG PARK
CRA PROJECT NO. 2021-01

. All-Site Construction, Inc
Name of Bidder:

Phone Number: 561-848-1110 Email Address; -2 @allsiteinc.net

Submitted: 7/26 ,2021.

Westgate CRA
1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215
West Palm Beach, Florida 33409

The undersigned, as Bidder, hereby declares that the only person or persons interested in the Bid
Proposal, as principal or principals, is or are named herein and that no other person than herein
mentioned has any interest in the Bid Proposal of the Contract to which the work pertains; that this Bid
Proposal is made without connection or arrangement with any other person, company, or parties
submitting a Bid or Proposal and that the Bid Proposal is in all respects fair and made in good faith
without collusion or fraud.

The Bidder further declares that they have examined the site of the work, or Bidder has made
sufficient test holes and/or other subsurface investigations to be fully satisfied, and that from personal
knowledge and experience such a site is a correct and suitable one for this work and Bidder assumes
full responsibility therefore; that Bidder has examined the Drawings and Specifications for the work to
be done and has examined the other Contractual Documents relating thereto, including the
Advertisement for Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Propesal, Insurance requirements, form of
Contract, General Conditions and Supplementary Conditions, Technical Specifications, Drawings and
has read all Addenda prior to the opening of Bids, and that Bidder is satisfied fully, relative to all
matters and conditions with respect to the work to which this Bid Proposai pertains.

Commercial Non-Discrimination Certification. The undersigned Bidder hereby certifies and agrees that
the following information is correct: In preparing its response to this Solicitation, the Bidder has
considered all proposals submitted from qualified, potential Subcantractors and suppliers, and has not
engaged in "discrimination” as defined in the County’s Commercial Nondiscrimination Policy as set
forth in Resolution 2017-1770 as amended.

The Bidder proposes and agrees, if this Bid Proposal is accepted, to Contract with the Westgate CRA, in
the form of Contract specified, to furnish all necessary materials, all equipment, all necessary
machinery, tools, apparatus, means of transportation, and labor necessary to complete the work
specified in the Bid Proposal and the Contract, and called for by the Drawings and Specifications and in
the manner specified.

WESTGATE DOG PARK
2021-01

00300-1

29



The Bidder hereby agrees to commence work under this contract on a date to be specified in written
"Notice to Proceed" by the Westgate CRA and to fully complete the project,

within one hundred and twenty {120 ) consecutive calendar days,
with substantial completion within ninety (90) consecutive calendar days.

thereafter as stipulated in the Contract Documents. The Bidder further agrees to pay as liquidated
damages the sum of $250.00 for each consecutive calendar day thereafter, through the calendar day
on which the project is complete in accordance with the Contract Documents.

The Bidder further agrees to execute a Contract and furnish satisfactory Insurance Certificates within
the fifteen (15) consecutive calendar days after written notice being given by the Westgate CRA of the
award of the Contract,

The Bidder is responsible for determining the existing site conditions and quantity estimates. The

undersigned agrees to accept in full compensation for a firm fixed price all the work described in the
Contract Documents, and enumerated in the following bid schedule:

STATE PRICE IN WORDS AND FIGURES

TOTAL BASE BID FOR WESTGATE DOG PARK:
OMR. munvice of Rposand Loy INuwrede < o SIX._’_\! - & ﬁ[H’ '
/“D/(LBD DOLLARS ($ I’W: (Mﬁg/7(0 )

BIDDER:  Ali-Site Construction, Inc pDATE: 7/26/21

WESTGATE DOG PARK
2021-01

00300-2

A0



WESTGATE DOG PARK

BASE BID SCHEDULE

Pescription Unit | Quantity | Unit Cost Total
General _
1 | Permit Fees LS 1 |7 7? (1J|3131.13
2 | Mobilization LS 1 32"7‘({{7() 33,.01 Yo
3 | Trash Removal LS 1 /( ‘70 11770 O
4 | On-Site Materials Storage LS 1 717D
TOTAL 3&%2‘3; £3
Hardscape / Site Furnishings
1 | 4 Concrete Pads s | 1o | 1% |By- O
2 | Benches (incl. freight & taxes) EA 6 [737.65|/O 4y 1O
3 | Trash Receptacles (incl. freight & taxes) EA 2 3 l‘+ 37, LE(,; LQ %74. C}&
4 | Waste station EA 2 5'83/ 11 70,30
\;\iiize(is:;i.n?rr;i-g::%dtl:s:;ser only - mounted on U-channel £A 5 790@_ }):JSJ P
5 | Drinking Fountain EA 1 2 O %@ O
6 | Dog Park Rules Sign EA 1 | 792,52 RS
7 | Site Furnishings/Park Equipment Installation EA 1 {éfo ¢ ldou; . DO
8 | &' Chain-link Fencing (furnish and install) LF 530 |21 Z,':) 15, 5505 60
9 | 4’ Chain-link Gates (furnish and install) EA 4 SBS QA AR
10 :ngr;:;r::llgk Fencing w/ Tennis Court Screening (furnish LE 60 ;_7 2 H/— / 7’6'6. ) ()D
11 | Aluminum Entry Feature {furnish and install} EA 1 Gl Y6 v (0/4/(9_0[
ToraL |G 734 . &3
Landscape / Irrigation -
1 | Tree Removal {canopy trees) EA 6 ‘7 3L H_O’LO D
2 { Tree Removal {palms - all sizes) EA 2 796 |IKT7- (OO
3 | Clear & Grub LS 1 9328 %&&
4 | Berming (clean fill) cY 70 2’5 . j (..02)?{
5 | St. Augustine Sod, installed SF 15026 | ,bb ] 1D, Oa\i)»gd/
6 | Cocoplum Shrub, furnish and install EA 39 (.04 | ' 7 602
7 | Small Leaf Clusia Shrub, furnish and install EA 20 ( ‘6,04{ ,Q&),
8 | Dwarf Fakahatchee Grass, furnish and install EA 10 {1.7 I)’? OLP
9 | Silver Button Wood, furnish and install EA 7 053 7%'7} .
10 | Southern Live Oak, furnish and install EA 3 b { 4,?5" IBLQ- 7§
11 | Cabbage Palmetto {Sabal paims), furnish and install EA 12 3 q{ Lij- /,;2\, DO
/

00300-3

o)



10 AR

SO

59

PITA

12 | irrigation System, furnish and install LF 15,418 / 707_
13 | 1” Water Meter Install EA 1 ‘7 Qs ('f?(,ts
14 | Electrical Connection for Irrigation System EA 1 QOL{?"_O c:l, L]
oL | (<, 1
sustoTAL || {p(f, /4
15% CONTINGENCY | Qu/ "7/ ,@D\
GRAND TOTAL

| &9, Hose e

*Note: Bidder should verify estimated quantity.

All-Site Construction Inc
BIDDER:

7

TOTAL BASE BID: / 8 %f 4(0% ‘7 ('Q

DATE:

00300-4

7/26/21

WESTGATE DOG PARK

2021-01

22



610Z/8¢/20 Q3SIA3Y

“leRgns uodn pajasial aq [im pue paptusad Jou S1wao) Siy} JO UDIJEYPROIN  °E

“Aiofaed
ajendosdde ayy Japun Junowe Jejjop 33 a31edtpuy aseaqd ‘JGM,/W 10/pue 39S UB YI0Q S PAUITISD D48 Sty 1 “3IM/IN LR Jo/pue 3gS ue se AJuno) yaeag wied Aq payiyad ag Aew suuyd g
*jesodoad pauds paydene Jo Z Inpayas payndaxa Apadord ayy uo pas) afejuazsad Jo aand Aq papoddns ag Jsnw Juejnsuo3IgNs/I0NEIUOINS B 10} 110) Sit} U0 PIISI[ JUNOWE 341

amL pmpeuf;

-

DI0N

EINIIE S1 UOJJELLICIUL JACQE B4) FEY) £J11I92 Aq2a9y |

| Q\Q% uonedoiied 4 S W\ ..VW 8?\ T%A S 93ug pig |e10L
m.m : —U PFGD \@ .\@3 g%m\ {Ases5002U )1 S13BYS |EUOILPPE 35N 35R3d)

T\CEEM\FQ

[]
[]

L35 0T

9oua- sf@lueq

soueusUIBY
» 9deaspueT aA0qY IND Y ¢

:£ue JI {s)opTnuUoIqng

B

S ChLLe - - - L£] L

oU[ 'UONONIISUOY alsHy I
“ustid

/ L WMJ .\w,m [ _ﬂ _l_ —ul_ 0L11-8¥8-196 14 GdM 2AY puuewe] 3 G162

(Aspads seaid)

s
Japn URISEINED UBWOoM Juedsiy Peg ssauisng ssauisng ABQUIRN BUOYd PUE SSAIPPY MEN

llews uaLom/ANIoUIN

WIOM 30 IOVINIDFId HO INMOWV 8V 1100 388 IEM/N JHSUON
(sano2me) ajgen ddy 1o y2ayD)

T1ArQUd
IH1 NO SINY1INSNODIENS/SHOLOVELNOIENS TIV AS @ILITdN0D 39 0L NHOM 40 IDVINIIYId HO INNOWY HYVT10d JHL LSITOS1V ISVad

*12310¥d SIHL NO INVITNSNOJ/40.0VEINGD JNIHd IHL A9 3131dNO) 38 01 MYOM JO IDVINIIUIC 4O INNOWYV HVTIOQ JHL L1SI13SVAd

Buneumss (INIWLHYJIA 1z/gz/2 31Y0 TYLLINENS/SNINIJO NOILYLIDIIOS

YIN-G OLLI-gva-leg - ONINOHd ployes eizg -NOS¥3d 1DVINOD
JOPEE 14 yoeag Wied 1S3\ SAY punewel 3 G162 nmmmxﬁ—ﬂ—< Ur_— .COEU:.:W:OU mz_m(__(_ "mwﬁ_ﬁ_—m-\._.zmczo&wwx ms—xu_ u—o NE<Z
Lo-1zoz “ON Q1g9/123r0ud/NOILYLIDI0S wieg Bog vuo aiehisep IWYN AI8/103r0¥d/NOILYLIDNOS

NOILYdIDIL¥Vd INVLINSNODENS/HOLIVHINGISNS ANV LNVLINSNOD/YOLIVELNOD GISOd0¥d 40 LI
I ITINA3HIS 06§30



OEBO LETTER OF INTENT — SCHEDULE 2

A completed Schedule 2 is a binding document between the Prime Contractor/consultant and a Subcontractor/subconsultant {for
any tier) and should be treated as such. The Schedule 2 shall contain bolded language indicating that by signing the Schedule 2,
both_parties recognize this Schedule as a binding document. All Subcontractors/subconsultants, including any tiered

Subcontractors/subconsultants, must properly execute this document. Each properly executed Schedule 2 must be submitted with
the bid/proposal.

SOLICITATION/PROJECT Numaer: 202101
SOLICITATION/PROJECT NAME: VVestgate Dog Park

prime Contractor: 2MI-Site Construction Inc

{Check box{s) that apply) 8/11/17
BE OWBE [DMBE OM/WBE [ Non-5/M/WBE Date of Palm Beach County Certification (if applicable): .

Subcontractor:

The undersigned affirms they are the following {select one from each column if applicable):

Column 1 Xc:umn 2 Column 3
\é Male [JFemale frican-American/Black O Asian American O Caucasian American 0 Supplier
O Hispanic American O Native American

S/M/WBE PARTICIPATION - 'S/M/WBE Primes must- docurent all work to be performed. by their own work force on this form. Failure to submit a
properly executed Schedule 2 for any S/M/WBE participation may result in that participation not being counted. Specify In detail, the scope of work
to be performed or items supplied with the dollar amount and/or percentage for each work item. 5/M/WBE credit will only be given for the areas in
which the 5/M/WBE is certified. A detailed proposal may be attached to a properly executed Schedule 2.

Line Item Description Unit Price | Quantity/ Contingencies/ Total Price/Percentage
Item Units Allowances

Construction Management Services [ LK, (oD €1
Cleanpa < ijhhmf}

Arelrese.
[t SN

The undersigned Subcontractor/subconsultant i repar%%se[fg{erform the above-described work in conjunction with the aforementioned project
at the following total price or percentage: ) ,) " /

If the undersigned intends to subcontract any portion of this work to another Subcontractor/subconsultant, please list the business hame and the
amount below accompanied by a separate properly executed Schedule 2.

Price or Percentage:

Name of 204/3™ tier Subcontractor/subconsultant

e
e e————

CQnistruction A

Print Name of Prime

Print Name of Subcontractor/subconsultant

By:
- PAuthorized éignftur‘é'/ - Authorized Signature
Ezra Saffold
Print Name Print Name
President
Title Title
Date: 7/26/21 Date:
Revised 09/17/2019

34



Acknowledgment is hereby made of the following Addenda received since issuance of Plans and Specifications:

Addendum No. _ 0O Dated: Addendum Na. Dated:

Addendum No. Dated: Addendum No. Dated:

The following Documents are attached to and made a condition of the Bid:

a. Corporate or Partnership Certificate as applicable
b. Bidders Qualification Form
¢. Subcontractors List

Full names of persons and firms interested in the foregoing bid as principals are as follows:

Ezra Saffold, president

SITE INSPECTION FORM

(Name of person who inspected site of proposed work for your firm)

Name: %1_(6\ SQ\@‘@(\\ I)\

Date of Inspection: :i | \3’\ B\\

Business Address of Corporation, Firm or individual:

Name of Bidder, Corporation, Firm or Individual: “\K %\\-@ ) Q«L‘)\f\@ﬂ LeADA \.Q{h‘_,/\\

0™ B Teanannd W PRy

Ae Number: Slol -

% Slgnature Uh \

E e SaWlold  Qretudach

Typed Name and Title

{SEAL IF A CORPORATION)

00300-5

WESTGATE DOG PARK

2021-01




CORPORATE CERTIFICATE

PROJECT NAME: WESTGATE DOG PARK
PROJECT NUMBER: 2021-01

Ezra Saffikd

L , certify:
President
1. That 1 am the , of the Corporation
Officer named in the foregoing Bid Proposal; and
2. That Ezra Saffold ,
who signed said Bid Proposal on behalf of the Contractor was then
President of the said Corporation; Officer and

authorized to sign the Bid Proposal, and is authorized to sign Contracts and
other instruments on behalf of Corporation; and

3. That submitting said Bid Proposal and entering into a Contract with the
Owner for the construction of the work based upon said Bid Proposal, is
within the scope of the corporate powers of the Corporation.

4, That the Corporation is in good standing and authorized to do business in
the State of Florida,

] 21
Signed and sealed this __26th S day of o ,20_/AD.

\—JK " Yignature

Ezra Saffold, President

Corporate Seal

Sworn to and subscribed before me this _2° day of July , 20 241, by
__ Ezra Saffold , who s an to me, or who
produced . ___ as identification.

FELICIAL SAFFOLD-TURNER

1 By, ~ :
5:;2"'7'% commlsslm#35977495 W Signature of Notary

! Qf;iep,; Sipkes Api 12, 2024
&

a3 Toru Budget Notary Serces L
eand 8 Commission No.; _ C027 7493
Notary Seal
WESTGATE DOG PARK
2021-01
00409-1

Ho



PARTNERSHIP CERTIFICATE

PROJECT NAME: WESTGATE DOG PARK
PROJECT NUMBER: 2021-01

STATE OF FLORIDA )
} 55

, being duly sworn, deposes and
says; that he/she is a member of the partnership firm designated as
, and named in the foregoing Bid Proposal. That
he/she has been duly vested with authority to submit the Bid Proposal and to make and sign
instruments for the partnership by , ,

and who constitute all other

members of the Partnership.

Signed and sealed this day of , 20 ,AD,

Signature, General Partner

By:
Name & Title
Sworn to and subscribed before me this déy of , 20 , by
, who is personally known to me, or who produced
as identification.
Signature of Notary
Commission No.;
Notary Seal

WESTGATE DOG PARK
2021-0%

00409-2

31



BIDDERS QUALIFICATION FORM

PROJECT NAME: WESTGATE DOG PARK 7/26/21
PROJECT NUMBER: __ 2021-01 DATE:

Please fill out this form completely and submit with each Bid Proposal. Additional information may be
required. Failure to comply with this requirement will render the proposal informal and may cause its
rejection.

In order for the Westgate CRA to properly qualify your firm and its Bid Proposal for the referenced project,
please provide the following information:

1.

51

5.2

Legal Name and Address:

. All-Site Construction Inc

Name
Address: 2915 E Tamarind Ave
Phone:  ~01-848-1110 Email Address: Ezra@allsiteinc.net

West Palm Beach, Fl 33407

City, State, Zip:

Check one: Corporation: X Partnership: Individual:

If Carporation, state:
9/14/2001

Florida

Date of Incarporation:

State in which Incorporated:

If an out-of-state Corporation currently authorized to do business in Florida, give date of such
authorization: N/A

Name and Title of Principal Officers: Date Elected:
Ezra Saffold 9/14/01

Name of Qualifying Agents: Date of Initial Qualification:
Ezra Saffold

Name of Financially Responsible Officers (if any):

£zra Saffold

00420-1




6. If Partnership, state: Date of Partnership:

Name and Address of Partners:

N/A
7. If Sole Proprietorship, state: Name and Address of Owner:
N/A
8. List State, County or other Public Agencies with which your organization is qualified to perform work by

some means of pre-qualification:

Agency Trade in which Qualified Expiration Date Amount Approved

Palm Beach County CID - CM at Risk - 08/2021 - NTE 2M
Paltm Beach County Annual Minor Contract - CM - 02/2025 - NTE 5M
Palm Beach Count y School Beard - CMAR - 08/2022 - NTE 5M

S. Has your Organization or any member been involved in any litigation, arbitration or administrative
proceeding within the last ten (10) years as a result of construction contracts, including but not limited
to liens, delays, defective performance or workmanship? If yes, provide the following information for
each case: {submit attachments as necessary.)

a. Style or caption of litigation OR ARBITRATION; No

b. All parties to such proceedings:

N/A

00420-2



C Names, addresses, telephone numbers of Attorneys for each party:

N/A

d. Date Litigation Started: N/A

e. Status of Case: N/A

f. Provide explanation of each claim by and against each party. {Attachments, as necessary.)
10. Have you or any principal of your company ever declared bankruptey?

Yes No__ X

If Yes, provide dates and particulars:

Date n/a Reason
11. List three (3) construction-related credit references.

Name Address Phone No.

Aldrich Tool Rentals 1601 N Congress Ave, West Palm Beach, FL 33409 561-683-8511

Maschmeyer concrete Co Lake Park FL 561-848-9112

Home Depot West Palm Beach FL 561-683- 7221

12, List all subsidiaries or holding companies:
None
13, List Corporate names or business names under which each of the principals in the present Corporation

have done business for the last ten years.

All-Site Construction Inc

00420-3

A0



14, List major subcontractors and suppliers from your three (3) largest most recent projects:

Project Name Subcontr./Supp. Contact Phone

Broward Health Office Renovations Advanced HVAC Contractors  Donald Macrostie  561-267-6636

Single Point of Entry Schools  Cherokee Glass & Mirrors Dean Latta/ Phil Reynolds 561-586-7060
SWA Switchgear Replacement & Building Upgrades Proshell Construction Julien Beauregard 561-684-4959

5. State construction experience of principal members of your organization:

Name & Title Years Exper. Type Work Cost Range In What Capacity

Ezra Saffold 30 Construction Management Services 2-6M Executive

Please see attached resumes of available team members

List projects under direct supervision of the assigned Qualifying Agent(s), Project Manager(s), and/or
Superintendent. {Attachments.)

Project/Type Size/Value Date
Broward Health Corporate Offices 1.5M 8/2021
Lake Worth Children Academy ZM 02/2022

John Prince Park - Boat Remp Replacement 670K 11/2021

If not listed above, provide work experience or assigned Qualifying Agent(s), Project Manager(s). and/or
Superintendent.

Please see attached resume

186. List licenses of key members, including Qualifying Agents, and attach copies, including Certificate of
Competency:

CGC1526181 General Construction License

00420-4

4\



17. List three (3) similar projects your organization has completed in the last five (5) years. List similar

Florida Public Works projects first.

Alton Park - New park construction
NAME OF PROJECT

OWNER North Palm Beach County improvement District
561-624-7830

Palm Beach Gardens FI
ADDRESS

ADDRESS

5100 Beckman Terrace PBG FL

PHONE #
ARCHITECT Architectural Studio Inc ADDRESS éOOdAve ?:T Champions Ste 260 Palm Beach
araens
2.2M 12/20
CONTRACT AMOUNT_~ DATE OF COMPLETION
WAS PROJECT COMPLETED WITHIN ALLOWED CONTRACT TIME? YES NO
PERCENTAGE OF THE COST OF THE WORK DONE BY YOUR OWN FORCES: 10 %

ingham Park
NAME OF pROJECT__1"ningham Par

owNEeRr City of Riviera Beach
561-845-3479

ADDRESS Riviera Beach FL

ADDRESS 600 W Blue Heron Blvd Riviera Beach

PHONE #
ARCHITECT Colome & Associates Inc ADDRESS 530 34th WPB FL
PHONE & 561-833-9147

" 12/2018
CONTRACT AMOUNT DATE OF COMPLETION
WAS PROJECT COMPLETED WITHIN ALLOWED CONTRACT TIME? ves X NO
PERCENTAGE OF THE COST OF THE WORK DONE BY YOUR OWN FORCES: 15 %

NAME OF PROJECT,
OWNER City of Riviera Beach

ARCHITECT S9N8 & Associates

25M

Riviera Beach Marina Redevelopment - CMAR Partner 200 F 13th street Riviera Beach
S

ADDRES
ADDRESs 2001 Broadway Blvd Riviera Beach

ADDRESS West Palm Beach FI

CONTRACT AMOUNT DATE OF COMPLETION __ 04/2016
WAS PROJECT COMPLETED WITHIN ALLOWED CONTRACT TIME? YES_X NO
PERCENTAGE OF THE COST OF THE WORK DONE BY YOUR OWN FORCES: 10 %

00420-5

A2



18. Status of Current Contracts Over 510,000

Project Name, Contract Amount
Location & Description

Owner Contact & Phone No.

OUr POINTS YOULN Center - Interior Kenovation -
$936K - 03/2022

% Complete

est Palm Beach,

-~Falm peac

Projected Completion

Date

ounty -Jim Laley- - -

Lake Worth Children Acaderny - Construction a new day care center -Lake Worth FL- Schwans Learning Center -

Rettelene Placid -561-541-5379 7/ Lender: Stone Bank - John Coppolno -561-432-2053 - $2ZM - 157% - D4/2022

Palm Tran Renovations - West Palm Beach FL - Interior Renovations - Palm Beach County - Bill Munker 561-233-0265 -

$Z5K - 0% - 60 days 1Tom Permit issuance

00420-6

WESTGATE DOG PARK
2021-01

A%



"JUSWINIOP SiY] 35N 0] 995UID]| 3Y) UieY] JSYI0 SUOAUR 10J [NJMEJUN S| 3] “SSUDDI| INOA ST SIY |

*WI0J AUk Ul JUSWIND0P Siy] Jagje Jou og

WO2'3sUadI"EPLIOIJAIA 1B Bul|Uo S3SUBD]| AJLIDA SABM|Y
¢20Z ‘T€ 1SNONV 31vd NOLLYiIdX3
1819251092343 aNAN ISNIDH

mmp:bﬁm& & _“.”%. %E«Iumo mzo.m_>o~_n_
3HL ¥3ANN GO SENIENS ”N_obs_pzou TV43INED 3HL

aavod OZ_mZm_U_._ >~FmDm_Z_ ZO_._.UDm._.mZOU

NOLLYINDIY TYNOISSIHA0Ud ANV SSANISNG 40 ._.Zm___z._.m_<n_wn_
\_1 vdro1d 40 m._.<._.m

Aejaias ‘sieaysag AssjeH JOLLIDAOD) ‘SHUBSS(] Loy




Todeff " VUOPIOA
I01CMSURAPY A0y
© preursg YW
Au[UpOW BSSIPN
1980g o] ATy ; proziiiae
sspp Y 380D
xofep 931A 'HOIU M, " 1|0 Y
zodepy “I0UISY 2ARC

labejiepy 'Aels) usjly
(Y
sJoUOESPIIIC]) Ayunon jo precg AyumoD) usg wied

aoejdoy pue |eAOWIDY Bulphjou] ‘ajalsuo) ‘sadlAleg nedsy
‘saalAlag Bunuied JJeAolisy Buipnjou]) AemaAl( pue Yjemapl

g ‘aredey pue asueusjulei {S9DIAI9G
juswiabeugy UoONISU0DH ‘S991AISS [EAOWIRY JO/pUE uonjejjeisuj bunoo|ipedied tAiuadien
:UOHEONIHSO SIU] J9pUN PRISACD ale sjonpoid Jo/pue SadIARS puimoljo} au L
£202 ‘91 3snbny 03 0Z0T ‘L) ySnbny
wioyy pousd 1esh eaiy} e .10 8p0D Auno

0 Yoeag Wied 8y}
-Z uonoes Aq paquosaid se (3gW/S) esudisjuz ssauisng Auoun/ews e st

ZS00STV # JOPUSA

‘NI NOILONYLSNOD ALISTIV .
JeyL ssynied

G
T
<

7

J00£08°C - 1208

funioddQ ssauisng [enb3 jo 82140
fQuno9 yoeag wijed




June 22, 2021

To Whom It May Concern

RE: ALL-SITE CONSTRUCTION INC

Dear Sirs:

It has been the privilege of FSB Agency, Inc and United States Fire
Insurance Company to provide surety bonds on behalf of All-Site
Construction Inc for over eleven years.

At the present time, we provide up to $6,500,000 single / $12,000,000
aggregate surety program to All-Site Construction Inc.  As always, the
surety reserves the right to perform normal underwriting at the time of any
bond request, including, without limitation, prior review and approval of
relevant contract documents, bond forms, and project financing. The surety
assumes no liability if for any reason they do not execute a specific bond.

United States Fire Insurance Company is listed on the US Treasury
Department’s Listing of Approved Sureties. Their rating is A and their
financial size is XIII.

Very truly yours,

By: _4LAPYS KEITH
Gladys Keith, Attorney-in-Fact

7971 Riviera Blvd, Suite #211, Miramar, Florida 33023
Phone: (954) 589-1631 ** Fax: (954) 589-0735

Al



s ALL-CON-01 NBEDIA
ACORLD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oo

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADRITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certiflcate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER | GENELCT
SOt N 150 Avo, Satte 101 PHONE, ey (954) 431-2008 A% nyl954) 7040507
pambroke Pines, FL 33028 [Emal . Info@candcinsurance.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICH
wsurer A :United Specialty Insurance Company 12537
{NSURED insuReR B : STARSTONE NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY 25496
All-Site Construction, Inc., Saffold Paving Inc. & 2915 .
E Tamerind Ave. LLiy nsurer ¢ :LLOYDS OF LONDON
2915 East Tamarind Avenue INSURERD ¢
Woest Palm Beach, FL 33407 INSURERE :
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR CTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUGED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR TYPE OF INSURANGE Pk POLICY NUMBER WD IY) | AABONTYYY L
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
| cLams-mane E] OCCUR ¥ | x [pciozo70-00 112712021 | 1/27/2022 | BAMASRS [ORENIED s 100,000
] MED EXP {Any one parsan) S 5'000
] PERSONAL & ADVINJURY 1§ 1,000,000
| GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
|| poucy | X | 5B Loc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 2,000,000
OTHER: s
[ AuTomonILE LiABILITY COVBINED SINGLE LMIT | ¢
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY {P 5
] oWNED SCHEDULED {Per person)
|| AUTOS onLy AUTOS BQDILY INJURY (Per accident}| §
|| R onuy AONRYED BREERppAMAGE s
s
B | | UMBRELLALIAB L OCCUR EACH OCCUREENCE s 2,000,000
X | excessuag crLausMane| X | X [84824C210ALI 1/27/2021 | 112712022 AGGREGATE s 2,000,000
peo | | meventions N
PE PER OTH-
RSB ST SATON, [ [ 15
RIP
%{N;'ggi%m’%%f‘ PARTNEREXECUTIVE D NIA E.L. EAGH ACCIDENT 5
andatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE §
If yes, describe under
SCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT | 5
C |Property 135T0R100006 112772021 | 4/27/2022 [Building/Contents 450,000

required by contract.
RE: CBC 060458 & CGC 1526181

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS f LOCATIONS I VEHICLES {ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be atiached If mare space Is required)
Blanket Additional Insured Included if required by contract. Blanket Primary and Non-Contributory if required by contract. Walver of subregation included if

CERTIFICATE HSLDER
—-\.

CANCELLATION

rtm

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, MNOTICE WiLL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS,

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

/‘Q__.CL/

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and iego are registered marks of ACORD

47



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 25030509
THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

DESIGNATED CONSTRUCTION PROJECT(S)
GENERAL AGGREGATE LIMIT

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL UIABILITY COVERAGE PART

SCHEDULE

Designated Construction Projeci(s):

All operations of the named insured.

Information required to complete this Schedule, if not shown abave, wilf be shown in the Declarations.

A. For all sums which the insured becomes legally obligated to pay as damages caused by
"occurences” under Section I - Coverage A, and for all medical expenses caused by accidents
under Section [ — Coverage C, which can be attributed only to ongoing operations at a single
designated constsuction project shown in the Scheduke abhove:

1. A separate Designated Canstruction Project General Aggregate Limit applies to each
designated construction project, and that limit is equal to the amount of the Genesal Aggregate
Limit shown in the Dedarations.

2. The Designated Construction Froject General Aggregate Limit is the most we will pay for
the sum of all damages under Coverage A, except damages because of "badily injury” or
"property damage” included in the "products-completed operations hazard”, and for medical
expenses under Coverage C regardless of the number of:

a. Insureds;
b. Claims made or "suits” brought; ar
c. Persons or organizations making cfaims or bringing "sufts".

3. Any payments made under Coverage A for damages or under Coverage C for medicat
expenses shall reduce the Designated Construction Project General Aggregate Limit for that
designated construction project. Such payments shall not reduce the General Aggregate Limit
shown in the Declarations nor shall they reduce any other Designated Construction Project

4



General Aggregate Limit for any other designated construction project shown in the Schedule
above.

4. The limits shown in the Declarations for Each Occurrence, Damage To Premises Rented To

You and Medical Expense cantinue to apply. However, instead of being subject to the Generat
Aggregate Limit shown in the Declarations, such limits will be subject to the applicable
Designated Construction Project General Aggregate Limit.

B. For all sums which the insured becomes legally obligated to pay as damages caused by
"ocewrences” under Section | - Coverage A, and for all medical expenses caused by accidents
under Section | — Coverage C, which cannot be atiributed only to ongeing operations at a single
designated construction project shown in the Schedule above:

1. Any payments made under Coverage A for damages or under Coverage C for medical
expenses shall reduce the amount available under the General Aggregate Limit or the
Products-completed Operations Aggregate Limif, whichever is applicable; and

2. Such payments shall not reduce any Designated Construction Project General Aggregate
Limit.
C. When coverage for liability arising out of the "products-completed operations hazard” is
provided, any payments for damages because of "bodily injury” or "property damage” included in
the "products-completed aperations hazard” will reduce the Products-completed Operations

Aggregate Limit, and not reduce the General Aggregate Limit nor the Designated Construction
Project General Aggregate Limit.

D. If the applicable designated construction project has been abandaned, delayed, or abandoned
and then restarted, or if the authorized contracting parties deviate from plans, blueprints, designs,
specifications or timetables, the project will still be deemed fo be the same construction project.

E. The provisions of Section Ill — Limits Of Insurance not otherwise madified by this endarsement
shall continue to apply as stipulated.

& IS0 Propeities, Inc.

20



COMMERCIAE.
Policy Number: DCI02070-00 GENERAL LIABILSTY

GG 20 1010 01
THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.
ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR

CONTRACTORS - SCHEDULED PERSON OR
ORGANIZATION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
SCHEDULE

Name of Person or Organization:

Blanket as required by written contract.

{if no entry appears above, information required to complete this endorsement will be shown in the
Declarations as applicable to this endorsement.)

A. Section Il —Who Is An Insured is amended to include as an insured the person ar arganization
shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to fiability arising out of your ongoing operations
performed for that insured.

B. With respect to the insurance affarded to these additional instreds, the following exclusion is
added:

2. Exclusions
This insurance does not apply to "bodily infury" or "property damage” occurring after:

(1) Alt work, including materfals, parts or equipment fumished in connection with such
work, on the project (other than service, maintenance or repairs) to be performed by or
on behalf of the additional insured(s) at the site of the covered operations has been
cormpleted; or

(2) That portion of "your work” out of which the infury or damage arises has been put to
its intended use by any person or organization other than another contractor or
subconlractor engaged in performing operations for a principal as a part of the same
project.

CG20101001

7O



Policy Number: DCI02070-00 .

COMMERCIAL
GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 2037 10 01

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ iT CAREFULLY.

ADDITIONAL INSURED - OWNERS, LESSEES OR
CONTRACTORS - COMPLETED OPERATIONS

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
SCHEDULE

Name of Person or Organization:

Blanket as required by virtue of written contract.

l.ocation And Bescription of Completed Operations:

iAdditional Premium:

(¥ no entry appears above, information required to complete this endersement will be shown in the
Declarations as applicable to this endorsement.)

Section Il - Who Is An Insured is amended to include as an insured the person or organization
shown in the Schedule, but only with respect to liability arising out of "your work™ at the locafion
designated and described i the schedule of this endorsement performed for that insured and
included in the "producis-completed operations hazard™,

CG20371001

o)



Policy Number: DCI02070-00

COMMERCIAL
GENERAL LIABILITY
CG 24041093

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFIILLY,

WAIVER OF TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY
AGAINST OTHERS TO US

This endersement modifies insurance provided under the foifowing:
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
SCHEDULE
Name of Person or Organization:

Blanket as required by written contract.

(if no entry appears above, information required te complete this endarsement will be shown in the
Beclarations as applicable to this endorsement. )

The TRANSFER OF RIGHTS OF RECOVERY AGAINST OTHERS TC US Candition (Section IV~
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CONDITIONS) is amended by the addition of the following:

We waive any right of recovery we may have against the person or organization shown in the
Schedule above because of payments we make for injury or damage arising out of your ongoing
operations or "your work™ done under a coniract with that persom or organization and included in
the "producis-completed operations hazard". This waiver appfies only to the person or organization
shown in the Schedule above.

CG 24041093

DL



COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABIEITY
CG20010413

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

PRIMARY AND NONCONTRIBUTORY -
OTHER INSURANCE CONDITION

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART
PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS LIABILITY COVERAGE PART

The following is added to the Other Insurance (?) You have agreed in writing in & contract or
Condition and supersedes any provision to the agreement that this insurance wauld be
confrary: primary and would not seek contribution

from any other insurance available to the

Primary And Noncontributory Insurance additional insured.

This Insurance is primary to and will not seek
contribution from any other insurance avaflable
io an additional insured under your poficy
provided that

{1) The additional insured is a Named Insured
under such other insurance; and

CG20010413 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page1of 1

o%)



P
ACORDY
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

ALLS)-1 L CPIXIC

DATE (MMIECEE¥]
a62812021

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES KOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the cestificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions ar be endarsed.
i SUBROGATION IS WANED, subject to the terms and conditions of the pelicy, cerlain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this ceflificale does not confer rights 1o the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER 5615824101
IARDEN INSURANCE ASSOCIATES

525 W, L ANTANA RD,

LANTANA, FL 334621625

KENN RORBERG

| §57C7 ROBERT NORBERG

R b Ey; 9515624101 [E3% 1 551-586-8061
eE _ Cenficaes@dardeninsurance.com
a

pesemen A -AMERICAN BUILDERS INS. CO. 11240

IALL-SITE CONSTRUCTION INC. & SAFFOLD PAVING, INC.

pesuren o BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY GUARD

2915 E. TAMARIND AVE RSHRER C:
IWEST PALM BEACH, FL 33407 J—
INSURERE -
RISURER F :

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NURBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE [NSURED NRAMED ABOVE FOR THE FCLICY PERICD
HDICATED. ROTWITHSTANDNG ANY REQUIREMENT, TERI OR CONBITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OFTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TD WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE RSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREN IS SURIECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONBITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LTAITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAI CLAIMS.

s TYPE OF MSURKHCE Pl POLEY NUMEER | ooy LTS
COMMERCIAL GERERAL UABILITY EACH O CCURRENCE s
fcoamsmaoe || accur x| x paacEToRBITED T
3 I
;| MED EXPtany oneparsonl [
| | g i | PERSOMAL 2 ARV INURY  ||§
| GEME AGGREGATE LMY APPLIES PER. ] GEMERALAGGREGATE _ |§
'~ eower [ [58% [feoc ; | BRODUCTS- COMPIOR AGG: | £
|| tomew ’ I | B
B [ aurosomsneLusany B SNGELT | 1,509,500
L | e o AL AU068553 082612020 | 0R/26:2021 | socicy uumy (Pargersons | § 1
X OWRED SCEHEDURED | 1,000,080
[ A | AUTOS oMLY | AOTES: i GOOIE Y, INUUIRY (Per acadenth § ,
X[ o (X MHEEOT LR L
X |BLexTADDL | 3
| luesreiaims | toccur BACH OCCLRRENCE B
EXCESSLAB ELAMS-MADE MGGREGATE s
ne | | reremions [
WORKER'S CONPERSATION PR GTHE |
A AND EMPLOYERS LIABRLITY vIn _ x[snmrrs EE
Y PEOPRIETOREATTIEREECLTVE t[ Al X [WevO12112003 OTRAZ020{ 0TI [ Lo oo e 1,000,000
F’%’m&‘ BLANKET WAVER INCL - EL DISEASE  SXEMPLOYEE] § 1.ﬂ00,w0|
CRIBTION OF CPERATIONS hefow EL DISEASE - POLICY WMIE | § 1,860,060}
i i |

ICONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT CONTRACTOR

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATHHIE f LOCATIONS | VEHCLES {ACORD 101, Adciforal Remrarics Sciwdide, may be attacied F avore space Es requined)

JE HOLDER CANCELLATION
—_ RMVIEO]
, SHOLLY ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCEL LED BEFORE
F BEAC St THE BPRATION DATE THEREOF, HOTICE WLL BE PELIVERED M
p T ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
W. BLUE HERON BLVD.
RIVIERA BEACH, FL 33404 ‘"“”Z‘"m"s 'ESEZ"WE
]
ACORD 25 (2016/03) @ 19882015 ACORD CORPORATION, All rights reserved,

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

Su



ALL-SITE CONSTRUCTION INC. & ALLSH PASE2
NOTEPAD rsurers RasE SAFFOLD PAVING, INC. OPID: LG oae O6F281202

| A, B, C - AMERICAN BUILDERS INS CO 16632 - AM BEST RATED: A (EXCELIENT)
D — BERKSHIRE HATHAWAY GUARD - AM BEST RATED: A (EXCFLLENT)




. . GaLO=T100 39V SANAL TLINN
000 e T ave . ArVA LON INSNO0d SIHL

18798 =10l

L20¢

0g€ H34NA1Ld3Ss

S3HIdX
18'08 . HOLOVMLNOD SNIGINE 0129ET 9gr0s
34 NOLLJIHDS3d AHODILYD ‘a1 XYL sng
1818261000 AV ONIMVIAVL T G162
85030080 ONI NOILONYLSNOD JLS-TTY
. HMINOD DNIQUNG aFN1E30 /108200000
. . ' . T —y VG ReRMLbg )
e S ot D0 O 12034 SSANISAE 10T 01 020¢ HOVIg WIvd 15T
EI_ ] & D =Y
F1avaaISNYHL ION HOYEE M1Yd 1S3 40 ALID DO
'SSINISNE 20 39V1d HNOA LY 39V 1d SNONJILESNOD ¥ NI L80d q5747d "mZOFo:mhmzm ) |\.w

AVQIHA - AVONOIN — Wd 005 - INY 00:8 SENOH  Biorqdm@xesseulsng Tvild  0049-508 (£99) TT¢3 NOLLYINHOLNI HOd m

‘yoy0as ples uj pepirold se payonsl 1o pepuadsns aqg Aew pue apod A oui jo
£-9 ‘098 U] SUOLIPUOY S UM doueldulos saimbai qunad [oyod]e suoy papusIxe Uy JHWdd joYodY SN0 papusixXd

-apog Al euy 1o gpe-g/ "08g o1 wuensind payoasl Jo pepuadsns aq Aew uuusd gleo Jiemepls ¥ "spod Aia U
1O ZpE-BZ PUB GpE-g. "SO8g UF SUOIIPUOD B Yum douejduico salinbal ywded 230 MEMeplS Y juliag aled Memspls

“3p05 ALY 9UL J0 68-ZZ "09S LI SOUEBPICIOE UL payjoass jo pepuedsns ag Ael asn 10 S1eOliHes Y s@Sf) 10 Sleoual

“{epon Ao 091-28 "988) SINLL TV LV N33S

39 AV Li IHIHM FO0V1d ¥ NI STSiNTHd 3HL NO 3AVdSId Ad LSni LdI30dd Xyl ssaANisnd SiHi disoay
Xe] sseu|sng oA §] ‘mojoq peisi| sopod Alobejeo sssuisng SUi U0 paseq USIAI0P SIYL adiessy xel ssausng

-(siqeondde 31) HuLIBd JoY2fY SINOY PapUSME tojpue feiqeoidde i) uutled 9led iEmepls (aiqeodde H) esn
10 S1ROHIMeY) fXe) ssallsng jeso Jnok 10y s89} JO wawifed Bujouspine 1diasey ssauisng 120¢-0202 INOA s peyoeny
MG, PABTOET
HOVIg WIvd 1S3IM SEOIAYES INIHHOTEASA 40 INSWIRVCID

‘EIEn HOVRS INIVd LS3M 40 ALD

Dl



mmm  PROJECT LISTING

All-Site Construction has worked for the past 10 years with the Job Order Contract
and BSO CMAR Minor Services Contract performing the same scope of Work
inclusive of construction, maintenance and management services, engineering,
designing, estimating, bidding, inspections and construction administration.

PALM BEAGH COUNTY CONVENTION CENTER GARAGE
WEST PALM BEACH, FL

This project consists of the new construction of a nine-level, cast-
in-place concrete parking garage in the existing surface parking
lot of the Palm Beach Convention Center in West Palm Beach,
Fla. Capacity for 2,650 cars.

Services Provided: CMAR Partner  Sjze:

944,140 SF
Owner's Rep
John Chesher 2633 Vista Parkway
West Palm Beach, FL 33411 Initial Cost: $45.7M
561.233.0266 Final Cost: $45M BROgEﬂ[iRElEVANGE
Design Firm Contact: Date of Completion: - ¥ LasT 5 Yeass
Fernando Del Dago, Leo Daily
561.688.2111 March 2017

DEPARTMENT OF JUVENILE JUSTICE FENCE REPLACEMENT

No Climb fence replacement PROJEGT RELEVANCE
v CMAR
Services Provided: CMAR v Last 5Vears

Owner's Rep

Mr, Greg Avant

Construction Projects Consultant (|

Florida Department of luvenile Justice

Bureau of General Services

Office: 850-717-2752

Mobile: 850-251-0532
Gregory.avant@djj.state.fl.us ;

Initial Cost: $195K
Final Cost: $250K due to Owner added scope.

Date of Completion:
May 2021

N'Ie?;zsugng STATE OF FLORIDA // CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 9

D1



mmms PROJECT LISTING

PORT OF PALM BEAGH 3RD FLOOR BUILD OUT
RIVIERA BEACH, FL

Renovations to Owner Occupied Buiiding

Services Provided: Design Build

Owner's Rep PROJECT RELEVANCE
Jose Soler v LasT 5 YEARS

2001 Broadway, Suite 300
Riviera Beach, FL
561.383.4133

¥ Occuriep Facumy

Design Firm
Daniel Diaz, D&Q Studio
786.239.1322

Size;
4,000 SF

initial Cost: $360K
Final Cost: $370K due to Owner Change Orders

Date of Completion:
February 2018

OKEEHEELEE PARK SOUTH BOAT LAUNCH & RESTROOM FACILITY
WEST PALM BEACH, FL

Construction of a lakeside boat ramp/ dock, an 800 SF new
restroom building, paved car and boat trailer parking areas and PROJEGT RELEVANCE
associated site improvements. v CMAR
v LasT 5 YeARs
Services Provided: Construction Manager ¥ UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
¥ |NFRASTRUCTURE
Owner's Rep
Andy Gamble
2633 Vista Parkway
West Palm Beach, FL 33411
561,233.2055
Design Firm

Scott Barber, CH2MHILL
954-351-9256

Size: 840 SF Restroom Facility

Initial Cost: $1.08 M
Final Cost: $1.1 M

Date of Completion:
June 2018

ALL-SITE

&

STATE OF FLORIDA // CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES

10

58



mmme=  PROJECT LISTING

RIVIERA BEACH MARINA VILLAGE DEVELOPMENT
RIVIERA BEACH, FL

This project consists of 28-acres of redevelopment, including
new streets, sidewalks, extensive infrastructure, utility
improvements, a new community building, an upgraded and
reprogrammed bicentennial park with an interactive water
playground, concessions pavilion and a boardwalk/promenade
tying the site to the recently renovated marina. This project was
designed and certified at LEED silver design standards.

Services Provided: CMAR Partner

<R Initial Cost: $25.7M
Owner's Rep Final Cost: $28M due to

Scoft Evans
2001 Broadway, Suite 300 Owner Scope Changes

Riviera Beach, FL 33404
551-844-3408

Date of Completion:

April 2016 PROJECT RELEVANGE

v CMAR
v LasT 5 YEaRs
v INFRASTRUCTURE

Design Firm Contact:
Mark Clary, Song & Associates
561.329.3808

Size:
Event Center = 33,000 SF, Site = 958,320 SF,

CUNNINGHAM PARK
FALM BEAGH COUNTY

Resurfacing of basketball courts, bathroom construction, fence
installation, site lighting, site amenities {benches, playground
equipment, shade sails, bike rack, pavilions, shelters), entry sign, PROJECT RELEVANGE
and walkways. v CMAR

¥ |AsT 5 Yeans

Services Provided: Construction Manager

Owner's Rep

Mr. Richard Blankenship, Director
Cunningham Park

Riviera Beach Parks and Recreation
Office: 561-845-3411

Mobile: 561-315-8332
rblankenship@rivierabch.com

Design Firm Contact:
Liz Colome
561.833.9147

Size: 3.5 Acres

Initial Cost: $1,8%56,679
Final Cost: $2,041,885 due to Owner Change Orders

Date of Completion:
December 2018

STATE OF FLORIDA // CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 11

A



14 nwcm_u._m_mu yoeag uijed
2UNS SNIIS 4o ueuwoeg 00LS

Jabeuey uononAsuUoY) adA L
0202 psiejdwo)
UOI[IIN 2'¢$ 13S0 Jeuld

salljioe]

wiooJ1sal pue ‘uone|jeisul

uonels ssaujll ‘punolbAeld

‘syped Bop yum Mled Alunwiwiod
S9JOB G B JO UONONJISUOD MBN

LOJONASU0D
LIoOJ}Sa)Y MON -

e R
13drodd

Mg UoBag Wied 1S9 —ied Uoly O-Z un




w4 STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

EZRA SAFFOLD

EDUCATION

Bachelors of Business- FAU
1999

Associate of Arts- Palm Beach
State College 1997

Certified General Contractor-
CGC1526181

AGC Board Member

EXPERIENCE

20 Years, President of All-Site
Construction

30 Years of related work
experience with other firms.

OFFICE LOCATION
West Palm Beach- Executive
aversight of alf projects

EDUCATION

BS in Accounting,
Lehigh University-
1969

EXPERIENCE

3 Years with All-Site
Construction

30 Years of related work
experience with other firms.

R ALL-SITE

PRESIDENT & PROJECT EXECUTIVE

As Project Exacutive for All-Site Construction, Ezra Saffold will be responsible for
overseeing day to day operations of the firm including assisting the project team in all

matters pertaining to the project.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Department of Juvenile Justice Fence Replacement | $205 K

PBC Convention Center Parking Garage- WPB | 540 M

Riviera Beach Marina Event Center- Riviera Beach [ $25 M

PBC Okeeheelee Boat Launch & New Restroom- WPB | $1,084,000 M

PBC Fire Station #42 Interior Renovations- Delray Beach | $870,570.00 '
Solid Waste Authority Unattended Scale Installation- WPB | $656,205.00

Port of Palm Beach 4th Flcor Buildout- Riviera Beach | $369,000.00

Village of Royal Palm Beach RV Storage Lot | $1.7 Million

PBC Bill Bailey Community Center- Gym Renovations- WPB | $130,415.00

PBC Westgate Gym Weatherproofing- WPB | $105,605.00

JAY ZUCKERMAN, LEED AP

SZIHOR CHIES ESTIMATOR

As a Senior chief Estimator for All-Site Construction, Jay will be working with the

design team to develop budgets and schedules as well as trade scopes as the design
progresses. He will also provide constructibility reviews, value analysis, and cost
modeling during the desfgn process. His responsibilities will also include reviewing
trade quotations and making recommendations for selection. In the construction
process, Jay will assist the Project Manager and Site Superintendent to ensure that the
work is being performed in accordance with the design intent.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Department of Juvenile Justice Fence Replacement | $205 K

Jupiter Farms Elementary School, Bathroom Renovations, Palm Beach Co., FL. |
§2 Million

Lighthouse Elementary School, Bathroom Renovations, Palm Beach €o., FL [ $2
Million

PBC Okeeheelee Boat Launch, Restroom/ Boat: Launch, Palm Beach Co., FL |
51.8 Million

Cunningham Park, New Park with Restroom Building, & Playground, Palm Beach
Ca., FL | 51.5 Million

Lake Worth Middle School, New School, Palm Beach Co., FL | $12 Million

Marina Gardens Town Homes, New Construction, Palm Beach Co., FL | $26
Million

John D. MacArthur Beach State Park — New Park, Palm Beach Co., FL [ 55

Million STATE OF FLORIDA // CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 14

(o}



== (4 STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

FELICIA SAFFOLD-TURNER

EDUCATION

BS in Business Management
AS in Cading and Insurance

EXPERIENCE

4 Years, Junior
Estimator at All-Site
Canstruction

4 Years, Administration
Assistant at All-Site
Canstruction

OFFICE LOCATION

West Palm Berch — Estimnator
PROFESSIONAL

OSHA Certified

Certiffed Estimating - AGC

EDUCATION

Master of Architecture —
Forida A&M University.
Project Management
Professional {PMP}
Commercial Building
Inspector {[CC-B2)

State of Florida Registered
Architect, AR97856

LEED Associate

EXPERIENCE

3 Years with All-Site
Construction

21 Years of related work
experience with other finns.

OFFICE LOCATION
West Palm Beach - Senior
Project Manager

ALL-SITE

..

JUNIOR ESTIMATOR

Felicia has been with All-Site for (7] years with (3} years working in estimating and
is experienced with blueprint reading, trade identification, Microsoft Office, and
all preconstruction activities during the estimating process. Felicia will work with
the team to develop scopes and assist with cost analysis. Felicia will be responsible

for issuing bid advertisements, coerdination of pre-bid meetings and bid openings.

She is also the documentation control specialist as it pertains to the estimating and
construction phases of the projects. Additionally, she handles accounts recefvables and
payables for the projects.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

= Department of luvenile Justice Fence Replacement | 5205 K

s SWA Switchgear Replacement & Upgrades | $1.2 Million

+ Supervisor of Elections — Interfor Renovations | $400,000.00
« Sabal Palm /High Ridge School | $600,000.00

s LC Swain Middle Schooi | $200,000.00

e Broward Health Corporate Office Renovations | $1.5Miliion
» Northshore/Citywide ADA | $1.8M

+ Emergency Operations Center [ $280,303.00

» QOkeeheelee Ski Slalom | $383,000.00

ANSON STUART, LEED ASSOCIATE

SENIOR PROJECT MANAGER

As an Architect and Construction Project Manager, Ansor Stuart is uniquely positioned
to manage projects from initial inception through project close out. And his years of
experience as an owner’s rep makes him sensitive to issues of ime, quality and cost.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE
» Department of Juvenile Justice Fence Replacement | $205 K

e lupiter Farms Elementary School, Bathroom Renovations, CMAR, Paim Beach Co.,
FLISIM

¢ Lighthouse Elementary School, Bathroom Renovations, CMAR, Palm Beach Co., FL
|$2M

e Bodden Town Primary School, 10,710 SF| $2.5 M

» Sirlohn A. Cumber Primary School, 10,710 SF| $2.5 M
* Florida Memorial University Phase 2, 9,000sf | 51.8 M
»  North Hialeah Elementary School, 5,500 SF | $1.2 M

s Kelsey L. Pharr Elementary Scheool, 3,000 sf | ST M

STATE OF FLORIDA // CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 15

(02



wmmmm 04 STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

WILLIAM NEESE

PROJECT MANAGER

William has over 24 years’ experience in project management. His responsibilities are
to chart the project development plan and ta develop the project plan. In addition to
coordinating projects with all All-Site’s projfect superintendents and project managers
to ensure that the project process is managed efficiently without budget cost overages
and time stipulated slippages. He also oversees performance of all tradesmen and
rpUCATION  Feviews drawings to make sure that all specifications and regulations are being

Mohile Equipment Opesator  followed.

Certificate — United Rentals
Company —10/2020 RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Licensed Storm Water ®  Department of Juvenile Justice Fence Replacement | $205 K
Discharge inspector— Flarida . .
DEP #7109-03/2020 © USACE Indian Prairie Canal 1&2 HHD Levee | 528 M

OSHA30hourcard— e USACE Indian Prairie Canal 3 HHD Levee [ 518 M
Qccupational Heatth and
Safety Adminstration  ®  SWA Switchgear & Bldg. Upgrades | $1.2 Million

-12/2020  ,  Northshore/Citywide ADA | $1.8M

EXPERIENCE * Okecheelee Ski Slalom [ $383,000.00
zyearctﬁshujﬂugﬁ » Emergency Operations Center | $280,303.00
25 Years of related work
experience with other firms.

OFFICE LOCATION
West Palm Beach ~Project
Manager

EZRA SAFFOLD JR.

PROJECT ENGINEER

As a Project Engineer for Ali-Site Construction, Inc. Ezra Ir. is responsible for overseeing
documentation and project related activities. He will assist the project manager
with managing construction costs to eliminate cost overages. Ezra will also assist the

Superintendent with vendor and supply scheduling.

EDUCATION/ RELEVANT PROIJECT EXPERIENCE

CERTIFICATIONS ; .
B.A. Business Management « Department of Juvenile Justice Fenee Replacement | $205 K

and Communications—  ® Wellington landing Middle School | $67,374.00
Northem llinois UnWersity  Gtinger Ray — PBIA — Interior Renovation | $300,000.00

EXPERIENCE -
2Years, Profect Engineer at * PBIA Concourse C— Fire proofing | $169,312.00

AllSite Construction  *  Viero Beach Hotel and Spa- Exterior Renovations | $297,441.00

OFFICELDCATION *  Bear Lakes Middle School | $487,306.84
West Palm Beach- Project
Engineer

ALL-SITE
s STATE OF FLORIDA // CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 16

N



04 STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

ROBERT "BOBBY" MASON

SUPERINTENDENT

Bobby has been a site construction superintendent for over 37 years andis
experienced in all phases of construction. Bobby will be responsible for quality
control assurance, day-to-day supervision of all trades, daily construction logs, ensure
adequate manpower, safety, progress meetings with trades, schedule adherence,
punchout, and closeout.

EDUCATION/
cermiFicanions  RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE
Canstruction Management
CEatFlorida Instituteof ~ »  Jupiter Farms Elementary School, Bathroom Renaovations, CMAR, Palm Beach Co.,
Technology FL|$4M
General Contractors . . )
supervisorylicense-  *  Bill Bailey Community Center | $130K
MAD49563

Lighthouse Elementary School, Bathroom Renovations, CMAR, Palm Beach Co., FL

Home [nspector Certification [$2M

Cunningham Park, New Park with Restroom Building & Playground, Palm Beach
Co., FL | $1.9 Miflion

Riviera Beach Community Center, New Building, Palm Beach Co., FL [ $1.3 Milliont

EXPERIENCE -
4 Years, Superintendent at
All-Site Construction
38Yearsof relsted work  «
experience with other firms.

OFFICE LOCATION
West Palm Beach-
Supetintendent

PROFESSIONAL
OSHA Certified

TOM JORDAN

SUPERINTENDENT

Tom will host weekly safety compliance training/meetings, review and document
safety incidents, maintain safety reports, inspect worksites and work conditions for
safety, enforce Contractor and client safety policies and guidelines in accardance with
OSHA regulations

EDUCATION/
CERTIFICATIONS

Hallandale Trade School,
Certified Electrical Technician .

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

City of West Palm Beach Northshore City-wide ADA fmprovements | S M
expeRiENcE = °  Riviera Beach Heights Sidewalk Improvements | $785,139
35 years i
2 All Site Constrordion * Paim Beach County Okeeheelee Ski Slalom [ $383,000
» ity of West Palm Beach Solid Waste Authority Switchgear & Building | 51.2 M
OFFICE LOCATION . - . .
West palm Beach- = Supervisor of Elections Interior Renovations | $300,000
Superintendent o  Broward Health Office | $1.2 M

PROFESSIONAL
OSHA Certified

. A!'!-,‘;.,Sm!;rn...!z STATE OF FLORIDA // CONSTRUCTION MARAGEMENT SERVICES 17

o



meven (04 STAFF QUALIFICATIONS

PIERRE WILSON

PROJECT ENGINEER

EDUCATICN/
CERTIFICATIONS

B.A. Criminal Justice, Kent
State University, 2003

EXPERIENCE

1 Year, Project Engineer at
All-Site Construction

4 Years of related work
experience with other
firms.

OFFICE LOCATION
West Palm Beach- Project
Engineer

EDUCATION/
CERTIFICATIONS

MD in Economics — National
University of Asuncion
Enroll Agent —Tax
Professional

EXPERIENCE

3 months Financial
Administrator with All-Site
Construction

27 years Accountant
Controller —with other firms.

PROFESSIONAL
OSHA 10 Certificate

As a Project Engineer for All-Site Canstruction, Inc. Pierre is responsible for averseeing
documentation and praject related activities. He will assist the project manager with
managing construction costs to eliminate cost overages. Pierre will also assist the
Assistant Project Manager with vendor and supply scheduling.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Wellington Landing Middie Schoal | 567,374.00
Stinger Ray — PBIA — Interior Renovation [ $300,000.00
PBIA Concourse C—Fire proofing | $169,312.00

SYLVIA C. HOLLAND

FINANCIAL ADMINISTRATOR

Silvia has been an Accountant Controller for All-Site for (3} months and has expetience
in construction accounting and administration. Silvia will be responsible maintain
accurate records, create financial reports and perform analysis. She will be managing
the administrative process an hudgeted projects. Additionally, she handlfes accounts
receivables and payables for the projects.

RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

* SWA Switchgear Replacement & Upgrade { 51.2 Million

+ Supervisor of Elections — Interior Renovations | $400,000.00
s Sabal Palm fHigh Ridge School | $600,000.00

s LC Swain Middle Schoaol | $200,000.00

s Broward Health Corporate Office Renovations | $1.5Million

STATE OF FLORIDA // CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT SERVICES 18

(0D



SUBCONTRACTORS LIST

PROJECT NAME: WESTGATE DOG PARK

7/26/21
PROJECT NUMBER: 2021-01 DATE:

A list of all subcontractors to be utilized on the project shall be provided herein. This list of
subcontractors shall be included with the bid submittal. Failure to complete this form renders the
proposal informal and may cause its rejection. The contractor shall complete all categories that

apply.

The purpose of this list is to discourage "sub-shopping" in general, and to provide a basis for the
implementation of the substitution provisions of this Contract. The receipt of this Attachment in no
way constitutes approval or disapproval by the Westgate CRA of any subcontractor listed.

Each subcontractor must hold a current Palm Beach County license as may be required for the
purpose of performing the specified work for which they are listed. Each subcontractor listed and
submitted with the bid proposal by the successful bidder will not be changed without prior written
approval of the Westgate CRA. Owner consideration will be given only when the change is a benefit to
the project and, therefore, the Westgate CRA, or, when the absence of a change would be a detriment
to the project by impacting the ability of the Contractor to complete his/her contract obligations.

Following are the subcontractors to be used if the undersigned is awarded the contract.

TRADE NAME _ LICENSE NO.
Clearing/Grubbing fﬁ | I’SH‘{_, C—C(\S{—{Lb(_":hc&h CC’}C 169‘(11 '
Grading/Berming Al Sae
Concrete PSS orshrudsion
tandscaping/Sod Al ovoove SCARWDA0& T
Irrigation D Cob  Goove Qrvr 21162 04971
Fencing xane N Fenct 21150874

Other {if cost exceeds 10% of Bid amount)

All-site Constructitg@?c

e

BIDDING CONTRA

Name of Fir

/]
N

Address: 2915 E Tamarind Ave West Palm(geach FL
561-848-1110 Ezra@allsiteinc.net
Phone: Email Address: a@allsiteinc.ne

00430-1



OEBO LETTER OF INTENT - SCHEDULE 2

A_completed Schedule 2 is a binding document between the Prime Contractor/consultant and a Subcontractor/subconsuitant (for
any tier) and should be treated as such. The Schedule 2 shall contain bolded language indicating that by signing the Schedule 2

both parties recognize this_Schedule as z_binding document. All Subcontractors/subconsultants, including any tiered
Subcontractors/subconsultants, must properly execute this document. Each properly executed Schedule 2 must be submitted with
the bid/proposal.

SOLICITATION/PROJECT NUMBER: 202101
SOLICITATION/PROJECT NAME: YVestgate Dog Park

All-Site Construction Inc Daniels Fence

Prime Contractor;

(Check box(s) that apply} \g{
Q0SBE OWBE OMBE [OM/WBE & Non-S/M/WBE Date of Palm Beach County Certification (if applicable}:

Subcontractor:

The undersigned affirms they are the following {select one from each column if applicable}:

Column 1 Column 2 \/ Column 3
\ET Male OFemale 0 African-American/Black D Asian American Caucasian American O Supplier

¢t Hispanic American O Native American s

S{M/WBE PARTICIPATION —'5/M/WBE Primes must document all work to.be performed by thelr own work force on this form. Failure to submit a
properly executed Schedule 2 for any S/M/WBE participation may result in that participation not being counted. Specify in detail, the scope of work
to be performed or items supplied with the dollar amount and/or percentage for each work item. S/M/WEE credit will only be given for the areasin
which the S/M/WBE is certified. A detailed proposal may be attached to a properly executed Schedule 2.

Line Item Description Unit Price | Quantity/ Contingencies/ Total Price/Percentage
Item Units Allowances

Fencing 20987

The undersigned Subcontractor/subconsultant is prepared to self-perform the above-described work in conjunction with the aforementioned project

at the following total price or percentage: 20987

If the undersigned intends to subcontract any portion of this work to another Subcontractor/subconsultant, please list the business name and the
amount below accompanied by a separate properly executed Schedule 2.

Price or Percentage:

Name of 2M/3" tier Subcontractor/subconsultant

II-Site ConstRyction Daniels Fence
Print Ngme of Prime Print Name of Subcontractor/subconsultant
‘_r'ﬁg/%ﬂﬂp 0 a; RENEE Caron
Althorized Si@tuﬂ \.A Authorized Signature

Ezra Saffold Renee Caron

Print Name Print Name

President Estimator
Title Title

e 7126121 oare 7126121

Revised 09/17/201%

Gl




OEBOC LETTER OF INTENT — SCHEDULE 2

A completed Schedule 2 is a binding document between the Prime Contractor/consultant and a Subcontractor/subconsultant (for
any tier) and should be treated as such. The Schedule 2 shall contain bolded language indicating that by signing the Schedule 2

both parties recognize this Schedule as a binding document. All Subcontractors/subconsultants, including any tiered
Subcontractors/subconsultants, must properly execute this document. Each properly executed Schedule 2 must be submitted with
the bid/proposal.

SOLICITATION/PROJECT NUMBER: 202101
SOLICITATION/PROJECT NAME: YVestgate Dog Park

prime Contractor: PI-Site Construction Inc A Cut Above

Check box{s) that appl
SBE OWBE DOMBE 0OM/WBE ONon-S/M/WBE Date of Palm Beach County Certification {if applicable):

Subcontractor:

The undersigned affirms they are the following (select one from each column if applicable):

Column 1 Colurmn 2 Column 3
Male O Female O African-American/Black 0O Asian American Caucasian American [ Supplier
[ Hispanic American 0 Native American

5/M/WBE PARTICIPATION —S/M/WBE Primes must document all work to be pérformed by their own work force on:thls form, Failure to submita
properly executed Schedule 2 for any S/M/WBE participation may result in that participation not being counted, Specify in detall, the scope of work
to be performed or items supplied with the dollar amount and/or percentage for each work item. S/M/WBE credit will only be given for the areasin
which the 5/M/WBE is certified. A detailed proposal may be attached to a properly executed Schedule 2.

Line Item Description Unit Price Quantity/ Contingencies/ Total Price/Percentage
Item Units Allowances

Landscape & Irrigation 39792.85

The undersigned Subcontractor/subconsultant is prepared to self-perform the above-described work In conjunction with the aforementioned project
at the following total price or percentage: 39792.85

If the undersigned intends to subcontract any portion of this work to another Subcontractor/subconsultant, please list the business name and the
amount below accompanied by a separate properly executed Schedule 2,

Price or Percentage:

Name of 2r/3rd tier Subcontractor/subconsultant

AII-Sité&pns’cruction / A Cut Above
int Name ofPrime Print Name of Subcontractor/subconsultant

i /{) 5. ENEYda Gomez
u--"Jiuthalﬁied[vgignature Authorized Signature

Ezra Saffold Eneyda Gomez

Print Name Print Name

President Estimator

Title Title

e 7126121 o 7126121

Revised 09/17/2019

(0D



Vendor Information

Vendor ID: VVC0000009701

Legal Business Name: A Cut Above Landscape & Maintenance, Inc. Alias/DBA:
Adress(es): 1686 D ROAD, LOXAHATCHEE 33470 Contact({s): ENEYDA GOMEZ 561-795-1995
1686 D Rd, Loxahatchee 33470-4862
Email(s): eneyda@acalandscape.net WebSite:

L T
: A

R ARk
[rrigation Systems Maintenance and Repair

06888 Tree and Shrub Removal Services
98836 Grounds Maintenance: Mowing, Edging, Plant (Not Tree) Trimmi
98852 Landscaping {Including Design, Fertilizing, Planting, etc.,

Type: SBE
Business Owner(s): Damon Rockett
Race: White Gender: Male

93437

96888 Tree and Shrub Removal Services
98836 Grounds Maintenance: Mowing, Edging, Plant {Not Tree) Trimmi
98852 Landscaping (Including Design, Fertilizing, Planting, etc.,

Note: The Office of Equal Business Opportunity (OEBQ) requires current licensure at the time of certification, but does not
guarantee the continued existence of any license held by a certified small business. The users of this directory should
investigate the continuance of such credentials, OEBO does not accept liability for any loss or damage caused by
errors, changes or omissions.

7/26/2021 1:02:31 PM  Page 1 of 1

(A



2019 02/11/2019

2020 01/15/2020
2021 04/10/2021
Document Images

04/10/2021 — ANNUAL REPORT
04/15/2020_— ANNUAL REPORT
— ANN
01/15/2018 —~ ANNUA, REPORT
01/08/2017 -- ANNUAL REPORT

02/15/2016 ~ ANNUAL REPORT
02/09/2045 = ANNUAL REPORT
03/28/20114 -~ ANNUAL REPORT
03/07/2013 -- ANNUAL REPORT

4/10/2012 - REPORT

03/28/2011 - ANNUAL REPORT
01/04/2010 - Domestic Profit

View image in PDF format

View image in PDF format

View image in PDF format

\lew Image in PDF farmat

View image in PDF format

View image in PDF format

View image in PDF format

View image in PDF format

View image In PDF format

View image in PDF format

View image in PDF format

View image in PDF format

10



WESTOATER

AR MR

B

Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 13, 2021

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

EZ Express Car Wash
1098 N. Military Trail
Military Belvedere Shopping Center (Walmart Plaza MUPD)

DRO Site Plan Approval for a Car Wash
Control No. 1992-23

Location Map - impacted outparcel

Page [ 1
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 13, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 » www.westgatecra.org

1)



Site Background

The subject site is an outparcel at the Walmart Plaza, located on the northeast corner of N. Military Trail
and Belvedere Rd. The Walmart Plaza is approximately 22.4 acres in total and consists of four buildings:
the anchor tenant, a Walmart Supercenter, a vacant restaurant, a Murphy Express gas station, and a
vacant Walgreen’s pharmacy. The application requests the redevelopment of the vacant restaurant
parcel into an automatic car wash.

The overall site was originally zoned for multifamily and general commercial development, but was
rezoned to exclusively CG in 1993 via R-1993-0508. In 1997, the site plan accompanying R-1983-0508
was amended to increase the site area to 25 acres, and added a Lowe’s as a proposed use. R-2001-1667
rezoned the overall site from CG to MUPD. The final resolution governing the overall site is R-2003-03940,
which amended the site plan 1o allow the existing Walmart Supercenter as the anchor development, and
reduced the size of the MUPD to 22.4 acres. The current total square footage of the MUPD is 209,734
sf., and the total area of the outparcel affected by the proposed redevelopment is 0.68 acres or 29,538
sf.

The entire site is within the UH {Urban Highway) Sub-area of the WCRAQ, and is zoned MUPD (Multiple
Use Planned Development) with a Future Land Use designation (FLU) of CH/8 (commercial high with an
underlying residential land use of 8 du’s/acre). The site is in the URA (Urban Redevelopment Area), the
U/S (Urban/Suburban) Tier, and in the Westgate CCRT area. There are Vehicle Sales & Rental Uses to the
north on Military Trail (zoned CG/SE with a CH/8 FLU). To the west, across N. Military Trail is the Town of
Haverhill, to the south, across Belvedere Rd. is a KFC Restaurant (zoned CC/SE with a CH FLU), and to the
is vacant PBIA gwned land zoned PO with a Transit/Utilities (U/T) FLU.

Proposed Redevelopment - EZ Express Automatic Car Wash

The applicant proposes to redevelop the ocutparcel located to the north adjacent to the existing Murphy
Express Gas Station. The existing site is a vacant, abandoned 1,893 sf. Type It Restaurant. The project
would demolish the existing restaurant structure, reconfigure access and parking, to construct an
automated EZ Express Car Wash consisting of a 2,700 sf. wash tunnel, with 2 pay stations, and 16 self-
service vacuum stations.

All other areas within the MUPD are to be unaffected as a part of the application. ULDC Art. 4 requires a
Car Wash use in MUPDs to be approved by the DRO. MUPD zoning standards allow for revisions to
square footage for permitted or DRO approval uses within a percentage range without requiring BCC
approval for a Development Order Amendment to the MUPD.

Page | 2
Westgale CRA Board Meeting
September 13, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

12



Summary of Petition
The application requests the following approvals:
1. Final DRO site plan approval for a 2,700 sf. Car Wash use within the Walmart Plaza MUPD; and,
2. An increase of 166 net new trips per day and 14 pm peak hour trips to be allocated from the
WCRA Transportation Concurrency Exception Area {(TCEA) pool.

Existing Conditions —outparcel with vacant restaurant at 1098 N Military Trail

Staff Analysis & Review -~ Consistency with the CRA Community Redevelopment Plan

The departure of Walgreen’s Pharmacy in 2017, and the closure of the restaurant, originally built in
1969, have negatively impacted perception of this important corner of the CRA district; vacancy is
counterproductive to redevelopment and encourages disinvestment and the furtherance of blight in the
community. This is particularly true when vacant commercial buildings front prime arterial roadways,
such as Military Trail. The Walmart Superstore is a frequently used amenity for the neighboring
residential community of Belvedere Homes and by other residents of the district. Given its acreage and
square footage, the site is considered among the highest contributors to the CRA’s TIF, which allows the
Agency to continue redevelopment activities that benefit the community.

Page | 3
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 13, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 » www.westgatecra.org



DOV LR

It should be noted that the CRA Board provided recommendation of approval for the construction of a
new Murphy Express Gas Station with Convenience Store on the MUPD outparcel currently occupied by
a vacant Walgreens Pharmacy at its March 8, 2021 meeting. This application, which did require a
Development Order Amendment, site plan abandonment, as well as Class A Conditional Use for the Fuel
& Gas Sales, is still under active review by Zoning.

While a carwash use may not be generally viewed as a catalyst to redevelopment, it is among the most
complementary uses to the Walmart Superstore, as well as to the new and improved Murphy Express
gas station and convenience store proposed for the MUPD corner parcel; each attract passer-by interest
and create internal trip capture, better activating the overall site, and generating economic
development. Once both applications are processed, and construction is complete, two new buildings
will front the corridor, and a middle +/- 0.45 ac. vacant outparcel will become available to future
redevelopment.

Sample architectural rendering

Page | 4
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 13, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 » www.westgatecra.org

2z



Consistency with WCRAO Use Regulations Sub-area PDRs

Car Wash is currently permitted in the UG {limited to lots fronting Okeechobee Blvd.), UH and Ul Sub-
areas and prohibited in all other Sub-areas of the WCRAQ. WCRAQ Sub-area use regulations for Car
Wash uses default to the PDRs of the MUPD zoning district; as stated, the use is permitted by DRO
approval in MUPDs with a CH FLU.

The intent of the UH Sub-area recognizes that Military Trail and Okeechobee Blvd are well-established,
intense commercial corridors, and as such, few property development standards are required in this sub
area by the WCRAO. Although the project is located within an MUPD zoning district, as a new
development, WCRAO UH Sub-area PDR’s are applicable to this application. The parcel is 125 ft. in
depth; a minimum of 100 ft. is required in the UH. The site has a frontage of 159 ft. where 100 ft. is
required. The site design utilizes a provision allowing for a minimum 10’ front setback in the UH Sub-
area; the carwash tunnel is set at 20 ft. from the property line. Side setback of 34 ft. and 43 ft. have
heen provided; a minimum of 15 ft. The building is oriented so that the tunnel entrance and exit do not
face Military Trail, rather the length of the tunnel at 90 ft. allows for some huilding presence and
massing. A modern design aesthetic with a parapet feature creates visual interest.

Traffic & Drainage Considerations

Since the restaurant use has been closed for several years, no credit has been applied to the trips
associated with the use. There is anticipated trip capture between the proposed car wash and the
Walmart Superstore. The project is expected to generate a de minimus net increase of 166 daily trips
and 14 net new pm peak trips to be allocated from the Westgate CRA’s Transportation Concurrency
Exception Area (TCEA) trip pool. Internal trip capture within the MUPD has been factored.

A drainage statement has been provided with the application. The site does not have an active permit
with SFWMD or the County. The proposed drainage system will be designed in accordance with Palm
Beach County Land Development and SFWMD requirements. The system will consist of a series of
interconnected catch basins and pipes to collect and convey the storm water runoff. Treatment will be
provided for in the proposed pond before discharging offsite.

Legal positive outfall wifl be provided for by piped connections to a drainage canal to the east. Drainage
leaving the proposed dry retention pond will be routed through outfall structures to meet water quality
requirements before discharging offsite into existing exfiltration system serving the western portion of
the MUPD system and ultimately the SFWMD C-10 Canal.

Page | 5
Westgate CRA Board Meeling
September 13, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 = West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 = www.westgatecra.org

15



Staff Recommendation

Staff recommends appraval of applicant’s request for:
1. Final DRO site plan approval for a 2,700 sf. Car Wash use within the Walmart Plaza MUPD; and,
2. An increase of 166 net new trips per day and 14 pm peak hour trips to be allocated from the
WOCRA Transportation Concurrency Exception Area (TCEA) pool.

Page | &
Westgate CRA Board Meeting
September 13, 2021

1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215 » West Palm Beach, Florida 33409 = 561.640.8181 » www.westgatecra.org

10



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING BIVISION

; APPLICATI@N b
‘, usuc

\/ Check Type(s) of Apphcatron Request(s) and completeas apphcable
IPUBLIC HEAR[NG REQUESTS

FORM# 1

Palm Beach County Zoning Division

2300 M. Jog Road

Wesl Palm Beach, Florida 33411
Phone: (561) 233-5200
Fax: (561) 233-5165

]  Official Zoning Map Amendment from Zoning District to Zoning District
[J with a Concurrent Land Use Amendment from Land Use to Land Use
[] Class A Conditional Use (CA) for
[0 Class B Conditional Use (CB) for:
[0 Development Order Abandonment (ABN) of Resoclution No: which allowed
O Expedited Application Consideration (EAC) for:
(| Development Order Amendment (DOA) to a previously approved:
Jcoz [J PopmDD [J ClassA [ ClassB O other:
[0 To modify and/or delete Conditions of Approval; O To add and/or delete land area;
{J To reconfigure Plan(s) {] Master (] Site [] Subdivision O To add andfor delete units;
[J Landscape [] Regulating [T Sign Plan [J To add, delete, or modify Uses;
] To add and/or delete square footage; O To add access points;
[J Other:

Suhdivision Variance: (Submif Form #43 Variance Supplemental) Concurrent []  Standalo
PO Deviations: (Submit Form #92 PQ Deviation} from Article(s)

Type 2 Variance: (Submit Form #43 Variance Supplemental) Concurrent [] Standalone []

ne (]

Pre-Application Conference (PAC) IRO or PRA:  With Questions? [ Yes [No
Type 2 Waiver: (Submit Form #19 Waiver Supplemental) Concurrent [ ] Standalone []

Unique Structure:

OO0 00 oaog

' DRO ADMINISTRATIVE REQUESTS

O Expedited Development Review Officer approval {DROE) (within 2 months of BCC/ZC approval)

Use subjecl IO Development Review OffICEI' (DRO) approval fO]’ an amendment to an existing sita plan to allaw for a car wash usa ln an
wut parca] of the averall shopping center and MUPD

[] Pre-Application Conference (PAC) - Concurrent Review: With Questions? [IYes [JNo

{J Type2ConcurrentReview: (] with Building Permit # or [Jwith Plat, Name/No.

(] Type 3 Concurrent Review (Zoning, Land Development and Building)

1 Administrative Modification to a Plan approved by the ZC / BCC/ DRO for

[1 Administrative Abandonment (ABN) of a DRO Approval

[0 Subdivision

O Transfer of Development Rights (TDR) (Submif Form #16 TDR Supplemental)

O Type 1 Waiver (Submif Form #19 Waiver Supplementaf} from Article for

O other

General Application — Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes
Page 1 of 4

Revised 7/1/2020
Web Formal 2015

N



FPALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORMN # 1

Current Property Owner{s) Name: 1052 No. Millary LLC

Address: C/O RJS Realty Group Inc. 12800 US Hwy 1 #250
State; FL

Phone; Caontact Agent

Email Address: Contact Agent

City; Juno Beach
Zip: 33408
Cell Phone: Contact Agent

Applicant’s name (if other than property owner(s): MEMNMILITARY LLC

Address: 3325 5 University Dr,, Suite 105

State: FL
Phone:; 954-931-5620

City: Davie

Z|p: 33328

Cell Phone: 954-831-5620

Email Address:

Check () here if Applicant is a contract purchaser. Consent Is required from the contract purchaser If a contract is pending to
purchase the subject preperty. Home Owners Association (HOA) or Property Owners Association (P QA) consent will
be required if subject property is under common ownership or request is to modify any aspect of the project which applies to the
entire development (L.e. condition of approval, internal roadway, etc.)

Agent:* Damian Brink Name of Firm: Bowman Consulting Group Lid.

Address; 13450 W. Sunrise Blvd., Suite 320 City: Sunrise State: FL Zip: 33323
Phone; 954-314-8480 Cell Phone #: 561-632.5387

Email Address: bewman_fti@bowman.com

Agent;* Beth Schrantz Name of Firm: Dunay, Miskel and Backman, LLP

Address: 145.E.4th Street, Sulta 36 City: Boca Raton State' FL Zip: 33432

Phone: 796-763-0565
Emait Address: bschrantz@dmbblaw.com

Cell Phone #:

* All correspondence will be sent to the Agenti(s) unless otherwise specified.

Bt asaon PONGg an saparte shem | 00-42-43-25-31-001-0060

B. *Controf Number: 1992-23

C. *Control Name : Military Belvedere Shopping Center

D. Application Number:

E. *application Name: Military Belvedere Shopping Center - Car Wash
F. Project Numher:

G. *Gross Acreage: 22.41

H. Gross Acreage of affected area: 0.6765

b &;ﬁ;}jﬁ;’;ﬁ,ﬁ;}’,,?;ﬁf,ﬁg{;;ﬁ;ﬁfgad) Northeast corner of Military Trail and Belvedere Road
J. *Address: 1098 N. Military Trail, Haverhill, FL 33409

K. *BCC District: 7

L. Overlay (Special Study Area): WBCRA & URA

M. Tier us [J REX [0 AGR [] GLADES

Current Future Land Use Proposed Future Land Use

designation: CH designation: CH
Current Zoning District: MUPD Proposed Zoning District: MUPD
Existing Use(s): Restaurant, Type 1l Proposed Use(s): Car wash
Existing Square Footage: | 1,893 Proposed Square Footage: |2,700
Existing Number of Units: [0 Proposed Number of Units: |0

General Application — Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes

Page 2 of 4

Revised 7/1/2020
Web Formal 2015

18



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM#1

This application is subject to the requirements of Article 5.C, Design Standards and request review of the
proposed elevations concurrent with:

[ Type 1 Projects Requiring BCC Approval X Type 3 Projects Requiring DRO or Site Plan Approval
[ Type 2 Projects Requiring ZC Approval £ Type 4 Projects Requiring Building Permit Approval

This application also includes request(s) for Elevation review and consideration, as indicated below:

O Revise previously approved Elevations;

] Non-conforming structures that are subjectto Article 5.C, Percentage of Renovations;
d Approval for Green Architecture (Type 7 Waiver, Art.5.C.1.E.3)

O Approval for Unique Structure (Art.5.C.1.E.2)

Note: All application documents shall be consistent with the current Technical Manual, refer to the Zoning Web Page.

Compilete the chart below fo identify the Use and Zoning information for the surrounding properties to the project

] . Existin Approved | Control #
Adjacent FLU Zoning Existing Use Approved Use Sq. ft. f,. S':: . or c;gKri

Property District | (Res, Comm, Ind, etc.) (Res, Comm, Ind, atc.) DUIAC DU/AC Potition #)

Resolution
#R_

EAST CH |MUPD| Commercial Commercial | 181,424 | 181,424 |1992-00023 | 2003-G0940

norTH | CH |MUPD| Commercial Commercial | 181,424 | 181,424 |1992-00023 | 2063-00940

soutH| CH |MUPD| Commercial Commercial 238 238 1992-00023 | 2003-00940
WEST CD"}TB C-1 Commercial Commercial 9,590 9,580 N/A N/A
rcia

£

- Is the property in compliance with all previous Conditions of Approval and applicable Code
YES NO U | Requirements? /f no, please explain in the Justification Statement,

Is the property currently the subject of Code Enforcement action?
YES O NO X If yes, provide Code Enforcement Case Number:

YES [] NO[X Will the request require modification(s) to a recorded plat or plat with Technical Compliance?
if yes, explain in the Justification Statement.

< Is the subject property an existing legal lot of record?
YES Ne O If no, submif Legal Lot Review Application fo the Land Development Division.

Does the proposed improvements exceed the allowable improvement value of the existing structure
yes [ No X as identified in ULDC, Article 12  If yes, comply with Article 1.F — Nonconformities.

o Use(s) - Phase
Building Name (as per ULDC) Footage Units Name Qutparcel
Car wash Car Wash 2,700 N/A N/A YES
General Application - Public Hearing and DRO Adminisirative Processes Revised 7/1/2020
Page 3 of 4 Web Formal 2015

19



PALM BEACH COUNTY - ZONING DIVISION FORM# 1

Concurrency Reservation [ Concurrency Equivalency Concurrency Exemption [
A. Water Provider: PBC Water Utility Department
B. Waste Water Provider: PBC Water Utility Department
C. Drainage District: Lake Worth Drainage District
D. Traffic Provider: PBC Traffic Trips Existing: 0
E. Mass Transit Provider: Palm Tran Traffic Trips Proposed:

. Number of Gross Peak Hour Trips =

F. Traffic Capacity: {If greater than 30; a traffic sludy will ba required)
G. Public School: N/A
H. Public Health Provider: Palm Beach County Well /Septic tank : N/A
1, Parks N/A
J. Fire Rescue Palm Beach County Fire Rescue - Station #24
K. Solid Waste: Solid Waste Authority
L. Check the proposed means of achieving access from the development site to a point of Legal Positive

Outfall for storm water discharged from the site:

[J Property is contiguous 1o a natural waterway, or a canal owned and operated by a water control district.

{] Property owner has legally established drainage rights 1o convey storm water through all intervening properties
between the development site and natural waterway or water control district canal.

Property abuts a road with a functioning drainage system, and property owner has obtained written confirmation
from the entity responsible for maintaining the road that the proposed development is eligible to utilize the road
drainage system, subject to meeling all permit requirements for drainage connection.

(0 Cther (specify):

ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT (ERM) — Art. 14.B.8.C

Yes [C] No If yes; a Pre-Application Appointment with ERM is required;
Enter date of PAA meeting with ERM :

Is there Native Vegetation on Site?

General Vegetation Statement:
Existing protected vegetation, if removed by proposed development, shall be mitigated in accordance with the ULDC standards.
Therefore, there will be no impacts to the natural environment if this site is develop as intended.

Existing and Proposed There is evidence of existing native vegetation to be preserved in place or

Grade/Elevation where existing mitigated. See attached tree survey and tree disposition plan.
Native Vegetation is to be preserved:

Is site in a Wellfield protection zone? |[] Yes [X]No If yes; submit Wellfield Protection Affidavit, available from ERM

HEALTH DEPARTMENT — Art.15

In Justification Statement, under heading "Hazardous Material”, address type(s) and amount of:

1) all industrial, manufacturing, special or hazardous waste that may be generated; 2) airborne pollutants that
may be generated (i.e. dust or other unconfined particulates such as NOx, SOx, CO, VOC's, heavy metals,
etc.); and, 3) any special handling of solid waste that may be required.

This application is not complete without the following documents as attachments:

1. Justification Statement: to address the purpose, project history, intent and design objectives of
this request, refer to Art.2.A.6.A.1 for the required information.

2, Status of Conditions of Approval (COA):
a. Provide letter/document which includes the status of ali current Conditions of Approval;
b. Include the exact language for any modification(s) to any Condition of Approval;
¢. [f the application request requires time extension for Commencement of Development or
recording a Plat, then provide further explanation. (This explanation may be added to the
Justification Statement.)

Note: Please refer to PZB Zoning Website for all ULDC Articles http://www.pbegov.com/ulde/index.itm
referenced in this document and the Technical Manual for helpful information

http://www.pbegov.com/techmanual/index.htm

General Application - Public Hearing and DRO Administrative Processes Revised 7172020
Page 4 of 4 Web Formal 2015



Bovwwman

JUSTIFICATION STATEMENT

Military Belvedere Shopping Center - Car Wash
Paim Beach County Development Review Officer (DRO) Application
Westgate/Belvedere Submittal: August 30, 2021

Introduction

On behalf of the Property Owner, 1098 N. MILITARY LLC (“Owner"), and the Applicant and Contract
Purchaser, M&M N MILITARY LLC (“Applicant”), Bowman Consulting Group, Ltd. and Dunay, Miskel &
Backman, LLP (“Petitioner”) respectfully requests your approval of this Development Review Officer
("DRO") application for a for a property located in unincorporated Palm Beach County, Florida. The
+0.68-acre (29,538.04 S.F.) subject property (PCN: 00-42-43-25-31-001-0060) is located on the east
side of N Military Trail just north of Belvedere Road within the Military Belvedere Shopping Center
MUPD (“subject property"). The Applicant seeks to redevelopment the subject property into an express
car wash including a 2,700 square-foot wash tunnel and sixteen self-service vacuum stations. This
project was the subject of pre-application meetings with both Palm Beach County Zoning staff on May
28, 2021 and with Westgate CRA staff on August 19, 2021.

Currently, the subject property supports Future Land Use designations of Commercial High (CH) and
within the Multiple Use Planned Development (MUPD) zoning district. The subject property is also
within the Westgate/Belvedere Community Redevelopment Area (“CRA") overlay and within the Urban
Highway (UH) subdistrict. A car wash use is a DRO use per Article 4 of the Palm Beach County Unified
Land Development Code (“ULDC"). The subject property currently contains a 1,893 square-foot
restaurant building, which be demolished as part of the redevelopment of the property. The latest site
plan of record with Palm Beach County is Military Belvedere Shopping Center (Control 1992-23) -
Exhibit No. 52 approved on July 23, 2003. The latest Palm Beach County Board of County
Commissioners approval was on July 22, 2003 (Resolution R-2003-940). It should be noted that there
are active applications for a Development Order Amendment, Class A Conditional Use, and
Abandonment (Application No. CA/ABN/DOA-2021-00249) submitted by Dunay, Miskel & Backman,
LLP who is also lisied as a Petitioner on this DRO application.

Below is a summary of surrounding properties:

Adjacent .
Lands Uses FLU Zoning

Subject

Property Restaurant Type 2 CH MUPD
North Retail (Walmart) CH MUPD

Gas and Fuel, Retail & Convenience Store (Murphy
South Express Gas station and Convenience Store) CH MUPD
East Retail (Walmart) CH MUPD
Commercial Shopping Center with (Retail, . 4%

West Restaurant, Liquor Store and personal services) Commercial C-1

*Town of Haverhill

13450 W. Sunrise Boulevard, Suite 320, Sunrise, Florida 33323
P: 954.314.8480 | F: 954.332.2301
bowman.com

3N



Request
The Applicant is requesting approval of this DRO application for:

* A Development Review Officer (DRO) Use to allow a car wash on the subject property;
The purpose of this applications is to redevelopment the site into a 2,700 square-foot car wash tunnel,
sixteen (16) self-service vacuum stations, 2 pay stations and two (2) employee parking spaces. The
Applicant is proposing to demolish the existing building and parking lot. Every effort was made to

preserve in place the existing trees on the site but due to the size of the property (under % of an acre)
a few trees will need to be removed. See attached Tree Disposition Plan for further information.

Development Review Officer (DRO) Administrative Review Standards

When considering a DO application that are subject to the Administrative Approval processes, the DRO
shall utilize the Standards a through ¢ indicated below:

a. Consistency with the Plan
The proposed use is consistent with the purposes, goals, objectives and policies in the Plan,
including standards for densities, and intensities of use.

Response: The proposed car wash use is consistent with the purposes, goals, objectives and
policies of the County’s Comprehensive Plan. The subject property is within the Commercial
High (CH) Future Land Use designation, which is intended for commercial uses like the
proposed car wash. This DRO application is consistent with the following Comprehensive Plan
Policies:

Objective 1.1 Managed Growth Tier System, #5. Facilitate and support infill development and
revitalization and redevelopment activity through coordinated service delivery and infrastructure
upgrades;

Response: This objective encourages infill development and redevelopment activity, which is
exactly what this DRO application is requesting. The subject property was developed with a
restaurant use but unfortunately has closed and the property is used for temporary food trucks
from time to time. By allowing this DRO use of a car was in this location it will eliminate the
blight caused by a vacant commercial building and allow this property to once again be part of
this vibrant community.

Policy 1.2-b: Palm Beach County shall encourage and support sustainable urban development,
including restoration, infilf and adaptive reuse.

Response: The subject property is located within the Military Belvedere Shopping Center MUPD
at the northeast corner of N Military Trail and Belvedere Road. Unfortunately, adaptive reuse of
the existing building has not been achieved since the restaurant closed years ago. The
property’s continued vacancy has rendered it effectively an infill parcel that requires
redevelopment in order to prevent the foreseeable blight that occurs when a commercial space
remains vacant for a long period of time. Therefore, the opportunity to redevelop this property
is necessary {o revitalize an active corner of a major intersection in Palm Beach County. The
proposed DRO application is requesting to allow a car wash in this outparcel with required
landscaping and buffering to ensure that the property is redeveloped consistent with the
surrounding properties.

bowman.com

B2



b. Consistency with the Code
The proposed use or amendment is not in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is consistent
with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.

Response: The proposed Conditional Uses comply with all applicable standards and provisions
of this Code for use, layout, function, and general development characteristics and all applicable
portions of Article 4.B, Use Classification. The proposed uses are consistent with ULDC Articles
2,3,4,5,6, 7 and 8 as shown on the preliminary site plan and detailed below:

Article 2: The proposed uses are consistent with Article 2 as it relates to the DRO administrative
review procedures and application requirements.

Article 3: The proposed uses are consistent with Article 3 as it relates to the MUPD zoning
district, as well as the Westgate CRA Overlay specifically:

The proposed use meets the intent of ULDC Table 3.B.14.E — WCRAQO Sub-area Use
Regulations in that a Car Wash is permitted subject to supplementary standards listed in
4B.2.C.4.

The proposed use meet the intent of ULDC Table 3.B.14.F — WCRAQO Non-Residential and
Mixed Use Sub-area PDRs, in that the preliminary site plan:
* Meets the minimum setbacks for UH as follows:
o Front or Side Street: 10 feet Min. (20 feet provided);
o Side: 15 feet Min. (34.4 feet provided); and
o Rear: 25 feet (125.8 feet provided).

Article 4: The proposed uses are consistent with Article 4 as it relates to the use regulations,
specifically in Article 4.B.2.C.4 — Car Wash as outlined below:

4. Car Wash

a. Definition

A permanent establishment engaged in washing or detailing motor vehicles which may use
preduction line methods with a conveyor, blower, or other mechanical devices, and which may
employ some hand labor. Detailing includes hand washing and waxing, striping, and interior
cleaning.

b. Typical Uses

A Car Wash may include but is not limited to an automatic, full-service, hand wash, or self-
service Car Wash. Response: The proposed car wash is an automatic express with self-
service vacuum stations.

c. Collocated — CG, PDD with CH FLU Designation
A Car Wash may be Permitted by Right when collocated with a Retail Gas and Fuel Sales
establishment. — Response: N/A

d. Accessory Use — CL FLU Designation

An Automatic Car Wash may be allowed as an accessory use to a Retail Gas and Fuel Sales
subject to DRO Approval when it is located on the same lot. Auto detailing or other extended
services shall be prohibited. — Response: N/A

e. Zoning District — TMD
A maximum of one Car Wash may be allowed. The Car Wash shall be located outside the main

bowman.com

25



street, and may be accessed from a secondary street, alley or from a parking lot. The Car Wash
shall not be visible from the main street. - Response: N/A

Article 5. The proposed car wash is consistent with Article 5 Supplementary Use Standards,
specifically the following:

The proposed uses meet the standards listed in ULDC Art.5, Supplementary Standards, as
follows:
o Per ULDC Art.5.B.1.A.8 a dumpster and recycling area has been provided with
enclosure, gates and the required landscape hedge shown.

Article 6: The proposed car wash is consistent with Article 6 Parking, specifically the following:

o The proposed amendment meets the standards listed in ULDC Art.6, Parking, as follows:
» Per ULDC Table 6.A.1.B, Minimum Off-Street Parking and Loading
Requirements, the project will provide the minimum off-street parking spaces for
the uses as follows:
=  Car Wash — Parking: 1 space per 200 s.f. of office area @ 450 s.f. = 2
spaces
Required: 2 spaces
Provided: 16 spaces

» Per ULDC Table 6.A.1.D, Parking Space for Persons Who Have Disabilities, the
proposed uses meet the required spaces for persons who have disabilities as
follows:

» Requires 1 ADA space, provided 1 ADA spaces with access to building
and ROW.

» Per ULDC Table 6.E.2.B, Minimum Loading Requirements
= Proposed car wash use meets the minimum off-street loading spaces for
the uses as follows:
o Car WASH: Not required as use is under 10,000 s.f.

Article 7. The proposed uses are consistent with Article 7 Landscaping, specifically the
following:

o The proposed amendment meets the standards listed in ULDC Art.7, Landscaping, as
follows:
» Per ULDC Art.7.C.2, Perimeter Buffers, the project provides 20-foot ROW
landscape buffers along N Military Trail.
» PerULDC Art.7.C.3.B, Foundation Planting, the project provides the minimum 8-
foot width along the front. The car wash tunnel openings are exempt from this
requirements on the north and south sides of the building.

A preliminary landscape plan along with a preliminary tree disposition plan are being submitted
with these applications for review by the DRO.

Article 8: The proposed car wash use will be consistent with Article 8 Signage. The Applicant
is electing to submit the Final Master Sign Program with proposed architectural plans at time of
building permit.

. Adequate Public Facilities

The proposed use complies with Art. 2.F, Concurrency (Adequate Public Facility Standards).

bowman.com

84



Response: The subject property is located within the Urban/Suburban Tier in the Urban Service
Area with frontage along a major County corridors N Military Trail. Detailed information on each
of the required facilities and services can be found below:

a. Traffic: Please see attached traffic study by Simmons & White, Inc. and their conclusion that
the proposed development meets the requirements of the Palm Beach County Traffic
Performance Standards.

b. Mass Transit: The nearest Palm Tran Route is Route #3 — PBG - BCR via MILITARY and
Route #44 — WPB X-TOWN via BELVEDERE. The nearest bus stops are directly in from of
property: Bus Stop ID#1228, Name: MILITARY TRL & DURHAM ST (northbound) and
across Military Trail Bus Stop ID#1041, Stop Name: MILITARY TRL @ DURHAM ST
(southbound).

¢. Potable Water and Wastewater: Potable water and wastewater service will be provided by
Palm Beach County Water Utilities Department who has capacity and availability and
currently services the existing development on the subject property.

d. Drainage: The site is within the boundaries of the Lake Worth Drainage District (LWDD).
Legal positive outfall will be provided for by piped connections to a drainage canal to the
east. Drainage leaving the proposed system will be routed through outfall structures to meet
water quality requirements before discharging offsite into existing exfiliration system serving
the western portion of the MUPD system and ultimately the SFWMD C-10 Canal. Please
refer to the Drainage Statement prepared by Bowman Consulting Group, Ltd. being included
with this application.

e. Fire Rescue: The nearest Paim Beach County Fire Rescue station is Station #24 (1734
Seminole Boulevard) located approximately 1.4 miles from the subject property.

In conclusion, the proposed car wash is consistent with the Goals, Objectives, and Policies of Paim
Beach County Comprehensive Plan, the ULDC and the Westgate/Belvedere CRA. The proposed car
wash is also compatible with the surrounding area due to the commercial nature of this area of Paim
Beach County. On behalf of the Owner and the Applicant, Bowman Consulting Group, Ltd. and Dunay,
Miskel & Backman, LLP respectfully requests your approval of this DRO application.

bowman.com

35



IZ-535E ¢ HIBANN LIIMORS

SNOlS(alw

C ] Yao14 ‘HOv3Ig Wivd SI5RJHILNG mwﬂhmn.um_ﬁmmw_w&_=moﬂwh:wnwwﬁmw¢umnmum_
AJANNS UL ANV SdSN/VIY AVMHOIH ANVLIN N 8601 e e VDG 3RS “INNIAY HLEY MS VIR0
:anana | PONI "SALVIDOSSY % SHOAIAYUNS SNISNOD

Bl lF "ON NOILYHLSIOIE YOIEOU
Yldd¥rl ONY HOIIANNS TYNOSSI0u
SHISNOD °3 QHVHI

00,60- ELI2ELL
STBO’LZ0Z 218
SuUIsRo) J preypry
Aq paubis feudig

“ipye

‘LZOZ ‘SZ INNF KO GILTTIN0D S NHOMOTIS 3HL
“J0343HL ¥ YL 10 L1 ONY 9L vl ‘E1 "6 'R ()

Qv (B} {¥) £ 'S ¥ '€ 'T 'L SHIU SIONIINI ONY 'SISN QMY YL AR 03L4OGY NV QIHSMAYISI ATANIOP
‘SAZANS FLUL GNYT SASH/YILY BOJ SININTNNOIN WYLIG QHVONYIS MORINN 1Z0T JHL ML 3ONYAEOIDY
NI I0YA 434 QISYE S1 11 HOGM MO AJASDS THL ONY L¥Td 40 ¥R SIHL LYAL AdUE3D OL SI SHL

QL Q3uE3)

(0301012/510349%) YOO WNAOZ HIYIB MIVd 1O
SOHOI3E 3NERd 3HL 40 ‘¥Z 10¥d *IL1 X008 I¥ld NI GIQMOJIX ‘1 "ON I¥14J4 N9 40 IV1d JHL
NO OINIVINOD S¥ S¥ILIVR H3RIO GNY SININGSYD “SNOLIGNDD 'SINYNIAQR “SNOILDIMISIH D4

(QaL101d/S19344%} YOG ALHRGD
HIV3IE MI¥d 40 5040214 DNENd JHL 30 “1200 30¥d “ISETI 008 SOHOD3IM WIDL0 NI Q300N
(ININIEYI0 SHUNUO HILvYA) YOROLS “AINNOT HIYIE WIYd 40 HOAVI NI INIAISYI ALTIIN 6

(FunIVH N L3I3NY8/S1034:4%) YOO *ALNNOD

. HOYIE WIvd 40 SOHOOIM 2rand ML 10 ‘GIONIAY ALHINDISENS 8 VM SY “Z0SL 39¥d
*LE511 JO08 SQ0ITY WIILLI0 Kl 666L 'OF AIANIIZ0 Q3040314 SHOILSMLSIA OHY SHOWIONOI
'SINVIGAQD IO NDILYEYIDAQ TYINIMTIANS AB OIANINY SY 7961 10¥d "14G1H NOOE SOHODIH
TAOLEH0 NI O3GHOD3H SINVIADD IALLDWISIH TYANLIILHIHY/SLNIMISYS SSOED QaY JOHINGD
40 AIINM 30 NOILYAY1I30 NI O3HIYINDD SININISY3 ONY SHOLIJINISIA “SHOILONOD 'SINYNIAOD NI
03090033 SININNUISN! ISOKEL KNI HIN04 135 SV SNOUKINDD {INY SINVHIAQD “SNOLINISIY '8

{1HIAND0Q $533J¥ iOH QINOY YOO “ALNNO
HIYIR Y4 JO SONOTIN DNBENJ IHL J0 015 39¥d GFII NOO 0330 Ni A304D3H SINIAIMINOIY
JIVELIS ONIQS NOILAIOSIY NI QINIVINOD SNOUJIMISIH QNV SHOILIONOD 'SINVNIAQD ‘SMMIL 2

(QI0N/S10244y)  “YOINOT "ALNNOD HIvaa
MIYd 10 SOEOJ3M JMBNd JHL JO ‘Z91 39¥4 ‘98 AOO0E I¥1d NI 030H0D3Y ‘Iv)d INE 0 1v1d JHL
HO QINIVINGY SY SHALIYM H3HIO ANY SININ3SYI "SNOUIONOD 'SINYNIADY "SNONJIMISI -9

I-8 TINAJHIS O MIIAFY

"ONIHNIO3B 30 INIOZ 3HL OL 1334 $£5°591

40 FINVISIO ¥ ISR GZFLER HIYON 3JHIKL CINIOS ¥ OL 1133 00°894 4G IONVISIO ¥ "1SIm
&ZE5F.) HINOS IINIHL “INIOd ¥ OL 1334 PL°2Z1 40 3ONVISIO ¥ 3NN JS3IM 0ivS OANUNYdI0
“IS¥] BL,r1.82 HINGS IINIHL INIOd ¥ OL 1324 BL'8S JO JIDNYLSIO ¥ 'IS¥] _60,6Z.0 HIMON
JONIHL UHIGd ¥ Q1 1334 TT0DL 40 JINYISIQ ¥ CLSYT ZE.SF. HIHOH 2IM3H1 HINIOd ¥ 0L
131 OF°Z1 J0 JINVISIO ¥ “LSIMA LBS.20.82 HIYON JDHIHL UNIOd ¥ OL 1314 66'2 40 JINVLISIO
¥ CINIT LS3M QVS ONOTY “ISYI ZE.Sr.d MINON 3IMIML Ly, LOYHL QI¥S 40 3NN 1S3M 3HL HO
INIGd ¥ ONY TIOEYd 038140530 MILIYHIINIH 3HL 40 OMINNIO3B 40 LNIOd 3HI 0] 1333 9§°$L 40
FINVLSIO ¥ INT LSIM OIVS SHUIEYAID 'LSYZ L9Z,r1.88 HINOS JINIHL LNIOd ¥ OL 1334 L8°r0F
40 3081510 ¥ ‘{0I3UIHL JAILYIIH JEY SONINYIE HIRIO TIW ONY ISYD 20,5710 HLHON Hvd@ OL
Q3IMNSSY SI HILMYND LSVIHINDS 3HL JO 3N 1SIM 3HL) HI1HYNO ISYIHINGS a3 40 3NN 1S
JHL ONQTY 1S¥I ZTL.5K.10 HLYON 3THIHL Va0 “ANNOD HIVIA nivd USVY ZF JONYY "HLNOS
F dlHSNMOL 'SZ NOIID3S 40 HILAYAD LSYIHINGS JHL 10 HANYOD JSIMHINGS JHL LY JINIMMOD

SMOTI04
S¥ Q320530 ATVINDILEYS JHON YOO "ALNNCD HIYIE MY JO SOKOD3Y JMENS 291 39vd
‘2@ NOOE L¥1d HI 0IGH0I3Y 5¢¥ 'I¥1d ORE JO I¥1d 3HL OL SHIGHODIY °.¥, LOYHL JO NOUHGd ¥

SMOTI04 SY AJEWISIO HHLIB OMY 'vOINO1d
IHL I ‘2 39vd Y11 008 IV NI Q304003Y

‘AINNDD HIY3E WIvd 40 SOK023H e
'O 1¥143d JnA 40 ,L-Y, LIYYL JO NDUHOd ¥V

S¥ “2034IHL 1v1d 3HL OL DNIOHOIDY

INQILAIEDS30 AN

QILYAUIS S1 ALAISDHd

SISININA SKINIGray WG gilvalls
SANIMIACYJM H3HIO HO SIHNIINHLS “SONKIUNG AB ALHIJONJ JHL DING SLNGHHOYOMINI
ON aNHY "Al¥3404d JHI HO 03L¥307 SININIAOHJA) B3HIO HO SIAMIINHIS ‘SONITUNG

1334 NI VIS HHdYHD

——

or az n az

31 HIIHM HI AUNNARDY JHL H0J J¥H TI¥E JINYENSHI Q00T ANINEND 3HL SI HOIHM
VOO 30 3LWAS ‘ALNNGD HOYIA/MIYA NI ZGIOZI ‘ON ALNNRRGD H0J “Z1/S0/08 AHY A8 SAITI¥ ¥O SLIMLS ‘SISINIYE DNINICTQY DLND 5ININHIVOMING ON MY Jw3H) ‘Oi
10 NDUYILIINI0N 40 JI¥ ¥ Hibw “f BZSD 'ON YN ALva JDHVENSHI ~quo3: Wan
0007 RO “(¥nds) ADHIDY LNIMIOYNYA AONIDMIND WHIDAS JH1 AB X, SITIIS JM6Rd ININIOFQY HONDRHL ¥IINI E_u._anE ww_:uwzwxwm um.__.w:ﬂn:.a.___.“ " \_ru>m D w M|_._._|ﬂ- ﬁ_ Z<I_ mn_ mz <._|1_<
NGIYNDISH IHOZ ¥ ONIAYH YI§Y WY NIHLOA QILvI01 $1 AlEdd0dd 3HL 'BI hS !
N . “AL¥3£0Hd JHL RO 103443 ¥13HL T IE 2 =20 TN,
03A¥ISE0 Juih mﬁxu...w,”““u._ﬁ.“ uhﬂz.““_—“wzm”_:w_w_“_..:““ 1 0L SY CIION ISIMNIHIO NG NOTHIH Q30T NIIG IAYH I 0 MMONA ISIMAIHLO avox wﬁnﬁﬂsﬂmm 2
gy HO AlMIJONA JHL JO HOILIZISN) TYDISKHJ ¥ MOHA LNIHYJdY HO INIMLINMGD FLLIL @
3IS¥M QDS ¥ SV Al3dOAd 3L 40 3N Mouu“w“wa_ww._nwu“wwmw..ouu_w_nwww__ﬁ 9 QIYS NI 030NIHIA34 SHOLIMLSTH ONY SINYNIAOD 'SLNINISYD TI¥ LVHL ONY Mm B
HOULINEISNOD NI¥M30IS ¥O0 13415 LNIDIY 30 IINIAIAT CIAMISHO ON 51 3s3IRL ‘5L Koz/6Lfr0 .uw.q».w_.ﬁwuw_ﬁucm_ Nuﬂm_m,_ m.wm_ﬂﬂhzrmzu.ﬁmmn. mu«enumwauwﬁw%%ﬂ %7 m,m
VOO *ALNNOD KAYIO MY 01 SHIQNOIIY *AtHIJ0Nd 3HL SY 3A¥S 3HL SI (LAZU3HCHY, 3ML) NOZYIH 0381¥ISIT ALYZ0Nd IHL B - uﬂw m.mﬁ
IHL DNILDIAEY SINM AWM SO LHOW L3S NI SIDHVHD 0350404d ON S| 383Hl “r1 -3,28.Er.10N SHYIE T4 OIVS s e ™ e e h e g 2
‘AlE1dONd 3H! 1Y SHOLWIQOY SNIJUNS EO NOLJINYISHOZ “Wa8/d ‘v 0d L1 B'd NO zzw:w. SY "Zr-Ly-5¢ "33 4O ﬂﬁ WE
INITUNG "HUOM SHIAOK HLKY] LNINEND 30 IINIIAT Q3AKISHD ON 51 J¥IHL §L 30 #/1 35 IHL JO 3NN 1S3 IHL NO QISVD 3KV NOJUIH MMOHS SONRYAR ‘£ Pt - 5 _ ....m
“304S_AVAIGHYH ) |
| ONIGITIONI ‘AlH3d08d 3HL NO SIDVAS ONDIHYd 03dIuLS 12 JaY JMIHL “2) (B30AYN) T1°Z1 =NOWYATT < 5 ﬂ %
N e JHIAOTO. HEVMHINIE ALNNOD HIYAE MV SNOU4RDS30 YEYMHINIE 9 F
WOWOU ‘AINNGD HIVIA/NIYG 4D QINIVLNIYY “¥'D8/d 'FE 30Wd S T OETE TR
‘ILL M0D8 L¥Id NO NMOHS SY “Avi 40 LHOW QII¥ON0I0 313N ¥ SI TvHL EEEL 40 KIUYO M
AHYINIK HLEOK "B'D'B/d *£951 *Dd ‘(1SL1 BHO ¥3d INIM3SY1 $S1¥03/SSIuONI TYOILHIA HYWINY HIHON 3HL HO O3SYE 34V HOJUIH HMOHS SHOUVAIW 'S s a8 e |
LIARYIE ¥ HONOAHL VAL ANVIMW HIZOM OL SSJ20¥ S¥H ALY3404d JHL “44 "HAOHE (OH SINEN3A0NARI OHNOHIYIOND  “F T
“IN3MI ML AB A3QLAOHS SYM NOHIH NMOHS NOUJWISIO GNYT 3HL °§ _
. . "SIIUNI HIHLO HO TvHI014 « v \_ P
5300 GNv 5300k JVGEDE 104 JITIOS THCA Svh AMAENS S 7 ° i
g3 =
(SIN) dYW NOILYOOT YQWOU 40 AI¥IS Tt 0 SQEYONVIS o e .o H ™
KIINIA BO/OHY SMT MU JINYOHDIOY HI JOYA 5wk AZANNS SIHL ) = E * m = m
i o il enbdifl | 323 |
P — - * SION " E -
N & - il - EHIEE
T pi Biaganieg — By aidpaneg SHOAIAHNS TYNOISSII0NY 40 ALUDCS TYNOUYN  SdSN s i g 1 Ny =
S e T : HOILWOOSSY TUUA 0NN MYdINY  viiv = “w A 236§ m = m _
INPNNON 3OMIE33Y ININYASId  Mdd “Lrbd B S 05 2R & num B IR S
£ ¥31IH HILVM " by et SE e =
= 0B TNOIS OLAVAL  BS) _ ) n 1 g 3 . wum B Ef & _ 4
& HOWYATIY A2 @ 1% £ 10 woLoa ¥ m Fz m 3 E
R THY TrLNIS v i 37 k H ;
FINVLSID DEY ¥ E . £ mnm w. H g
= Sniovs ¥ X ® %_ _ _ _ _,. = . |
A OHINNISIE IO LHIOd aod H & | 4 ¢ - N m 3
. = NOIYATYY < g Fna N et w 1+ @ E
D FI04 ¥IMDE ILIUINOT dd2 H 7 h _ m
15 2Wepe, ;, P 4
P d o SIHD ALTILD QV3HA3A -3~ £ ¢ L & pE s *
z IHIM ¥ ¥IM0d VOIHOA i
= AINOILONDY HIY PV Praie 4 *
= WNLINALS HIC ILTIONOD pah e |
.m IINA Q00M AXHN NIVHD i3
o SO4021H ALNNOJ HIYIE/NIFd ...H _ | _ | __ i _
3 o 0 v g BN/
= 4¥D ONY YN QNNOA _ -1 u_ .ﬁ | ,_ | I/ 4 ~ ._
dl4 NDHI OKNDJ du L s & ¢ _ M
15 weyeng 004 HOHI ONNOJ aly = P Faa—
2rvaf Jvd onv IR 1S IS — Jr - e i
a0 weisel arraf davd ¥ 0¥ NOMl L8/¢ 1S s TIW NE D4 6L W - s &
=z 39vd OWY %008 0T34 9d/ad _J o e Ry TN el £ £
= A3 HMYHD HAD _ -_ h .. == m i
= APONGD IN0D - 7T _| _ &
= FL I B e TS et 2 ot _ 3
0H3331 1 .




L@

MYl 3dFDSanYT ALwHELLTY 338

Drfia Lovisdee) 'y w 0wl
FTha 130 AL LT B gy

LAY WX G Z3and

“P1EE a1 Y Tl Yo LR

D ONOY
WL JACEDN FAXRELW O VY
Tl a0 LTI ez TH 31 1

SF HFOE 0L XOVE LHIATH TIVHS INIASOTIAK) 40 HY LI SHITNINOD
ML ONY L2047 ONY 30804 M3H1EN O 40 T8 THHS ¢ LA

SHL 200 0 e e
E ) HOS INBAT ML
M AL A0 SHL O3N00Y SYH LEMTTem D301AaM: “JL0H SHI S31373a

HYNIHW 5p L0
SIEDHIANT ONY JALLIZ453 39 TIVHE 69 LIBHDG SHL NOLYEOR00 AUV
TIUALTE ONY ALNIOD HIVEE FTva HIEWATY DA 49 1881 TYZENELAS
301 LNINATHOY INDRTILLTS HL TIVAFIKNS OLGHY 0L INNSH

tom
T AYTI0 A3TE SAVISUNY ) NFH o i o

3N ALHION] KIZON = W31N0E IS0

4 Gl ot Y. ey A S B KR DGR

HOPt M TS O i Snatik T

£ CLVEEL ©F ISVHA.
TrONE  SErdMt  SZ2AS |

dVIN NOILV3OT :

20 CO/ET/L0 LY TRGBKY T TR
3

(190 B chaws w s ey
o Encaniem suzeny|
LIS

¥:
W (PO DTN B) MLYIS YD
LN A10TND

{vwin] WS WEAO A Jarie)
[LTE e R e e

WS BIE 109

0 D%

Sunjeseg _wme.W
puo Buwrng Sumaii}

rer=ryu|i 1]

Rl
A=

YT WOl SIcHD
17 “rs ooreca) voar 101 MaaL

b odsd 1220 "8
“H3OVNVIN LD3r0dd
oM {3 . iy
— £0-£2-20 ‘TINOHAdY 31O Feoby
i e 05 4 §3038H3INS
25 4 LI8IHX}T
m
n 2
4 0r600-£002-u
Zu W . # NOELIIOS Y
=0%| 5 £Z000-ZE6) DHQ
Tm®5 | o # NOLLYOIddY
= m * W 10: £Z000-2661 *# TOHLNOD
8z m o | m 000-5€#50 °# LOAr0dd}  Of 6LOE-20-50 L850-610Z HYZ
ﬂ 23 ﬂ < 1S aneoz O
AEGE| M i i e ma i v ZA TN evan £ BT ol WU Y ONOD
TEeE | = "WVHI AVITIN NOIG INTATNOR
ZwZ= w [y . —
ERpZ | = = = =z
02 2l & i i
FIfn|
=got| S s =
w2l o FNYN LNYN.
Sz 3.9 L
m M W .._._
~Brl =
an0 000-$$PG ON L3r0dd SKOWLONOD 338
a
m g o RS o5 | T wzz |onvezy  can
W v apus | =S WO .qu__n.acun E.:H.M._.m codra
g 5 EIEIE HOUVAVAISSHIVILIS fintid TMORHINK 101 ANAKIA e
g A
E3 a3 SNOIVINDFH LNSWGO13A30 ALNTd0Hd
4
EH 1 o
ES 4 L L i ot e ey
NGk D) STENATLY ADH) MDY, RELS RO )
ThrLN RS O ALOATT 021y = /2R T e o
TI0Z—OOZ-05 Slecier O Xivic) GNer nan QB
= Tovaois Tws o TvE 00
B WIPOK 0% AN MOGWOANT OOT - 60420720 1L
v AvaeT 0
ATO0Y I QNY vAZHY ANI013 Ol — LC/ID T -
s, 17Tea ?
e TIew 0 € 2008 . Thvidn B
CiT SIS Srwawa 00 TaBnle - bS0L50 6 ¢
Qe
e g B e s ) o matas o
8 oo N 5 m e Gt ond - T il
LI QB A TN ART ~ KAV L o~ dn 0w \Ln ez
3 iledn Wl Wik e v - YR/ B Lwas
LN D0V -l.._'. MK U7 55 R
DY LNONTRVD AVAL WY UVOTRE = #0410/0 % -
YR RHATD mOl A3 S =06 = g- 21
O, ORIN LRBLGAS QL INTIC OH —a IVHCLIS T Ted IME.
hrsed SRS e + 1 s o R S
o 00 T B = I i oo o7
orac G 3 sy g . e e L
ey OIS 3 AR O = o .
$3iE) Mol 01 Aeh) WS J5A%e - WSTAR T SR 1] ard: Lep/eh gm
DA On 1T KULYA 0L = Y3 = lﬂ_\xwzuau E
DXy b BAOATONIR O b ) e
TovHi RS ~ ERTHA HOUDTMLSNED - DORZIIL T ra d
TIl-01 UL PN X0 TR - Eantiald
Lokl WE ¥Y 09 DL %0} DHEYRY — KO/RISED L i
S St 0 et x5 mraoa
— e o 2 ot 0o oS .mpnuﬁw:
S T INIRGNI TR 20X RS D g3 Ty
A vty IS i P
st peeines S . L
LON WA AJAMNE LNVONIGE Y HY Told TrANLYE AN LT 220D Sl 4Ted ZTVIOAY WiOL B4 Cr- rl.
LS Bl A0 30w € O IR Ty WaYRg O knOosoa ST 35 Maled 3T P T
et GO v priionuls oo s rt
A e et a4 3000 = AN T s 420w o S et
- S LT s amoneis) st owro) 7
IS o S {STPME2 LYY SWOTERe LOR] SMmITY TWYEFAT,” K
-+ s : % |
o A .
e xrcom| L ° o STV 13 ¥ THeST0v Tora) RGNS TS . i
v w77 i e 1 ) auanon swe wouszsH | ¢
o g T O | -1k ¥ s
Jreslopipiiioouipurbidors T TEmE QUwishon 18 E_ﬁ

TAUROUS YT A O3 1R
Tl N 3 ekt o w T

¥ NOUTEE ONY TN 2308 IVISONFT Y

Y

e ETINR) WY

VoY SHIHLM. TIYHE LGNSO EAKD XTI 3HL
20065 NOULITS CHY T8 B HOUDTS HLLM INSISISNOD T8O CININERA 38 TS
L STLRERY MIHAS 330 IHL TYAGRKAY ONY MEBATH TYNU 201 CALLNENS

T8 TIVHS My kd SIULIMINY MYRUSXITd ¥ BALLLINAI S $03 TLLIFTANS DL RO S
Lrrt34 2076] N

FHPICET PISNTd ¥ I "LimeT ONKITIA ML 10 3ONWISSIOL HORA T

TraCtdY' 543208 ATV T

T TIVHES NV S ASONY SAILYMZILTY L "L 3d AHY 30 3ONVITSSI QL NOMY ©

ra orormatonoonol

SE O35 SAWDS0nY] IHz O1 T1BYAOI0Y N ITH0E PIsiA

LHOIT G ¥ ONY 00 OF STTL DAk YIHY DNEYGT ST VM I0 HIHON

ATAIS AACEONY] LA 1) ACHAIY ¥ Fa WRIY RS A3VSA Y SAn0ud 2
i i b

T SHAGLECACHY.

ETELEP) Ly 01 bonkd '}
VA ddv 2 SHOUKINGD
kL

o

e -
MERGPPEL) ) ey -
- —  —
OV AN AT T2
v R
auly

: TrADHddY S0 SHOWGHOD
ey !
heddeay

(S e v A
E "
h ey doar

BB & ey
ol " e Sy
E Dawron NS dme
: vmeon | Bkt
. ¥ s
s s Aapersy
: wim
‘l_ ¢ mo et
T 1 ]




&

LTE L/ nbirbtoacd~0—UEBOLA IS A T bt o\ sownt Eoasomab T gD 4 wous A w5t o, a3 = (o] L001-10- 080010 26 M3 v =) — BSFOIOL A o ) 0D
I-dSd =~ M
1202 TR0 v K
LD o BT -
M= L
@A | NMYEG | N3
r ns L] w
ate s e e o waor m e o fan | ez Q250408
P &= u = - e teminge - s | oo ws | gunn-omanozu
wry Jres 06 M4 mvans | e |y, LAe | e [wan ans o
NV IS DIVILTS SN forgmneion SHOSHINA 07 ARKENDY LRSI ONE0Y]
P ——— P Tr——— SNOLLYING3Y LNIWdO1FAIA ALH3d0Odd
g - 3 = - wiET It TR
T3 W ——— . - S 4 13 pan e :ﬁwoa....uhwga. _,_ ;
T T : & amue I
. VL= L £at E 0 3 R .M/ ,”
Fertarai; i ey H =
= o u.....__"p_.l |...‘|.‘.m-.u.w.u,..m||.ww.ﬂzlu. |.U&1 \~|anw\\.\ Rl
e T gy
= 1 o EEE T i P e~ e s quos HIGIATIE Lm..ﬁ.w_.wm.wwa mime
T Rl e S IR TR | chendai
3 e, A= ; 7
b : X s o]+ punas
o s FNOZ STEATNY Sl ! 5 L0,
LHOIZH XY 0350208 — d - =0 L T
=< LKA 0N ONLLSIXE N .ﬁ,.n.i\) 4
2. B 5 IHEKZH Xy QTUN0TY S i
g Mo worz VU 215 S04 liy Wi
z 8 M 2 avs VUV 3L S ARENOTY o ,.,._
o m H 138018 IWINEAAN00 1) .
o Z0 o= 2T 10 Y S STIVS Wi Ty $35N.03500ud
2= W mZ s3u IONFNZANO
ocAdxq = Z3AL INVHITVLS3H (28015 1
85 a TYLTH TH ONY VD STV LTy EEE ]
ggsmx
M uaws @ YTV QELOALIYNID 00100 LDST LR 200
z AHH H (V¥ QRLITLIVNIY OFOOF 100 LT Er00
2HA10 5 VIV LT 4N OO K 52T w
9 W Yo oy (ELDT LN 0100100 LES2Cr 00 “SHIGA TOULKOD ALUZI0Ud
s X = FHOVEIM SAVRIAG
» =z aan DAIOZ Q300U
) aann SHINOZ DRILSINY
HD  HOUYNOISIQ SSAOMVIONLSIG 306 1
m MO HOHLYNOIS3A 2SN ONYIONLSN s 3TN T
) L
ALY TSN
=z ROZELZ0 UND TYADHY 12897 151 05/0yd MUY
a S I 2D YIVOONEY YDA NOUVIN LY ma emmEm Fot) \/ £
bl 2002661 HIIN IOHLNGD P .@.5 72
LiderrTeskOna SrevN HOUVH Y Sy R0 22
B TavLviva 2Ls . A )
) o7 1adhan AN
i
Wy ONY  SEPdML §2 038 \My_ -~ i 0 F
™~ e Bma«q:&F
At IS A0S ATIUIZIONT NY K e, H
m dVIN NOILYDO L B BTG ninafoT wanTHain ™. > 1
mw_ 0 waagdar ; Sy - 5000 1 et T s sy & I
2 - omig N JIMTNIY AR 2=y KASaD MM E
= e T ol TT A Sy 55 _..w%‘s?ﬂw. Y SIGHIS, NI NITI/ALRANY ARSI H
£ TN ~ e PN O s bl NI TYUINIS T LS i
. e j e et oy By s
- Tvreaen = T Tomauus G aSCRy, T 000 ARINTRL I o Canr) ST () 400D ¢
W \\ ; _ e Srawevd UTIRRLT ™y, n 40 507 DRI () X Z
o .oy 2
B H ppaew § = ) . A,
- i ] 1&xmnousa ~ o a o 4
z H . Cur DrohT ~ 'f - AFIA0:
§ ! wnu T AT j 3 . ; i 1
Hm El v @I ARINADH 3NM Id ~ i Wt bt 7
! SOz 04 (AL B 4 RIS SN ] B
= ATIAISSY JATHLUA Jatd CT—3106Y = er? S £
N N i e gt 2 g o1 TN §
{ = AT g SR | <P dor g0 ey i
| 1 i (T3 QNO3 ) s OHITIeS O KOO 0512140 b
.w | u el 3o 01 ot owaind T 1~/ YY) 1A B
2T £ (M JOISON 1 Gl JIIEAS) 31T o AN O y favan n..c
i [ _r F G G 0 drly DO MEdE LGSO ST 7 RBT Gl e s
] Cazs i ) P TEr an Chv SRabw OF T |aTig Deowra 1PevE . |8 T Pﬁ |
M ﬂ”ﬂmﬂmﬂ 1 = e
! SEZL 03 9595 Tv0 o !
g - ﬁﬂwm ..unEn:..mu - I (r3 0w dc} 5 [HEhEns haloay T
i NI ALSEAGSS g ST O e T
i
Bz ’
i
uw ANYOTA
m e DRNOZ
£ u namawn 111




6

LA LR B it =SSR T i IV it Rt Dt Ty Gt chinabu T\ (0 301 wrs Kb $08 vAm 02 = (001 0= 10—400uNORT DB W wsNbIN] it 03 — QAFOUEN N Bt Bu) T3

F-dSd = :
LEL L S i
‘oz “Ava| =
£
10010-06B0I0 PN A" i
oAT= AR w
Bl _ zszn_zﬂnn L JShMweo | 1
ar 1 os L] = g i e x 2oz [ n 2t oz | oo oasoscud m
0 s 8 i
; srovcwa [ | marocowa w [ w oo 2 JRR— i
L stmws | o 5 E I3 [ v 0r pox e | danm-gganty }
Wi | ismuvias | 26 |vasmosioow | 4o oo Hm HL s » m
8
s T o EHOISNIMA ALY na m
AdnA - SNOLLYIN93H INIWA0T1IAIA ALHIdOHd H
INYLS DNINOZ PNVLS LNBNONTPY AN NGILYDRT m
i
& ooy H
(ezum ) . i
e == e = o =™ | : H
o ® o o [:3 _ : : W
TI¥IS DJIHAVHD " . H
H . 1
V
= I gt
[ B ! :
=3 H 56 H
3 “ [ ramatis ;
> R DTS i
4 74 {Fe.. poeiam [ §
= Y L S H 4
o LT VRO YD L S H ) H
W o Mo FHIN ZUINS HHAY HLLY WS 18T _ i . : H
EFo [T O SALYIOOSTY ¥ SMOATANNS SWSHOD HoAINNG , 4 | N 1
=8 < | i M
o JLE 7. TR i {
bzpd = WS LIRS MYV LIYINGD ] 2
z ﬂ.\dﬁ £ e voaso T5nmns i “W
SSsm ] ot 2uns DwvATVIoR BSTNS M SK g _w 1"
=z Vuv © 0T ANONHD Bl VIS Kyl LT g
M a5 % E 1@0wnan =0
LT Em S0 1 WO Z
5 4L0o ] oL M THECTS HIHON 850 2] i
2 W M & TUUTUMIY LOSES IS =Rl
g -~ M = 90140409 HOES 30 WHOUVNEILH HOHL D0 LIUBY N “ﬂ :
[ .
=3 =
Q uma a. H
#dz¥ = t
O ziis 14 A uumm ﬁl I :
m %01 215 "0 AUSHIANO S 2T £5 1 :
w_ 3T} LWG WG AT S5idel L LA OV TSR WieTBEAK i ﬂ\l.u
m AL LNGNG0T3A3a _nTh m i
e o
1 AONTRHHNONG ] it
¢
% 08 v .Y IGT SRA Ty DL i s
W 3 s 11330 0 SIROLSLHIDH IG5 |
g E=r) AT G0
W TWa3 U CNIALSTIC21) DNIDYON DTG 7|
3800 D N TIONTNE e !
ESNEN ONDOIY TS TN GO0 !
kL Trvas 1 IR TIRFSIOTY andne | :
B saovas 8L DADRIV SIS GA0H| T
25054 D ALK 20 45 LTINS LHSVR VD R N
vz Onblrtd GG :
g AV QUL VI HOGTS FI0UY
& Tore 6500 25 YU 8 VY GLI%V MY 315 FE0UD)
1304 2on FEanhOkin Wy LT STV T304 8 5¥0
TAML LNVWTVLSTH SAIVE TYLIN HSVAL BYD 1EEN IO
AR T8 RATANG I e D0 ETHE T T 5D —
by SAL LRSI STV TN wshEnoKusia
7 poriorioszrzron {51 UTENIP YOULNOT ALVZIOU
H w0 [ p—
YN T V0 T KCATIRAIVDLE I VAIVIHY AU AYRAT|
aane LIS SMNOZ E350M0U
W Lol LIRALSIA DHINOZ DRUSTO
(631 HOM TriwInemd LIS 50 Qe G35 000
mm HO] HOM TYRANNOD HOLLNCISE 250 ONY1 MDA
7 wm vousniares tivenany =1
0% J———
lwmm 23 IR TMINOD
ww Lo 22 AL TERDY O
1 e—
mww vz IR W OO SE RN 23 et OULAv|
= LM DHISEOMS WA AT 20V W0KIND)
§ _ 1AL VYO ALS _




QO

Zor] =] s st | ] =

e et veam] Tnmos] w vous|

Ziol} e puneyy oo, e apeng|  dagmeg pacrrppa] e Ee]

1H0iEH] _ Drauves|  snoLvoLsss v TeoR v 08| v hovouwns| D] sa3a05 onnows|

[ wom] wm[ =] s | x| T weonsos eeea| ooz ] [ =]

| | k| Lo ST sl | I s whson | o Gy e | ] [

[ obvnml owowss] ooex| ame| ovass]  snomi| oeaves| ewouvoisas) Srom Tedkivion] o worowa| aib| E
| ] on] Z1] En) | wu] vosnor v cemuntoog]  mmamscgoewea]  oe] |

eonvea] onowes|  ona| Fmuwn]| ovadgs] teom]  seavds|  SOUDIA93dE | YN TR L04| o hoewoa | &0 SYIW NS

s o] ga1|

TMIHYIAYH S0 ALID

VUL ABYLITIA N B80L

YORIOTS 'ALNNOD HOVIG Wvd

HSYM HYD
NVd SAVOSTNY

uewmog

ALY ominAE svm not
VA THNARIRT AT
s dso1 7 Tita cowen iT s P
e T T g e e Gl g o g b B}
] T ]
o e aa
Voan W T e L
R
e EETS orvke oy By g anssgmmr i |
27w e a0t B i aartay ray oo
g g ey e e b L Y] g L
Iy b vk B e sy o] med v o
T gL P Ria sy
..... Lk
iy s Ao IS
ey E T -t { e 2em |
AT a1 1o s ORI
s i it b ML Al e a0 T e 1
1 T S g )
g s m [ oy S o 8 52800, A0
e phrvcn o oy 1T WAl S L D 00 R e T
v s i A
. A Kt reru i) A v St
LU T il versds
v s pave P T i)
—peput g e depeg ey
e am bz, saurq toyermam o oo sy |
TR LAV R
srpmranigy sy 243 o A T8 sasmraizt
s 10 e o §H e ke e ]
s e s pon M ] ) g - st g |
i 214e o 215 PP el il o el s 1
9211 11 Pt gt = 1 e I S M
sy sormat . g 3 At 04 i 4
Some v vy oy aaa .00 i LA 0 TSN A 41
g [ Er T 08 T L) it O 8 00T
S T
SR, o oew
_— L e L s i
e 57 2L BT
g
T TIOLAH T VAT B - i
Do e T 0 TN I TIRS G Gy
3000 J4CISCNYT AN KOV A TY]

(avod 2LVLS)




\

\

H
.







[T

I! s

M
St




SIMMONS & WHITE

2581 Metrocentre Boulevard, Suite 3, West Palm Beach, Florida 33407

AR

P

O 561.478.7848 | F 561.478.3738 www.simmonsandwhite.com SIMMONSOYWHITE

Certificate of Authorization Number 3452

ENGINEERING | PLA

LTING | SINCE 1982

INSIGNIFICANT TRAFFIC IMPACT

STATEMENT

MILITARY BELVEDERE SHOPPING CENTER - CAR WASH

Prepared for:

Bowman Censulting Group Ltd.

13450 Sunrise Boulevard
Suite 320

Sunrise, Florida 33323
Job No. 21-12

Date: August 30, 2021

PALM BEACH COUNTY, FLORIDA

Digitally signed by Robert F.
Rennebaum
Date: 2021.08.30 15:56:20 -04'00'

Robert F. Rennebaum, P.E.
FL Reg. No. 41168

Rokert F. Rennebaum, P.E., State of Florids,
Professl I EngE! y L No. 41168

This item has been electronically signed and
sealed by Robert F. Rennebaum, P.E. on 08/30/2021
using a SHA-1 Authentication Coda.

Printed copies of this d t are not Idered signed
and sealed and the SHA-1 Authentication Code must

he verified on any electronic coples.




TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0
2.0
3.0
4.0

5.0

SITE DATA......

PURPOSE OF STUDY ...vorevrverrmessranenmeominrmmommmmesnresimmmss s

TRAFFIC GENERATION ... seirrrcvcenvenes s s s s s vass s scasssssasseenas

SITE RELATED IMPROVEMENTS. ...t tceecencsrarssressresresn s sssiraes

CONCLUSION

...................................................................................................

S



Military Belvedere Shopping Center - Car Wash
Project 21-112 Page 2

o

1.0 SITE DATA

The subject parcel is located on the east side of Military Trail, just north of
Belvedere Road in Palm Beach County, Florida and contains approximately 0.68
acres. The Property Control Number (PCN) for the subject parcel is 00-42-43-25-
31-001-0060. Proposed site development consists of demolishing the existing
(vacant) improvements and constructing a single lane automated 2700 SF car
wash facility with a project build-out of 2024. Site access is proposed via cross
access with the adjacent shopping center to the east. For additional information
concerning site location and layout, please refer to the Site Plan prepared by
Bowman Consulting Group, Ltd.

2.0 PURPOSE OF STUDY

This study will analyze the proposed development’s impact on the surrounding
major thoroughfares within the project's radius of development influence in
accordance with the Palm Beach County Unified Land Development Code Article
12 — Traffic Performance Standards (TPS). The Traffic Performance Standards
state that a Site Specific Development Order for a proposed project shall meet the
standards and guidelines outlined in two separate “Tests” with regard to tfraffic
performance.

Test 1, or the Build-out Test, relates to the build-out peried of the project and
requires that a project not add traffic within the radius of development influence
which would have total traffic exceeding the adopted LOS at the end of the build-
out pericd. This Test 1 analysis consists of two parts and no project shall be
approved for a Site Specific Development Order unless it can be shown to satisfy
the requirements of Parts One and Two of Test 1.

Part One — Intersections, requires the analysis of major intersections, within or
beyond a project's radius of development influence, where a project's traffic is
significant on a link within the radius of development influence. The intersections
analyzed shall operate within the applicable threshold associated with the level of
analysis addressed.

Part Two — Links, compares the fotal traffic in the peak hour, peak direction on
each link within a project’s radius of development influence with the applicable LOS
‘D" link service volumes. The links analyzed shall operate within the applicable
thresholds associated with the [evel of analysis addressed.

Qe



Military Belvedere Shopping Center - Car Wash
Project 21-112

2.0 PURPOSE OF STUDY (CONTINUED)

Test 2, or the Five Year Analysis, relates to the evaluation of project traffic five
years in the future and requires that a project not add traffic within the radius of
development influence which would result in total fraffic exceeding the adopted
LOS at the end of the Five Year Analysis period. This test requires analysis of
links and major intersections as necessary within or beyond the radius of
development influence, where a project’s traffic is significant on a link within the
radius of development influence.

This analysis shall address the total traffic anticipated to be in place at the end of
the fifth year of the Florida Department of Transportation Five Year Transportation
Improvement Program in effect at the time of traffic analysis submittal.

The existing roadway network as well as both the State and Palm Beach County
Five Year Road Program improvements, with construction scheduled to
commence prior to the end of the Five Year Analysis Period shall be the Test 2
roadway network assumed in the analysis. The total traffic in the peak hour, peak
direction on each link within a project’s radius of development influence shall be
compared with the applicable LOS “E” service volumes. The links analyzed shall
operate within the applicable thresholds associated with the level of analysis
addressed.

This study will verify that the proposed development’s traffic impact will meet the
above Traffic Performance Standards.

3.0 TRAFFIC GENERATION

The Palm Beach County Unified Land Development Code Article 12 requires that
for any application for a site specific development order on property on which there
are vested uses shall be subject to the Palm Beach County Traffic Performance
Standards to the extent the traffic generation projected for the site specific
development order exceeds the traffic generation of the vested uses.

The generation rates and capture rates of the vested uses shall be updated to
current pro forma traffic generation and passer-by rates and shall be used to
calculate vested uses/current approval traffic,

The traffic to be generated by the proposed site modifications has been calculated
in accordance with the traffic generation rates listed in the /TE Trip Generation
Manual, 10" Edition and rates published by the Palm Beach County Engineering
Traffic Division as shown in Tables 1, 2, and 3. Table 1 shows the daily traffic
generation associated with the proposed development in trips per day (ipd).
Tables 2 and 3 show the AM and PM peak hour traffic generation, respectively, in
peak hour trips (pht). The traffic to be generated by the proposed plan of
development for a single lane automated car wash may be summarized as follows:

QT



Military Belvedere Shopping Center - Car Wash
Project 21-112 Page 4

3.0 TRAFFIC GENERATION (CONTINUED)

Proposed Plan of Development

Daily Traffic Generation
AM Peak Hour Traffic Generation (In/Out)
PM Peak Hour Traffic Generation (In/Out)

166 tpd
12 pht (8 In/6 Out)
14 pht (7 Inf7 Out)

Innu

4.0 SITE RELATED IMPROVEMENTS

The AM and PM peak hour volumes at the project entrances for the overall
development with no reduction for pass by credits are shown in Tables 2 and 3
and may be summarized as follows:

Directional
Distribution
{Trips IN/OUT)

AM
PM

6/6
717

As previously mentioned, site access is proposed via cross access driveways to
the adjacent commercial shopping center to the east. Based on the peak hour
volumes shown above and the Palm Beach County Engineering Guideline used in
determining the need for turn lanes of 75 right turns or 30 left turns in the peak
hour, additional turn lanes are not warranted or recommended.

5.0 CONCLUSION

The proposed development has been estimated to generate 166 trips per day, 12
AM peak hour trips, and 14 PM peak hour trips at project build-out in 2024. A brief
review of the links within the project’s radius of development influence reveals that
the proposed development will have an insignificant project assignment and will
therefore meet the requirements of the Palm Beach County Traffic Performance
Standards.

sa: x\Documents\Traffic Drainage&Structuralitis.21112

4%



TAWE TIRL 1 LY TRINIT | TIANEA A TR ATININ:
I ZINTE T e ax
ALIHM ,,,w SNOWWIS SOIBD DRI USEAN JESAUSE 280 esL AW Z1 1-L2\L202\S LOAMOHASIUaWND0oauY
,,..,m, .&\ﬁ:.
o
‘sjet Ysesued Ajlep o] tonels seb oy sones Alep o} yead Burfjdde Aq panuap 531ES Jnoy Yead Apn)s “uab duy Hgd wos) uaye: aiel Aeg (3
SO0N
)43 ¢ L [ %0 k43 i L Q 0 '] %00 ¥l FA L -Sielo) puRlSy
[ L L 0 %0 ¥l L ! ] 0 0 %00 [ 4 +t fosooso S9El aue] L 28d S PEIRWONY) YsemE)
lEloL N0 | u Isdui] o jerolmo) u [eeLlmof w % eolno | v |moj u- ucipenb3eyey Aysuaguy apon asnpuen
sdir) JeN fq-ssed sdi | [eulayxg uonezijeusdin] st m‘wm.o._w Hds a1q 3L .
uonessuss Jiel] MOH jedad Nd - £ 319V.L
[ 9 g o %0 zh g 9 0 0 0 %0°0 [ 9 ] :S|R}0L PUBID _
Z1 9 9 0 %0 zZt 9 9 0 0 0 %00 zl 9 9 Jogo|ngo 611 aue i 0dd A PRIBLIOINY) YSemieD
EloL |InO | Uy {sdp] % |ieol|Ino w flelel{Iing | o %o L0 | vl pInG | w " uoienbajeien “Astatur TfRpegy T T esnpuen
£041 39N fg-s524 sl etion uoneziewssiu| _.sdimlssoin  § ydsaig g & 1| R
uoljelauag Jlyed] JNOH jead WY - £ 319V1
aal 0 %0 991 [ %00 991 15|30, PUBIS
gl 0 %0 91 0 991 0099t aue L 04d APBIRWONY] USRAIED
sdu) jaN | sduL]| % sdu] ewsaixs leol % sdjzL sso1n fmng.| vl uoijenbgjoient Rsusu) 2P0y asnpue)
. kg-ssed : uojjeziewa] - Mg g - . - - . |34 . . 5
uonjeiduan aeal Aireq - | 31gvl
INFANJOTIAIA G3SO0dOUd
LZI0EIR0 MAUYD d




Bovwman

Control Namae: Military Belvedere Shopping Center
Project Name: EZ Express Carwash

Control Number: 1992-23

Site Address/Location: 1098 N. Military Trail

Date: August 27, 2021

Drainage Statement

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The proposed project consists of demolishing an existing Restaurant located at 1098 N. Military trail and redevelop the
site with a new 2,700 SF EZ Express Car Wash. The subject property is a 0.68 acre outparcel located within an exiting MUPD
with control number 1992-23.

PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS

The site is located within South Florida Water Management District's (SFWMD) C-51 drainage basin within eastern Palm
Beach County, but does not have and active permit with SFWMD or Palm Beach County. The proposed project will require
“10-2" self-certification through FDEP as well as a drainage permit from Palm Beach County Building Department.

DRAINAGE FACILITIES

The proposed drainage system will be designed in accordance with Palm Beach County’'s Unified Land Development Code
(ULDC) as well as SFWMD requirements. The system will consist of a series of interconnected catch basins and pipes to
collect and convey the storm water runoff. Treatment for 2.5” over the entire site’s impervious area will be provided for in
the proposed trenches before discharging offsite. The FFE elevation of the building is to be set higher than the adjacent
sidewalk, crown of nearest roadway, and above the maximum stage of the 100 year — 3 day storm event.

LEGAL POSITIVE OUTFALL

Legal positive outfall will be provided for by piped connections to a drainage canal to the east. Drainage leaving the
proposed system will be routed through outfall structures to meet water quality requirements before discharging offsite
into existing exfiltration system serving the western portion of the MUPD system and ultimately the SFWMD C-10 Canal.

No drainage permit exists for the current restaurant, but the proposed EZ Express Car Wash will be designed to meet the
existing conditions for maximum discharge rates conveyed to the adjacent canal.

Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me via phone at (954) 314-8480.

08/30/2021
This iteam has been digitally signed and i E.
sealed by Justin Thompson, P.E. on the ) JUS'FII'I Thompson' P.E
date adjacent to the seal. Florida License No. 84595
Printed copies of this document are not Bowman Consulting GI’OI.IP, LTD.
considered signed and sealed and the . .
signature mus! be verified on any Board of Professional Engineers —
lectroni igs. L - .
Flecirontc coples Certificate of Authorization No. 30462

13450 W. Sunrise Boulevard, Suite 320, Sunrise, Florida 33323
P: 954.314.8480 | F: 954.332.2301
bowmanconsulting.com

\CO



REDEVELOPMENT TRUST FUND

REVENUE:

Balance Brought Forward
Ad Valorem Taxes (TIF)
Rental Income

Interest

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES:

Employee Expenditures:
Salaries & Wages
Retirement

Insurance - Health/Dental
Payrell Taxes

Total Payroll Expenditures

Professional Expenditures
Eng. & Const. Coordination
Technical Assistance

Audit Fees

lLegal Fees

Total Professional Expenditure

Other Expenditures
Government Fees & Services
Insurance/Property/Liability

Landscape & Prop. Maintenance

Property Management
Streetlights/Utilities

Office Rent/Utilities
Advertising

Community Garden
Community Activities

PR & Marketing

Public Art

Bank Fees & Charges
Neighborhood Preserv. Grant
COVID-19 SBA Program
Tenant Buildout Asst.

Rent Asst. program

Site Develop. Asst. Program
Commun /Mailouts

DCues & Subscriptions
Housing & Economic Devel.
Staff & Board Development
Office Equipment/Supplies
Miscellaneous

Transfer to Capital Improv.

Total Other Expenditures
Total Expenditures

APPROVED
BUDGET
FY2021

1,000,000
2,737,786
65,000
1,000

3,803,786

385530
34,670
74,000

30,000

524,200

200,000
350,000
20,000
50,000

620,000

300
25,000
140,000
30,000
65,000
70,000
10,000
100,000
100,000
60,000
0

2,200
60,000
100,000
100,000
100,000
225,000
6,500
2,500
350,000
15,000
20,000
18,086

1,060,000
2,659,586

3,803,786

PROPOSED
BUDGET
FY2022

2,000,000
2,950,477
76,623
1,000

5,028,100

424,000
38,200
74,000
33,000

569,200

400,000
200,000
25,000

50,000

675,000

300
25,000
140,000
30,000
65,000
75,000
10,000
100,000
100,000
60,000
75,000
2,200
80,000
0
100,000
100,000
225,000
6,500
2,500
370,000
15,000
20,000
22,400

2,160,000
3,783,800

5,028,100

INCREASE/
(DECREASE)

1,000,000
212,691
11,623

0

1,224,314

38,470
3,530
0

3,000

45,000

200,000
-150,000
5,000

0

55,000

20,000
-100,000
0

o 2 e T s B e

20,000

0

0

4,314
1,100,000

1,124,314
1,224,314

\ O\



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND

REVENUES:

Balance Brought Forward
Solid Waste Authority
Transferred from Trust Fund
USDA Grant

CDBG Grant

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Construction Projects

Property Acquisition

BH Infrastructure Improvement
Dog Park

USDA Community Garden
Westgate Avenue

Total Expenditures

APPROVED
FY2021

600,000
91,000
1,060,000
0

300,000

PROPOSED
FY2022

91,000
91,000
2,160,000
150,000
237,000

2,051,000

600,000
1,320,000
131,000

0

0

2,051,000

2,729,000

800,000
1,130,000
149,000
150,000
500,000

INCREASE/
DECREASE

-509,000
0
1,100,000
150,000
-63,000

678,000

200,000
-190,000
18,000

500,000

2,729,000

678,000

\OL



Transportation Planning Agency Fund

REVENUES:

Balance Brought Forward
BelvedereHeights Phase 1
Belvedere Heights Phase 2
Westgate Ave Streetscape
Semincle Boulevard
Cherry Road

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES:
Construction Projects

Belvedere Heights Phase 1
Belvedere Heights Phase 2
Westgate Ave Streetscale
Seminole Boulevard
Cherry Road

Total Expenditures

APPROVED
FY2021

4,467,000
0

0

0

887,082
1,000,000

6,354,982

1,104,000
956,000
2,407,000
887,982

0

5,354,982

PROPOSED
FY2022

6,354,982

0
0
0
0
0
2

6,354,98

1,104,000
956,000
2,407,000
887,082

1,000,000

6,354,982

INCREASE/
DECREASE

1,887,982
0

0

0
-887,982

-1,000,000

0

ocooo

1,000,000

1,000,000

CONSTRUCTION

2021
2022
2023
2023
2024

\O5



Table of Content

[ntroduction

Technology Hardware Purchasing Policy
Technology Software Purchasing Policy
Technology Software Use Policy

Use Your One Device Policy

information Technology Security Policy
information Technology Administration Policy
Website Policy

Information Technology Security Policy
Information Technology Service Agreement Policy
Emergency Management of Information Technology Policy
Technology Replacement and Upgrade Policy
Use of Email Policy

Computer Use Policy

10

12

13

15

17

19

21

22

23



Introduction

The IT Policy and Procedure Manual provides the policies and procedures for selection and use
of IT within the CRA which must be followed by all staff. It also provides guidelines the CRA will
use to administer these policies, with the correct procedure to follow.

The CRA will keep all IT policies current and relevant. Therefore, from time to time it will be
necessary to modify and amend some sections of the policies and procedures, or {o add new

procedures.

Any suggestions, recommendations or feedback on the policies and procedures specified in this

manual are welcome.

These policies and procedures apply to all employees.



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES POLICIES & PROCEDURES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SECTION: Information Technology

SUBJECT: Technology Hardware Purchasing Policy

Policy Number: IT-001

1. Purpose of the Policy:

This policy provides guidelines for the purchase of hardware for the CRA to
ensure that all hardware technology is appropriate, value for money and where
applicable integrates with other technology. The objective of this policy is to
ensure that there is minimum diversity of hardware within the CRA.

Computer hardware refers to the physical parts of a computer and related
devices. Internal hardware devices include motherboards, hard drives, and RAM.
External hardware devices include monitors, keyboards, mice, printers, and
scanners.

I PROCEDURES:

This policy relates to the purchase of all desktops, servers, portable computers,
computer peripherals, internal and external hardware, and mobile devices.

All purchase of hardware must be approved by the CRA management and
provided for in the annual budget.

New hardware must be compatible with existing hardware and the server system.

Capacity of hardware to be bought need to be discussed with IT consulting firm
and approved by CRA management.

Minor deviation from this policy can be approved by CRA management.

\Olo



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES POLICIES & PROCEDURES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SECTION: Information Technology

SUBJECT: Technology Software Purchasing Policy

Policy Number: IT-002

l. Purpose of the Policy:

This policy provides guidelines for the purchase of software for the CRA to
ensure that all software used by the business is appropriate, value for money and
where applicable integrates with other technology for the business. This policy
applies to software obtained as part of hardware bundle or pre-loaded software.

II. PROCEDURES:

All software, including must be approved by CRA management prior to the
purchase, use or download of such software.

The purchase of all software must adhere to this policy.

In the event that open source or freeware software, software that can be
obtained without payment and usually downloaded directly from the interned, is
needed, approval from management prior to the download or use of such
software.

All open source or freeware must be compatible with the hardware and software
systems.

\O'l



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES POLICIES & PROCEDURES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SECTION: Information Technology

SUBJECT: Technology Software Use Policy

Policy Number: IT-003

1. Purpose of the Policy:

This policy provides guidelines for the use of software for all employees within
the CRA to ensure that all software use is appropriate. Under this policy, the use
of all open source and freeware software will be conducted under the same
procedures outlined for commercial software.

. PROCEDURES:

All computer software copyrights, and terms of all software licenses will be
followed by all employees of the CRA.

Westgate CRA is to be the registered owner of all software.

Only software obtained in accordance with the getting software policy is to be
installed on the CRA computers.

A software upgrade shall not be installed on a computer that does not already
have a copy of the original version of the software loaded on it.

Prior to the use of any software, the employee must receive instructions on any
licensing agreements relating to the software, including any restrictions on use of
the software.

All employees must receive training for all new software. This includes new
employees to be trained fo use existing software appropriately. Seif-training is
acceptable.

Where an employee is required to use software at home, an evaluation of
providing the employee with a portable computer should be undertaken in the
first instance. Where it is found that software can be used on the employee’s
home computer, authorization from the CRA management is required to
purchase separate software if licensing or copyright restrictions apply. Where
software is purchased in this circumstance, it remains the property of the CRA
and must be recorded on the software register.

\O8



The unauthorized duplicating, acquiring or use of software copies is prohibited.
Any employee who makes, acquires, or uses unauthorized copies of software will
be considered for disciplinary action. The illegal duplication of software or other
copyrighted works is not condoned within this the CRA. Disciplinary action will be
taken where such event occurs.

\O9



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES POLICIES & PROCEDURES

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SECTION: Information Technology

SUBJECT: Use Your One Device Policy

Policy Number: IT-004

1.

Purpose of the Policy:

This policy provides guidelines for the use of personally owned noteboocks, smart
phones, tablets and other mobile devices for CRA business purposes. All staff
who use or the CRA's technology equipment and/or services are bound by the
conditions of this Policy.

The importance of mobile technologies in improving business communication
and productivity is acknowledged. In addition to the increased use of mobile
devices, staff, Board Members, and certain guests are allowed to connect their
own mobile devices to the CRA network and equipment.

PROCEDURES:

Personal mobile devices can only be used for the following business purposes:
Email access, business internet access, business telephone calls.

Each employee who utilizes personal mobile devices agrees:

Not to download or transfer business or personal sensitive information 1o the
device. Sensitive information includes business or personal information that are
considered sensitive to the business, for example intellectual property, other

employee details.

Not to use the registered mobile device as the sole repository for CRA's

information. All business information stored on mobile devices should be backed

up.

To make every reasonable effort to ensure the CRA's information is not
compromised through the use of mobile equipment in a public place. Screens
displaying sensitive or critical information should not be seen by unauthorized
persons and all devices used for CRA business should be password protected

\W\O



¢ Not to share the device with other individuals to protect the business data access

through the device

e To abide by CRA's internet policy for appropriate use and access of internet sites

efc.
¢ To notify CRA immediately in the event of loss or theft of the registered device

e Not to connect USB memory sticks from an untrusted or unknown source to
CRA's equipment.

All employees who use a personal mobile device for business use acknowledge that
the business:

¢ Owns all intellectual property created on the device

e Can access all data held on the device, including personal data

o Will regularly back-up data held on the device

e Will delete all data held on the device in the event of loss or theft of the device
o Has first right to buy the device where the employee wants to sell the device

+ Will delete all data held on the device upon termination of the employee. The
terminated employee can request personal data be reinstated from back up data

Keeping mobile devices secure

The following must be observed when handling mobile computing devices (such as
notebooks and iPads):

+ Mobile computer devices must never be left unattended in a public place, or in an
unlocked house, or in a motor vehicle, even if it is locked. Wherever possible

they should be kept on the person or securely locked away

e Cable locking devices should also be considered for use with laptop computers in

public places, e.g. in a seminar or conference, even when the laptop is attended

* Mobile devices should be carried as hand luggage when travelling by aircraft.

\



Exemptions

This policy is mandatory unless granted an exemption. Any requests for exemptions
from any of these directives, should be referred to CRA Management.

Breach of this policy

Any breach of this policy will be reviewed by CRA management and adequate
consequences will be applied.

Indemnity

The CRA bears no responsibility whatsoever for any legal action threatened or started

due to conduct and activities of staff in accessing or using these resources or facilities.
All staff indemnify the CRA against any and all damages, costs and expenses suffered
by the CRA arising out of any unlawful or improper conduct and activity, and in respect
of any action, settlement or compromise, or any statutory infringement.

W2



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES POLICIES & PROCEDURES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SECTION: Information Technology

SUBJECT: Information Technology Security Policy

Policy Number: IT-005

l. Purpose of the Policy:

This policy provides guidelines for the protection and use of information technology
assets and resources within the business to ensure integrity, confidentiality and
availability of data and assets.

Il. PROCEDURES:

Physical Security

For all servers, mainframes and other network assets, the area must be secured with
adequate ventilation and appropriate access.

it will be the responsibility of CRA management to ensure that this requirement is
followed at all times. Any employee becoming aware of a breach to this security
requirement is obliged to notify management immediately.

All security and safety of all portable technology, such as laptop, notepads, iPad, will be
the responsibility of the employee using it. Each employee is required to use s locks
and/or passwords tosensure the asset is kept safely at all times to protect the security of
the asset issued to them.

In the event of loss or damage, management will assess the security measures
undertaken to determine if the employee will be required to reimburse the business for
the [oss or damage.

Information Security

All relevant data to be backed up here — either general such as sensitive, valuable, or
critical business data is to be backed-up.

It is the responsibility of management, staff and IT consultant to ensure that data back-
ups are conducted regularly, and the backed-up data is kept cloud, offsite venue, and
local external storage drive.

W5



All technology that has internet access must have anti-virus software installed. It is the
responsibility of management, staff, and IT consultant to install all anti-virus software to
ensure that this software remains up to date on all technology used by the business.

All information used within the business is to adhere to the privacy laws and the
business’s confidentiality requirements.

Technology Access

Every employee will be issued with a unique identification code to access the business
technology and will be required to set a password for access every technology device.

Each password is to be unique and strong and is not to be shared with any employee
within the CRA.

Where an employee forgets the password or is ‘locked out’ after a certain number of
attempts, then the IT consultant is authorized to reissue a new initial password that will
be required to be changed when the employee logs in using the new initial password.

Every employee should have access to the server.

Employees are only authorized to use business computers for personal use for internet
usage to check emails and other information relevant to the wellbeing of the employee.

\\4



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES POLICIES & PROCEDURES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SECTION: Information Technology

SUBJECT: Information Technology Administration Policy

Policy Number: IT-006

I Purpose of the Policy:

This policy provides guidelines for the administration of information technology
assets and resources within the business.

. PROCEDURES:

All software installed and the license information must be registered on the in a
folder on the server. It is the responsibility of the employee that uses the software
to ensure that this registered is maintained. The register must record the
following information:

¢ What software is installed.

+ What license agreements are in place for each software package

e Renewal dates if applicable.

IT Consultant and management are responsible for the maintenance and

management of all service agreements for the technology. Any service requirements
must first be approved by CRA management.

A technology audit is fo be conducted annually to ensure that all information
technology policies are being adhered to.

15



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES POLICIES & PROCEDURES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SECTION: Information Technology

SUBJECT: Website Policy

Policy Number: IT-007

1. Purpose of the Policy:

This policy provides guidelines for the maintenance of all relevant technology
issues related to the business website.

Il PROCEDURES:

Website Register

The website register must record the following details:

+ List of domain names registered to the business
» Dates of renewal for domain names
» List of hosting service providers

» Expiry dates of hosting

The keeping the register up to date will be the responsibility of website management
contractor.

Website management contractor will be responsible for any renewal of items listed in
the register.

Website Content

All content on the business website is to be accurate, appropriate and current. This will
be {he responsibility of CRA staff.

All content on the website must follow latest guidelines approved by the Florida
Legislature for special dependent districts specially for Community Redevelopment
Agencies.

o



Any authorized CRA staff is allowed to make changes to certain content of the website.
Basic branding guidelines must be followed on websites to ensure a consistent and

cohesive image for the business.
All data collected from the website is to adhere to the Privacy Act.

W



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES POLICIES & PROCEDURES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SECTION: Information Technology

SUBJECT: Information Technology Security Policy

Policy Number: IT-008

l. Purpose of the Policy:

This policy provides guidelines for all electronic transactions undertaken on behalf of
the CRA.

The objective of this policy is to ensure that use of electronic funds transfers and
receipts are started, carried out, and approved in a secure manner.

. PROCEDURES:

Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT)

All EFT payments and receipts must adhere to all finance policies in the Financial
Policies and Procedures Manual.

All EFT arrangements, including receipts and payments must be submitted o the CRA
bookkeeper.

EFT payments must have the appropriate authorization for payment in line with the
financial transactions policy.

EFT payments must be appropriately recorded in line with finance policy.

EFT payments once authorized, will be entered into the QuickBooks by the CRA
bookkeeper.

EFT payments can only be released for payment once pending payments have been
authorized by CRA management

For good control over EFT payments, ensure that the persons authorizing the payments
and making the payment are not the same person.

All EFT receipts must be reconciled to customer records.

WS



It is the responsibility of CRA management to annually review EFT authorization for
initial entry, alterations, or deletion of EFT records, including supplier payment records
and customer receipt records.

Electronic Purchases

All electronic purchases by any authorized employee must adhere to the purchasing
policy in the Financial Policy and Procedure Manual

Where an electronic purchase is being considered, the person authorizing this

transaction must ensure that the internet sales site is secure and safe and be able to
demonstrate that this has been reviewed.

\\9



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES POLICIES & PROCEDURES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SECTION: Information Technology

SUBJECT: Information Technology Service Agreement Policy

Policy Number: IT-009

I. Purpose of the Policy:

This policy provides guidelines for all IT service agreements entered into on behalf of
the CRA.

Il. PROCEDURES:

The following IT service agreements can be entered into on behalf of the business:

¢ Provision of general IT services

e Provision of network hardware and software

¢ Repairs and maintenance of IT equipment

o Provision of business software

¢ Provision of mobile phones and relevant plans
o Website design, maintenance etc.

o Cyber Security Service Agreement.
All IT service agreements must follow the CRA’s Purchase Agreement Policy.
All IT service agreements, obligations and renewals must be recorded.
Where an IT service agreement renewal is required, in the event that the agreement is
substantially unchanged from the previous agreement, then this agreement renewal can
be authorized by CRA management.
Where an IT service agreement renewal is required, in the event that the agreement

has substantially changed from the previous agreement, the CRA legal counsel should
review, before the renewal is entered into. Once the agreement has been reviewed and

\ 20



recommendation for execution received, then the agreement must be approved by the
CRA Board.

In the event that there is a dispute to the provision of IT services covered by an IT
service agreement, it must be referred to the CRA Board who will be responsible for the
settlement of such dispute.

\ 2}



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES POLICIES & PROCEDURES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SECTION: Information Technology

SUBJECT: Emergency Management of Information Technology Policy

Policy Number: IT-010

. Purpose of the Policy:

This policy provides guidelines for emergency management of all information
technology within the business.

iI. PROCEDURES:

IT Hardware Failure

Where there is failure of any of the business’'s hardware, this must be referred to CRA
management, CRA Board and IT consultant immediately.

It is the responsibility of CRA management to contact IT consultant in the event of IT
hardware failure.

It is the responsibility of CRA management to undertake tests on planned emergency
procedures quarterly to ensure that all planned emergency procedures are appropriate
to minimize disruption to business operations.

Point of Sale Disruptions

In the event that point of sale (POS) system is disrupted, the following actions must be
immediately undertaken:

* Contact IT consultant
o POS provider to be notified

+ All POS transactions to be taken using the manual machine located below the

counter
¢ For all manual POS transactions, customer signatures must be verified

¢ |nform CRA Board Chair

\222



Virus or other security breach

In the event that the CRA’s information technology is compromised by software virus or
other relevant security breaches, such breaches are to be reported to IT consultant
immediately.

CRA management is responsible for ensuring that any security breach is dealt with
within a day to minimize disruption to business operations.

Website Disruption

In the event that business website is disrupted, the following actions must be
immediately undertaken:

¢ Website host to be notified

» CRA management must be notified immediately

\ 25



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES POLICIES & PROCEDURES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SECTION: Information Technology

SUBJECT: Technology Replacement and Upgrade Policy

Policy Number: IT-011

. Purpose of the Policy:

This document defines the CRA policy regarding the replacements of all technology
equipment at the end of its life cycle and upgrades software.

This Policy applies to all CRA-owned workstations, laptop computers, desktop
peripherals (printers, scanners, projectors), network hardware (servers, switches,
routers, bridges, and other key network devices), software (Microsoft Operating
System, Microsoft Office Suite including Office 365 and other site-licensed desktop
applications) running on those devices.

. PROCEDURES:

The CRA will maintain modern computer and network hardware and software capable
of supporting the CRA’s objectives and business activities. The risk of exploitation and
penetration of these systems that could affect the public interest is mitigated by prudent,
systematic replacement and upgrades of systems and software.

The technology hardware will be budgeted for replacement through the CRA budget
and replaced and upgraded every four years or as are needed.

These includes the servers, the laptop computers, the workstation computers, desktop
peripherals.

If a hardware item is determined to be irreparable by the IT consultant or if the cost to

repair exceeds the current market value of the item, the item may be replaced earlier
than indicated above with all costs for replacement covered the Replacement budget.

\ 24



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES POLICIES & PROCEDURES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SECTION: Information Technology

SUBJECT: Use of Email Policy

Policy Number: iT-012

I. Purpose of the Policy:

Email is defined as all technologies used fo transfer messages. Email is a tool for
business communications. CRA employees have a responsibility to use this resource in
an efficient, effective, ethical, and lawful manner. The CRA uses Microsoft Exchange
and Microsoft Qutlook for its email system through a partnership with Palm Beach
County Board of County Commissioners.

II. PROCEDURES:

The email system is installed for the purpose of facilitating CRA business. Personal use
of email shouid be only incidental and minimal.

All email correspondence is the property of the CRA and/or Palm Beach County Board
of County Commissioners.

User email communications are not considered private, despite any such designation by

the sender or the recipient

The existence of passwords does not eliminate the CRA/Palm Beach County's ability to
access electronic communications.

The following acts or actions are specifically prohibited:
Messages which harass another individual.
Threats toward another individual
Promotion of outside business activities unrelated to CRA functions unless
specifically approved in writing by Palm Beach County and CRA management.
Accessing email addressed to another individual without permission.
Political endorsements.
Gambling.
Chain letters.

Users shall ensure the content of the message is accurate.

Users should be aware that their message may be forwarded to other users with or
without their knowledge.



WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES POLICIES & PROCEDURES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

SECTION: Information Technology

SUBJECT: Computer Use Policy

Policy Number: IT-013

[Il. Purpose of the Policy:

it is the policy of the CRA to ensure that computers and peripheral computer and
technology equipment are properly used and maintained.

IV. PROCEDURES:

For the purpose of this policy, computer includes any desktop computer, laptop,
notebook computer, tablet PC or any other related computing device purchased by the
Westgate CRA.

Installation of computers and other technology will be done by the IT consultant with
approval from CRA management.

CRA owned computers should be used for CRA work. Personal use should be limited to
what contribute to the employee’s wellness and wellbeing if it allows the employee to be
more productive. Personal use should be limited to a minimum.

No equipment shall be removed, returned or exchanged without prior approval of CRA
management and/or IT consultant.

Users shall not attempt to change the configuration or setup of any City computing
equipment. This is the sole responsibility of IT consuiltant.

Users are encouraged to follow the guidelines below fo prevent damage to equipment:

Beverage containers and food should not be placed near computers, keyboards,
mice peripherals and technology equipment.

Eating, drinking near computer and technology equipment, especially
keyboards, should not occur.

Anything that could fall or spill and ultimately damage the computer systems or
hardware should not be located above or near nay computers peripherals or
technology equipment.

Y 280



When repair is needed, user can contact IT consultant with approval from CRA
management.

These Policies were approved by the CRA Board:

Signature Date

V21



9/9/2021 RE: Belvedere Heights Phase | - Project 2018027 - Elizee Michel
Thank you,

Elizee Michel, AICP, FRA-RA, Executive Director
Westgate CRA
1280 N. Congress Ave. Suite 215

561-640-8181

From: Holly Knight

Sent: Thursday, August 19, 2021 9:11:18 AM

To: Elizee Michel

Cc: Morton Rose; Kristine Frazell-Smith; Kathleen Farrell; Sandra Ospina M.; Melissa Hagen
Subject: RE: Belvedere Heights Phase | - Project 2018027

Elizes,

Per your request we have trimmed the staff and contingency numbers as much as possible for the Belvedere | construction
contract. Please see below for the revised numbers. We will need a check for this amount by 9/3.

Contractor: 51,360,000
Contingency : $272,000
Staff/Testing Costs: _$111,000
Total costs: $1,743,000
Sincerely,

Holly

From: Elizee Miche! <EMichel@pbcgov.org>

Sent: Wednesday, August 18, 2021 12:07 PM

To: Holly Knight <HKnight@pbcgov.org>

Cc: Morton Rose <MRose@pbcgov.org>; Kristine Frazell-Smith <Kfsmith@pbegov.org>; Kathleen Farrell
<KFarrell@pbcgov.org>; Sandra Ospina M. <S0spina@pbcgov.org>; Melissa Hagen <MHagen@pbcgov.org>
Subject: Re: Belvedere Heights Phase | - Project 2018027

Hi Holly:

Staff has been discussing this with the Board. We are putting the funding together for the the CRA Board to
approve. The Board has seen the cost estimate, but as you can see that cost has changed and need to be
budgeted and authorized by the CRA Board.

As stated in my previous email, a cost reduction anywhere in the estimate will help us a great deal.
Thank you.

Elizee Michel, AICP, FRA-RA, Executive Director
Westgate CRA

1280 N. Congress Ave. Suite 215 ‘
Woest Palm Beach FL 33409
561-640-8181

23

NkM... 2/4

——"

Q

https:/iwebmail.pbegov.orglowaléviewmodel=ReadMessageltem&ltem|D=AAMKAGYWZDVIMTVKLTAZNDQINGFhNS04ZDAwWLWESZDMzNTIZ



8/9/2021 RE: Belvedere Heights Phase | - Project 2018027 - Elizee Michel

From: Holly Knight

Sent: Monday, August 16, 2021 10:47:14 AM

To: Elizee Michel

Cc: Morton Rose; Kristine Frazell-Smith; Kathleen Farrell; Sandra Ospina M.; Melissa Hagen
Subject: RE: Belvedere Heights Phase | - Project 2018027

Elizee,

We have been emailing you on this for over a month now and you have not responded at all. We need the check for this
contract to move forward. | need a response from you on this. When can we expect the check? You are jeopardizing the
grant funding and the project by ignoring us.

Holly

From: Holly Knight

Sent: Wednesday, August 11, 2021 10:47 AM

To: Elizee Michel <EMichel@pbcgov.org>

Cc: Morton Rose <MRose@ pbcgov.org>; Kristing Frazell-Smith <Kfsmith@pbcgov.org>; Kathleen Farrell
<KFarrell@pbcgov.org>; Sandra Ospina M. <SOspina@pbcgov.org>; Melissa Hagen <MHagen@ pbcgov.org>
Subject: RE: Belvedere Heights Phase | - Project 2018027

Elizee,

We need to know the status of the check. The board item is stalled until you provide the funding. We are in jeopardy of
breaching the grant requirements if we do not get this moving immediately.

Holly

From: Holly Knight

Sent: Friday, August 6, 2021 12:09 PM

To: Elizee Michel <EMichel@pbcgov.org>

Cc: Morton Rose <MRose@pbcgov.org>; Kristine Frazell-Smith <Kfsmith@pbcgov.org>; Kathleen Farrell
<KFarrell@pbcgov.org>; Sandra Ospina M. <SOspina@pbcgov.org>; Elizee Michel <EMichel@pbcgov.org>
Subject: RE: Belvedere Heights Phase | - Project 2018027

Elizee,

| have not heard back from you on this. We have a significantly compressed schedule to get this contract to the BCCin order
to comply with the grant requirements. Please advise on the status of the check.

Thank You,
Holly

From: Holly Knight

Sent: Friday, July 23, 2021 3:09 PM

To: Melissa Hagen <MHagen@pbcgov.org>; Elizee Michel <EMichel@pbcgov.org>

Cc: Morton Rose <MRose@phcgov.org>; Kristine Frazell-Smith <Kfsmith@ pbcgov.org>; Kathleen Farrell
<KFarrell@pbcgov.org>; Sandra Ospina M. <50spina@pbcgov.org>

Subject: RE: Belvedere Heights Phase | - Project 2018027

Elizee, ‘
Can you tell me the status of this check for the construction contract? \3
https:/iwebmail pbcgov.orglowafiiviewmodel=ReadMessageltem&ItemID=AAMKAGYWZDVIMTVKLTAZNDQINGFhNS04ZDAWLWESZDMzZNTIZDNKM. .. 3/4



9/9/2021 RE: Belvedere Heights Phase | - Project 2018027 - Elizee Michel

Thank You,
Holly

From: Melissa Hagen <MHagen@ pbcgov.org>

Sent: Wednesday, July 14, 2021 7:49 AM

To: Elizee Michel <EMichel@pbcgov.org>

Cc: Morton Rose <MRose@pbcgov.org>; Kristine Frazell-Smith <Kfsmith@pbcgov.org>; Kathleen Farrell
<KFfarrell@pbcgov.org>; Sandra Ospina M. <SOspina@pbcgov.org>; Holly Knight <HKnight@pbcgov.org>
Subject: Belvedere Heights Phase | - Project 2018027

Importance: High

Good Afternoon Elizee,

We are processing the Construction Contract for the Belvedere | project and will need a check from the CRA for
$1,905,000.00.

Contractor $1,360,000.00
Contingency $381,000.00
Staff Costs $164,000.00
Total $1,905,000.00

Please send the check to Holly Knight’s attention.

Kind Regards,

L//ééda %/ﬂz

Technical Assistant |

Palm Beach County Engineering & Public Works | Roadway Production Division
2300 N. Jog Rd., West Palm Beach, FL 33411

(=] mhagen@phbcgov.org

https:.'lwebmail.pbcgov.orglowal#viewmodeI=ReadMessage]tem&ltemID=AAMkAGYwZDV[MTVkLTA2NDQtNGFhNSO4ZDAwLWE52DMzNTII;;NkM... 4/4



Department of Engineering
and Public Works

P.O.Box 21229
Woest Palm Beach, FL 35416-1229
{861) 684-4000
FAX: (561) 684-4050

www.pbcgov.com

Palm Beach County
Board of County
Commissioners

Dave Kerner, Mayor
Robert S. Weinroth, Vice Mayor
Maria G, Marino
Gregg K. Weiss
Maria Sachs
Melissa McKinlay

Mack Bernard

County Administrator

Verdenia C, Baker

“An Egual Opportunity
Affirmative Action Emplayer”

Official Electronic Letterhead

DATE: July 22,2021

TO:

Rosso Site Development, Inc,
R & D Paving, LLC

Straight Edge Concrete, LLC
Horsepower Electric, Inc.

24l por—

FROM: Morton L. Rose, P.E., Director, Roadway Production Division

RE:

AWARD RECOMMENDATION

BELVEDERE HEIGHTS PHASE 1,

SIDEWALKS AND PEDESTRIAN LIGHTS
FEDERALIZED

PALM BEACH COUNTY PROJECT NO.: 2018027
FM# 441530-1-58-01

Based on bid results, the Engineering & Public Works Department
recommends award of the above referenced confract to Rosso Site
Development, Inc.

The enclosed Award Recommendation will be posted at the Engineering
& Public Works Department / Roadway Production Division reception
area on the 3rd Floor at 2300 North Jog Road, West Palm Beach, Florida
on July 23,2021 and to

hitp://discover.pbceov.org/engineering/roadwayproduction/Pages/Bid-

Deocuments.aspx

If your office wishes to protest the award recommendation, you may do
so by addressing your protest to Ms. Kathleen M. Scarlett, Director,
Palm Beach County Purchasing Department, 50 South Military Trail,
West Palm Beach, Florida 33415, Failure to submit a protest to the
Director of Purchasing within five (5) business days after posting of the
Award Recommendation, as prescribed in Section 2-55(b) of the Palm
Beach County Code, shall constitute a waiver of proceedings under the
referenced County Code.

We thank you for your continued interest in bidding Palm Beach County
projects.

cC!

David Ricks, P.E., County Engineer
Steven B. Carrier, P.E., Assistant County Engineer
Yelizaveta Herman, Assistant Counly Attomey
Kathleen M. Scarlett, Director, Purchasing Department
Alexis Willhite, Director, Administrative Services
athleen O. Farrell, P.E., Assistant Director, Roadway Production Division
Holly B. Knight, P.E., Contracts Section Manager, Roadway Production Div.
Kristine, Frazell-Smith, P.E., Local Roads Manager
Sandra Qspina, P.E., Project Manager
Albert Hoffman, Director, Construction Coordination
Vanessa Jagoo, Office Manager, Roadway Production Division
Saman Rohani, Utility Coordinator, Roadway Production Division
Anthony Montero, Office of the Inspector General
Angela Smith, Smail Business Development Specialist II, CEBO
Cornelia Wantz, Technical Assistant III, Traffic Division
Sabrina Aubery, P.E., FDOT Program Administration Engineer
Mya Williams, FDOT Local Program Administrator
Ramon E. Alvarez, FDOT LAP Coordinator

\ 5\



AWARD RECOMMENDATION

PROJECT NO: 2018027 / FM#441530-1-58-01
TITLE: Belvedere Heights Phase 1, Sidewalks and Pedestrian Lights

FEDERALIZED
LIST OF BIDDERS FROM TOTAL AMOUNT OF BID
LOWEST TO HIGHEST
Rosso Site Development, Inc.* $1,359,441.22*
R & D Paving, LLC $1,564,418.05
Straight Edge Concrete, LLC $1,570,360.76
Horsepower Electric, Inc. $1,649,860.00

*Palm Beach County Engineering & Public Works recommends award to Rosso Site Development,
Inc., the lowest responsive, responsible bidder.

Enc: Bid Tabulations

\52



DocuSign Envelope ID: DBS80281-AF454AEB-8423-81E157BA5165

Florida Department of Transportation

RON DESANTIS 3400 West Commercial Boulevard KEVIN J. THIBAULT, P.E.
GOYERNOR Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309 SECRETARY
5/24/2021 | 11:29 AM EDT
Holly Knight, P.E.
Palm Beach County

2300 North Jog Road
West Palm Beach, FL 33411

SUBJECT: NOTICE TO PROCEED FOR CONSTRUCTION
County: Palm Beach

Contract No.: G1V92

Description: Belvedere Heights — Various Locations
Agency: Palm Beach County

Project Class: D

Dear Ms, Knight:

The Local Agency (Palm Beach County) is hereby given Notice to Proceed (NTP) for Construction activities
for the subject project. Please move forward with procuring a contractor for construction. The total amount
of federal funds authorized for construction is $1,334,856.00.

Please note that this NTP is valid for thirty (30} days from date of issuance. Local Agencies are required to
advertise a project within 30 days of the NTP date per the terms of the LAP Agreement (7B). This project
must be advertised within thirty (30) days of this NTP. If not advertised within thirty (30) days, this NTP will
be voided and reissued upon approval of Local Agency justification.

Once advertised, the Local Agency must award to a contractor within Ninety (90) days of the bid opening
date. If an addendum is necessary during the advertisement period, the Local Agency must submit the
addendum for review and concurrence prior to publication.

As a reminder, prior to awarding to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder/contracter, the Local
Agency must receive bid concurrence from the Department. Negotiations with contractors are not permitted
during the advertisement, award, or execution period of the contracting process. Once the contract between
the hidder/contractor and the Local Agency has been executed, the Local Agency is to create the contract
screen in Local Agency Program Information Tool (LAPIT) and upload the executed contract. This is to be
done prior to scheduling the pre-constfruction meeting.

Please provide a notice of the preconstruction meeting to: Ms. Shelley ChinQuee, FDOT District Four
Construction Office, 3400 West Commercial Boulevard, Ft. Lauderdale, FL 33309-3421, and Mr. Ramon
E. Alvarez.

In order to be eligible for federal reimbursement by the Department, the Local Agency must comply with all
applicable procedures, standards, and directives as described in the Department's Local Agency Program
Manual. All changes must be submitted to the District in writing for approval prior to
implementation.

Improve Safety, Enhance Mobility, Inspire Innovation
www.fdot.gov

\235



DocuSign Envelope [D: DB580281-AF45-4AEB-8423-81E157BA5165

Page 2 0f 2
FM# 441530-1-58-01

For reimbursement from the Department, all Local Agency invoice/reimbursement request package with
supporting documentation are to be emailed to D4-localprograminvoices@dot.state fl.us for Local Program
review and processing. Progressive invoicing is REQUIRED; it is the Local Agency’s responsibility to ensure
the contractor/consultant is invoicing, and the Local Agency, in turn, is invoicing the Department, preferably
monthly but at least on a quarterly basis.

This project was authorized by the Federal Highway Administration in March 2021. The Department
expecis to receive invoicing materials by December 2021. Should billing not occur, FHWA may consider
the project inactive and could move toward de-obligating the funding.

Please be advised that this contract will expire on December 31, 2022 and any costs incurred after the
contract expiration date are not eligible for reimbursement. If you anticipate the project will not be completed
prior to the expiration date, a request for a time extension will need to be submitted to the Department for
consideration. This request needs to be submitted a minimum of ninety {90} days prior to the expiration
date.

Each year during the life of the project, please provide the Department a copy of the Agency Audit Report.
Send this report directly to the following address as referenced in page 6 of the LAP agreement.

Florida Department of Transportation
Office of Comptrolier, MS 24

605 Suwannee Street

Tallahassee, Florida 32329-0405
Email: FDOTSingleAudit@dot.state fl.us

After the project is completed, please provide a signed original copy of the Final Inspection and Acceptance
of Federal-Aid Project, Form 700-010-32 and Material Certification Letter as shown in the LAP Manual
Chapter 23. Send this information to Mr. James Lewis, FDOT District 4 Palm Beach Operations Office,
7900 Forest Hill Blvd., West Palm Beach, FL 33413.

In compliance with Chapter 2 of the LAP Manual, Section 2.6 Performance Management, your Agency's
performance on this project will be rated on several aspects, as shown on form No. 525-010-50 Local
Agency Program Performance Evaluation.

Should you have any questions, please call Ramen E. Alvarez, LAP Program Coordinator, at (954) 777-

4403 or email at Ramon. Alvarez(@dot.state.fl.us.
Sincerely’ DocuSigned by:
@qm (Nillicms

SFA3F38F9268404...

Mya Williams
Local Program Administrator
Florida Department of Transportation

District Four

ce: Kristine Frazell-Smith — Palm Beach County
Sandra Ospina M, — Palm Beach Ceunty
Shelley ChinQuee / Stacy Sasala — FDOT Canstruction
Ronald Arcalas — FDOT Materials Lab
Rob Cables / James Lewis — F2OT Operations
Stacy A. Sookdew-Sing ~ FDOT Operations
D4 Work Pragram - FDOT
Financial Setvices - FDOT
File

Improve Safety, Enhance Mobility, Inspire Innovation
www.fdot.gov

\%4



Partners 0gress
Palm Beach County Board of Commissionurs
tyr

a
Florida Power & Light Company
LRP Media Group
Stiles-Nicholsen Foundation
Tortoise Properties LLC
Wexicrd Capital LP
Board of Advisor Members
Acrojet Rocketdyne
BankUnited
Bank of America
Baplist Health South Florida
Caler, Donten, Levine, Colen, Porter & Vell, P.A,
CareerSource Palm Beach County
Centennial Bank

DePuy Synthes Power Tools. 2 Johnson & Johnson Ce.

Equestrian Spert Produrtions, LLC

Florida Crystals Corporation

Greenberg Traurig

Gunster

Hardrives, Inc.

HiCA Palm Beach Hospitals « |FK Main,
North Campus and Palms West lHospitals

1edrick Brothers Canstrustion

Hospital for Special Surgery Florida

1.C. White

P Morgan Chase

Martens Group

Minto Cemmunities, LLC

NCC]

NexiGen Mgmt dba DPxWeb Management, LLG

Nova Southeastern University

Palm Beach Aggregates, L1.C

Palm Beach Park of Commerce

PNC Bank

Pratt & Whitney

Raymond james/Boynlon Financial Group

RSMUSLLP

South Florida Busingss & Wealth Magazine

South Florida Business Journab

TD Bank

Wells Fargo

ADT

ADT Commercial

Anderson-Moere Construction Corp,
BDO

Berkowitz Potlack Brant Advisors and CPA's
Capital Analytics

Carr, Riggs & Ingram (CRI)

CBRE, Inc.

CenterState Bank

Comerica Bank

Compson Associates, Inc.

Craf Construction Company
Crocker Partners

Day Pitney Richman Greer

DSM Capital Partners, LLC
EisnerAmper LLP

ESPN West Palm

Filth Third Bank

First Citizens Bank

Florida Atlantic University

Florida Blue

Florida Public Utilities Company
Fox Rothschild LLP

Gentile Glas Holloway 0'Mahoney & Associates, Inc.
GL Homes

Good Samaritan Medical Center
Hi-Tech Rooling & Sheet Metal, Inc.
I'T. Salutions of South Flerida, Inc.
ldeabar

JLL

Kesharvarz & Associates

Lesser, Lesser, Landy & Smith, PLLC
Lessing's Hespitality Group
Lockheed Martin Corporation

Lynn Universily

Moss & Associates

NAI/Merin lunter Cediman
Oxbridge Academy

Palm Beach Siate College

Plastridge Insurance Agency
Regions Bank

The Relaled Companics

Rendina Ifealtheare Real Estate
Rybovich

SBA Communications Corperalion
Sisca Constructien Services, 11L.C,
Skanska USA Building, Inc.

The Special Event Resource and Design Group, 1ne,
Sympatice Rezl Estate

Truist Bank

U.S. Polo Association Global Licensing
Verdex Construction

The Weitz Company

Wellinglon Regional Medical Center

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT BOARD

==1PALM BEACH
== COUNTY

Your Economic Development Resousce

August 26,2021

Mr. Jon MacGillis, ASLA, Zoning Director
Palm Beach County

Planning, Zoning and Building Department
2300 North Jog Road

West Palm Beach, FL 33411

RE: Letter of Support for Museo Vault
Contro) Number: 2003-00096
Application Number: ABN/CB-2020-01702

Dear Mr. MacGillis:

The Business Development Board of Palm Beach County (“BDB") is working with WPB
Westgate, LLC, owner of the +/- 1.43-acre site known as "Westgate Commerce Park’
{"Property"), which is generally located on the south side of Westgate Avenue
approximately 1/4 mile east of Military Trail within the Urban/Suburban Tier of
Unincorporated Palm Beach County. The Property is located along an existing
commercially developed corridor, is currently vacant and was previously approved for
development of a 15,000 square foot building including 3,750 square feet of Office use
and 11,250 square feet of Warehouse use.

It is our understanding that WPB Westgate intends to develop the Properly with a +/- 49,760
square foot Limited Access Self-Service Art Storage & Logistics Facility providing a unique
storage option for the County’s fine art collectors, museums & institutions, artist/artist estates,
fashion houses/designers/ready-to-wear brands, art advisors, galleries, trusts/estates/foundations,
and architects & interior designers. The facility will offer a secure viewing room, state of the art
security, climate & humidity controls with redundant mechanical systems, UV filtration on interior
lighting, and a variety of storage unit sizes (“Project™). These new and novel services will promote
Palin Beach County as a leader in cultural development and a destination for fine art collectors,
galleries, and institutions. Further, this development will provide ground up construction, which
will create 75-100 construction related jobs, in addition to creating 15 permanent jobs to operate
post-construction. :

In consideration of factors described herein, the BDB supports the Project and respectfully
requests your approval the above referenced zoning application. Please do not hesitate to contact
me directly at ghines@bdb.org should you have any questions or need additional information at
this time.

Sincerely,

Gy e

Gary Hin
Senior Vice President, Administration
Business Development Board of Palm Beach County, Inc.

CcC: Ramsay Bulkeley, Executive Director - Palm Beach County Planning, Zoning, and
Building,
Ryan Vandenburg, Principal Site Planner — Palii Beach County Zoning
Timothy Haynes, Senior Site Planner - Palm Beach County Zoning

310 EVERNIA STREET, WEST PALM BEACH, FL, 33401
TEL (561) 835-1008 FAX (561) 835-1160 www,bdb.org

\&D



LETTER OF INTENT

Fi
THIS LETTER OF INTENT is made as of this 9~O X day of ALLETLLS‘I’
QO (the “Execution Date”"),

BETWEEN

Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency
(the “Owner”}

AND

All-Site Construciion, Inc.
(the “Contractor”})

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2021, the Owner issued an invitation to Bid {ITB} for the
development of the Westgate Dog Park. The work entails the consiruction of g dog park
at the comer of Seminole Boulevard and Oswego Avenue. The construction scope
includes the installation of berms, landscaping material, irrigation, fencing, site
furnishings, park equipment, and signage, and any site amenities consistent with these
types of improvements, along with other works necessary to complete the project as
speciiied in the construction drawings; and,

WHEREAS, on July 26, 2021 the Coniractor responded to the ITB by submitling o
proposal for the construction of the Westgate Dog Park; and,

WHEREAS, CRA staff has reviewed the proposal and has recommended that the CRA
Board approve the proposal submitied by Confractor; and,

WHEREAS, the CRA Board adjoumed iis regularly scheduled August 9, 2021 meeting
due fo a lack of quorum;

WHEREAS, CRA staff recognizes that is very likely that the Board will accept Contracior's
Proposal at iis next regularly scheduled CRA Board meeting on September 13, 2021 and
move to execute a coniract for the construction of the dog park; and,

WHEREAS, the Owner and the Contractor have determined that it is in the best interest
of timely completion of the park io apply for construction permits and order certain
construction materials as soon as possible before the consiruction contract is approved
and executed by both pariies, on or shortly after September 13, 2021: and,

WHEREAS, the execution of this Leifer of Intent to be in the best interest of timely
completion of the park.

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that,

\ 5



WITNESSES:

- The Owner is responsible for fully compensaiing the Contractor for costs incurred
in applying for permits and ordering park equipment, site fumishings, or other
materials needed to ensure the timely completion of the park.

. The Contractor is responsible for applying for the necessary Palm Beach County
permits and ordering park equipment, site fumishings, or other materials requiring
a long lead time fo ensure the fimely completion of the park.

- The Contractor shall be responsible for informing the Owner of the iotal anticipated
cost before permits are submitted, and park equipment, site furnishings, or oiher
materials are ordered, and obtaining written approval from the Owner.

. Any costs incured by the Contracior in advance of an executed construcied
coniract shall be based on the itemized bid proposal submitied by the Contracior
on July 26, 2021,

- Any expenses paid by the Owner will be deducted from the construction coniract
before it is mutually execuied.

This Letter of Intent shall be in effect as of ihe date it has been signed by both enfities
and will cease upon the mutual execution of a construction contract betwsen the Owner
and the Coniractor.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Lefter of Intent the day
and year first above writien.

Owner:
Westgate/Belvedere Homes

Community l({edeve!opment 76}!

\ P
Si natur\e

Mo B

S 2XWINT,

Signature

EFlizee M :'.C'/'leﬁ., Fio coddite O nedons

Printed Name

Signature .

Depise, Panazl]

Printed Name

Printed Name

\5)



The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this \7} day of Ay i =
202\ by _EAée WMichel (name of person
acknowledging).

{Notary Seal}
SFFEE. MALD.BUI —
i fly 24 Commission GG 334228 ; Dg P ;
2l L Eoiustley 1,203 Sigpature of Notary Public - State of Florida
il Eaedad Thog Trey Fa Faoezocs £00-385-7015

Personally Known / OR Produced Identification

Type of ldentification Produced:

WIL SES: CONTRACTOR:
AE!-SKWMEIC.
-
Nz \_CQ
Slgnature Si/galature \"

Teltia Sokfold Tua Saffaid

P% Printed Name

"gl/;]melture
s /N

Printed Name

{Corporate Seal}

COUNTY OF ‘RL\W\ QDQO\,CJI\
STATE OF F LOW’L M

Cgl})e foregomg strume aacknowiedged before me th:saﬁ day of U USWL
{name of peﬁson

acknowledging)

155



{Notary Seal)

g

57", Commission# GG 977495 ] T~ —
W: Explres Aprl 12, 2024 Signature of Notary Fublic - State of Florida
TroprOC  Bonded Thu Budget Nolary Services

r!.'-:'_ff_ia% FELICIAL. SAFFOLD-TURNER

13 % 4

Personally Known OR Produced ldeniification

Type of Identification Produced:




1. Applicant Organization

Must match box 8 of the SF-424.

Applicant Organization: Westgate Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency
Phone Number: (561) 640-8181

Email: emichel@pbcgov.org

Mailing Address: 1280 Old Congress Ave., Ste. 215, West Palm Beach, Florida 33409

2. Authorized Organization Representative (AOR)
List the person who will be the main contact for any correspondence and is responsible for signing any
documentation should the grant be awarded. Must match box 21 of the SF-424.

Name: Elizee Michel

Title: Executive Director

Phone Number: (561) 640-8181, ext. 102
Email: emichel@pbcgov.org

Mailing Address: ¥'[0 Check if same as above

3. Applicant Entity Type
Select the applicable entity type for your organization as defined in Section C. of the NFO.

O Native American tribal governments (federally recognized)

O Native American tribal governments {other than federally recognized)

O Nonprofits having a 501(c)3 status with the Internal Revenue Service (IRS), other than
institutions of higher education

O Nonprofits that do not have a 501(c)3 status with the IRS, other than institutions of higher
education

v'0 A unit of local government

O Any school that serves any of the grades kindergarten through grade 12

4. Grant Application Project Type
Select the applicable project type as described in Section A of the NFO.

0 Planning Project  v'[U Implementation Project

5. Project Title: Westgate Community Farm — Production Expansion, Community
Education, Training and Outreach Initiative

Provide a descriptive title. Must match box 15 of the SE-424.

6. Funding Request: $300,000
Insert the total amount (§) of Federal funds requested. This must match the total amount requested on Line 18a.
Estimated Federal Funding of the SF-424,

7. Duration of Project
Start Date: October 1,2021 End Date: September 30, 2024

Westgate/Belvedere Community Redevelopment Agency UAIP Application Narrative | Page i

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756923 Funding Cppertunity Number: USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIP-ZJ.-N*G@@O



10. Project Narrative
i.  Project Overview and Relationship to Program Objectives:

The Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency (Redevelopment
Agency) seeks to build upon the success of its Westgate Community Farm (Community Farm) and
seasonal Farmers Market, which began operations in 2015, to improve access to fresh food choices,
increase the number of apprenticeship positions, workshops, and educational programs for its
residents.

The redevelopment area (Area) comprises approximately 1,300-acres or two-square miles
within unincorporated Palm Beach County, de-annexed from the City of West Palm Beach in the
early 1930s. By the 1980s, the Area suffered from widespread and persistent slum and blight due
to insufficient drainage and severe flooding, unpaved roads, dilapidated housing stock,
deteriorated buildings and property neglect, disinvestment and stunted economic growth, impacts
from Palm Beach International (PBI) airport operations, and a high concentration of residents in
poverty, and low-income households, among other factors. Through a Finding of Necessity, in
1989 the Palm Beach County (PBC) Board of County Commissioners established the
Redevelopment Agency as a dependent special district pursuant to Florida Statute, Ch. 163, Part
I1I to promote social and economic development. The Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA)
is mandated with implementing their Community Redevelopment Plan (Plan), developed with
community and stakeholders input, to addresses the unique needs within the targeted area. The
Plan includes the overall goals for redevelopment within the targeted area, as well as identifying
the types of projects and programs planned.

CRA’s in Florida are funded through tax increment financing (TIF), Tax increment financing
is a unique tool available to cities and counties for redevelopment activities. It is used to leverage
public funds to promote private sector activity in the targeted area. The dollar value of all real
property in the Community Redevelopment Area is determined as of a fixed date, also known as
the “frozen value.” Taxing authorities, which contribute to the tax increment, continue to receive
property tax revenues based on the frozen value. These frozen value revenues are available for
general government purposes, However, any tax revenues from increases in real property value,
referred to as “increment,” are deposited into the Community Redevelopment Agency Trust Fund
and dedicated to the redevelopment area. CRA’s leverage these local public funds with private
dollars through partnerships to make redevelopment happen. Over $33 million in improvements
to drainage and sanitary sewer systems, new and rehabilitated workforce housing projects, open
and recreational space amenities, and programs to support community and economic development
have been implemented by the Redevelopment Agency since its creation.

Characteristics of slum and blight, and the associated lack of healthy food destination
investment within the Area contribute to household food insecurity. The entirety of this single
urban service area (Area), is designated a food desert by the USDA (see Exhibit 1). According to
the 2019 U.S. Census American Community Survey (2019 ACS), the Area has a poverty level of
36.5%, with 61.0% of the population earning no more than $34,999, and 45.7% of individuals
earning no more than $24,999 compared to the County at $19.1%. This is significant because,
according to the Living Wage Calculator, the individual living wage for Palm Beach County
(County) is $32,490 per the 2020-2021 update. By contrast, the County has a poverty level of
12.2%, with 35.7% of individuals earning no more than $34,999.

While the Community Farm serves all Area residents including the surrounding
neighborhoods, the primary target audience are households that receive SNAP benefits, which is
38.1% of the Area’s households, compared to the County at 9.8%; and children less than 18 years

Woestgate/Belvedere Community Redevelopment Agency UAIP Application Narrative | Page 1

PREVIEW Date: Jul 3¢, 2021 Workspace ID: W300756923 Funding Qpperfunity Number: USDA—NRCS-—NHQ-UAIP-z1—NOE\&J¥0



old, which account for 34% of the Area’s total population, compared to the County at 19.2% (2019
ACS). Targeted audiences also include local elementary school children, residents seeking
culturally significant produce not readily available in local commercial markets, and residents
seeking volunteer opportunities and/or apprenticeships to launch a career in urban farming
education, production, or related fields.

To improve the value of the Community Farm for Area residents, an Edible Backyard
Garden workshop will be implemented, and farming operations will be expanded to a 0.32 acre
satellite site where an agroforest will be created, in addition to continuing soil amendment efforts
toward increasing production by approximately 20% by year 3 and 50% by year 5, improving
access to fresh produce choices at the bi-weekly Farmers Market, and serving a greater number of
Westgate households. To date, one-quarter of sales are from households with SNAP benefits,
which accounts for 30% of overall sales. Through marketing and community outreach efforts, the
Community Farm targets increasing the percentage of SNAP beneficiaries to 33% of purchases.

The Community Farm will build upon its collaboration with the West Gate Elementary
School (School) and is currently working with the Florida Atlantic University (FAU) College of
Nursing Westgate Community Flealth Center (Health Unit) to re-establish a partnership. With
these partners, this project will provide and expand targeted educational programs for the children
and residents, and provide a nutritionist for health and nutrition consultations for residents at the
Farmers Markets. Planting beds will be installed at the School to kick-off an Adopt-a-Bed project
for the students as a teaching tool to convey best farming practices, the importance of nutrition,
and how the food system work. This project will also support increasing the number of annual
school field trips to the Community Farm. Through the partnership with the Health Unit or a
certified nutritionist, residents will have easy access to a nutritionist at no charge, for consultations
twice a month. The Redevelopment Agency/Palm Beach County partnership will continue through
the provision of funds toward the improvement of streets, street lighting, storm-water and drainage,
among others. These funds also contribute toward community center improvements, the expansion
and improvement of parks, demolition of blighted structures, and the acquisition of land.

ii. The Community to Be Involved in the Project and the Needs to Be Addressed:
Evaluation of food system elements and needs within the targeted Area is predicated upon
several key elements that comprise the local food environment. This includes spatial distribution
and physical accessibility of fresh food destinations; demographic analysis of household income,
size, and mobility; the number of food stamp/SNAP beneficiaries; and actively employing
community engagement/outreach efforts to identify cultural fresh produce preferences to increase
the value of the Community Farm to its residents.

According to the 2019 ACS, a total of 12,549 Westgate residents live in 3,118 households, for
an average of four persons per household, which far exceeds the County’s average of 2.6 persons
per household. The percentage of Hispanic (57.4%) and Black (31.2%) residents exceed the
County averages of 22.4% and 18.7% respectively, while individual median income is a paltry
$20,413, well below the estimated minimum 2020-21 individual annual living wage of $32,490
for PBC. Similarly, median household income is $34,980, almost half of the County’s median of
$63,299, and even farther below the estimated minimum 2020-21 household living wage of
$94,057 for a family of four. Not surprisingly, 45.7% of individuals earn no more than $24,999
compared to the County at $19.1%, and 36.5% of residents fall below the 100% Poverty Level
compared to the County at 12.2%, with an additional 22.0% within 100% to 149% of the Poverty
Level. Mobility options necessary to access healthy food destinations are further limited, as 5.1%

Westgate/Belvedere Community Redevelopment Agency UAIP Application Narrative | Page 2

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756923 Funding Oppeortunity Number: IJSDJF*~-I\1PU3£!-NHQ-UAIP-21-1\105‘3000‘121'U



of households have zero cars and 34.6% get by with only one car, compounded by limited access
to public transit. Within the Westgate Area, 88.6% percent of households own a computer and
78.4% have a broadband internet subscription.

Additionally, 38.1% of households receive food stamps/SNAP, and according to the PBC
School Board, prior to the Covid-19 pandemic, almost all (95%) of West Gate Elementary Students
qualified for free/reduced lunch.

The Area is bounded by Okeechobee Blvd. (8-lanes) to the north, Belvedere Road (6-lanes) to
the south, and Military Trail (6-lanes) to the west, all of which are dangerous multi-lane high-
speed (45 mph) arterials, which support regional or Palm Beach International (PBI) airport serving
commercial establishments mostly comprised of car sales/rentals, fast food restaurants,
convenience stores, gas stations, big box retail, and commercial plazas.

The Westgate Community Farm is located within the social center of the Westgate Area (see
Exhibit 2), which is primarily residential, but includes the Westgate Avenue mixed-use Main Street
corridor. Also located within this core redevelopment area are the PBC Westgate Park and
Community Center, West Gate Elementary School, the Health Clinic, a number of passive
recreation areas developed by the Redevelopment Agency, and the future Westgate Community
Farm satellite farm.

jiii. ~The Organizations and Communities Involved in the Project:

The Westgate Community Redevelopment Agency, the applicant, has been developing
and implementing community redevelopment projects within its single urban service area since
1989. The Redevelopment Agency has sought input from its residents and stakeholders through
outreach efforts and charrettes, and established ongoing partnerships toward revitalizing its
community. The urban Community Farm is owned and operated by the Redevelopment Agency,
and was created in 2015 due to a recognition by the Agency that many of its residents have limited
access to fresh food choices. This resulted in a partnership with the Quantum Foundation and the
Palm Beach County Health Department in 2012, to create a mobile Farmers Market, the Westgate
Green Market Express. A small electric golf cart was modified with a flatbed to accommodate the
fresh produce supplied by a local farm. A registered dietitian was also onboard to talk with
residents and share recipes. Following the acquisition of vacant land in 2012 to develop an urban
farm, and in anticipation of continued growth of the Community Farm, the Redevelopment Agency
worked with PBC Zoning staff to amend land development code regulations, and obtained required
Engineering and Zoning Site Plan approval (Exhibit 3) necessary to make the permanent Farmers
Market a shovel ready project.

The Community Farm has been growing each year, systematically expanding the variety
and volume of available produce based on ongoing community input. More specifically, many
specialty fruits and vegetables are grown to accommodate the cultural demands of its residents, an
effective strategy to sustain attendance at the Farmers Markets as 57.4% of the Area’s residents
are Hispanic and 31.2%, Black, compared to the County at 22.4% and 18.7%, respectively.
Examples of produce grown based on community input are Lalo (Egyptian spinach), Epizote
{Mexican Tea), Pwa Kongo (Pigeon Peas), Yuca, and Calaloo/Bledo (Amaranth).

In addition to the surrounding neighborhood residents, the Community Farm works with
AmeriCorps and drug rehabilitation facilities to source volunteers interested in learning about best
farming practices, including organic farming techniques that are utilized at this Community Farm.
Volunteers and residents are also educated about the value and process of composting organic

Westgate/Belvedere Community Redevelopment Agency UAIP Application Narrative | Page 3

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756923 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIP-ZJ.—NOE‘O\]@



waste. The Community Farm accepts bio-waste from residents for composting that residents can
then be provided with in time, as a value-added service.

Since its inception, the Community Farm has been working with the local community tree
trimming service and accepting their chipped-tree organic waste. This is then aged/composted
onsite and used as mulch for the planting beds. Not only does the mulch hold moisture and keep
the soil from drying out, but it also holds on to nutrients so they don’t leach into the groundwater,
keeping it available in the soil for the plants. It also adds organic matter that helps the health of the
soil ecosystem.

The Community Farm will also be expanding its educational and workshop programs for
children and adults (Exhibit 4). To build upon these efforts, the Redevelopment Agency and the
West Gate Elementary School (School) will increase the scope of its partnership to provide
additional programs at the school campus that introduces and educates the community’s children
to the importance of a healthy diet, how to grow food, and to understand where their food comes
from. The School has been serving the educational needs of the community since 2001. The
Redevelopment Agency is currently working on re-establishing its partnership with the Florida
Atlantic University (University) Northwest Community Health Alliance Community Health
Center (Health Center) to provide a nutritionist at the Farmers Markets. The Health Center
received a Federally Qualified Health Center Look-Alike designation in May 2021, and has been
operated by the University’s Christine E. Lynn College of Nursing since 2014. In the event the
Health Center is not able to provide a nutritionist, the Redevelopment Agency will identify a
substitute certified nutritionist, preferably from within the Westgate community. The Palm Beach
County (County) Department of Housing and Economic Development has been working with
its Redevelopment Agency since its creation. This partnership will build upon the Redevelopment
Agency’s and the County’s experience with community redevelopment, outreach, infrastructure
improvements, and project implementation toward the continued success of this critically
important Community Farm.

As of June 2021, the Redevelopment Agency renewed its strategic partnership with
Feeding Florida, the state’s food bank network, and remains the County’s first and only partner
in the Fresh Access Bucks (FAB) program. FAB is a USDA funded, statewide nutrition incentive
program that encourages SNAP recipients to redeem their benefits at Farmers Markets to purchase
fresh fruits and vegetables. FAB increases the purchasing power of SNAP participants by
providing a one-to-one match, an invaluable incentive to purchase fresh fruits and vegetables at
the Community Farm as 38.1% of Westgate’s residents receive SNAP benefits compared to the
County at 9.8% (ACS 2019).

Key personnel for implementing the proposed project and their roles are as follows:

Jetson Brown is the Farm Manager oversees all aspects of planning operations at the Westgate
Community Farm. He creates curricula, organizes and leads field trips and Community Farm tours,
runs the apprenticeship program, trains volunteers, and engages residents at the Farmers Markets,
He holds a Certificate in Ecological Horticulture from the Center for Agroecology and Sustainable
Food Systems, University of California, Santa Cruz. He has over twelve years of experience with
horticulture projects and farm management.
Rodolfo Luarca is the Assistant Farm Manager and is responsible for maintaining farm
operations, community engagement and outreach, developing relationships with community
businesses, marketing the farm to residents, and further developing the backyard vegetable and
herb gardening workshops. A lifelong farmer, he has over 35 years of experience with larger scale
farms and fruit tree nurseries.

Westgate/Belvedere Community Redevelopment Agency UAIP Application Narrative | Page 4

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS500756923 Funding Opportunity Numbexr: USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIP—21-NOF¥M



Miriam Nolasco assists the Farm Manager and Assistant Farm Manager with daily operations.
She began with the farm at the age of fifteen with her first apprenticeship and was so eager to
continue to learn best farming practices, that she signed up for the program the following year. She
was hired as a permanent member of the farm’s team in 2020 and has aspirations of becoming a
lifelong farmer.

Mr. Luarca and Ms. Nolasco were both hired from within the Westgate community and are both
of Hispanic descent and are bilingual. An added benefit as 57.4% of the Westgate community is
Hispanic (ACS 2019).

Denise Pennell is the Senior Planner/Project Manager for the Redevelopment Agency and will
oversee the grant’s management and implementation. She has over 6 years of experience in local,
state, and federal grant administration and construction project management that includes public
participation and design charrettes. She has administered community planning grants funded by
the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity, and has managed the construction of a
neighborhood park utilizing sub-recipient funds from Palm Beach County’s annual Community
Development Block Grant funding allocation, layered with local funding from the County’s Solid
Waste Authority, from project inception through to grant closeout. She has managed successfully
awarded applications for funding from the Florida Department of Transportation through the Palm
Beach County Transportation Planning Agency’s Transportation Alternatives and Local Initiatives
Programs totaling $6.7 million for five roadway improvements projects to be fully constructed by
the end of FY25 that improve connectivity, safety and walkability in the CRA district.

Alan Chin Lee is the Economic Development Special Projects Manager with Palm Beach County
and will provide expertise, guidance, and assistance in the grant’s management and
implementation. He has over eleven years of experience with federal grant management,
compliance with federal award conditions and requirements, grant implementation, project
delivery, and community ouireach. He is currently managing programs such as the $1.4 million
U.S. Economic Development Administration’s Public Works program which empowers distressed
communities to revitalize, expand, and upgrade their physical infrastructure to attract new industry,
encourage business expansion, diversify local economies, and generate or retain long-term, private
sector jobs and investment; the $1.4 million U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s Revolving
Loan Program which targets the cleanup of contaminates sites, targeting low-income and
distressed communities; and the $1.1 million Department of Energy’s Energy Efficiency &
Commounity Block Grant Program which assists businesses with low-interest loans for energy
efficiency improvements.

iv.  Project Goals and Intended Outcomes:
GOAL 1 - Increase production and improve access to fresh produce choices: Increase sales
of fresh produce to targeted Westgate households, by expanding production and diversity of
produce generated by the Community Farm, and through development of a permanent Farmers
Market facility.
Objective 1.a: By the end of year 1, complete development of a 0.32 acre satellite Agroforest
farm to bolster Community Farm production, concurrent with a partial reconfiguration of the
primary farm site to reduce fruit trees and expand unshaded space dedicated to annual,
medicinal and educational crop production.
Objective 1.b: By the end of year 2, complete expansion of the current Farm growing season
from 40-weeks to 48-weeks annually.

Westgate/Belvedere Community Redevelopment Agency UAIP Application Narrative | Page 5

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756923 PFunding Opportunity Number: USDA—NRCS—NHQ—UAIP—21-NOF%%



Objective 1.c: By the middle of year 2 (18-months), complete construction of a permanent
building with a walk-in cooler, restroom and office, and a Farmers Market pole barn (funded
by non-federal funds) to improve operational efficiency in anticipation of increased
production, educational programs and workshops, and community outreach meetings.
Objective 1.d: Increase seasonal agricultural production available for sale at the Westgate
Community Farm Market by 10% annually in years 2 and 3, for a total increase of 20% over
year ! production.
Objective 1.e: Increase number and volume of Farmers Market sales to Westgate households
utilizing SNAP by 10% annually (based on current year sales).
GOAL 2 - Community Education and Training: Build upon educational, apprenticeship and
volunteer opportunities offered to Westgate residents that emphasizes the importance of healthy
eating and resilient local food systems, to foster self-sufficiency to address food insecurity; the
importance of making healthy nutrition choices; or, inspiring careers in farming or related
industries.
Objective 2.a: By the end of year 1, increase educational outreach efforts offered in
partnership with Westgate Elementary, to formalize related classroom curriculum related to
farming, weather and nutrition, provide up to 8 field trips annually, and provide supplies and
assistance to facilitate installation of 6 raised garden beds at the school.
Objective 2.b: By the end of year 1, expand the Westgate Community Farm apprenticeship
program to create a second apprenticeship position, and formalize training to enable graduates
to seek out farming or related employment opportunities, and/or qualify for the Assistant Farm
Manager position.
Objective 2.c: Establish an Edible Home Garden Program, to provide up to 6 hands-on home
garden training workshops at the Community Farm annually, to include provision of a basic
home garden tocl/seed starter kit for one attendee. In addition, offer up to 6 Edible Home
Garden installations to Westgate residents at no cost.
Objective 2.d: Upon initiation of Year 1, provide free bi-monthly health consultations and/or
nutritional education for at least 12 residents attending the Farmers Market, in partnership with
a certified nutritionist.
GOAL 3 - Community Outreach and Resource Hub: Build upon current multi-lingual
community outreach and marketing efforts and formalize the Community Farm as a resource hub
for urban farming and best farming practices, health and nutrition, and promote increased Farmers
Market participation and/or sales to targeted Westgate households.
Objective 3.a: By the end of year 1, update electronic and print media (e.g. webpages, blogs,
direct mailers, brochures, etc.) to include additional background on Westgate Green Market
Express and Community Farm history/successes, provide information on urban farming best
practices and educational opportunities offered, and weekly updates on produce available for
sale at the Community Farm Market. Updates to website, social and print media will also
include offerings in Spanish.
Objective 3.b: Beginning year 3, begin to promote Westgate residents home based Cottage
Food businesses at the Farmers Market, where Florida law supports individuals who use home
kitchens to produce certain foods for sale direct to consumers.
Objective 3.c: Develop a restaurant, chef and grocer initiative to seek out partnerships that
may help to expand nutritional and food preparation education provided at the Westgate
Community Farm, or help to advertise healthy food destinations within the Area.

Westgate/Belvedere Community Redevelopment Agency UAIP Application Narrative | Page 6

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756923 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS—NHQ—UAIP—ZI—NOF\OAJ@



v.  Activities to Achieve the Goals:

GOAL 1 - Increase production to improve access to fresh produce choices: To improve access
to fresh produce for the Westgate residents, the Redevelopment Agency will install a 160 square
foot (sf) prefabricated permanent structure to incorporate an office area, an ADA compliant
restroom to replace the leased Port-O-Potty, and a walk-in refrigerator for the short-term storage
of produce, to better accommodate inventory for the Farmers Markets and to increase produce
shelf life. The existing temporary tents will be replaced with a 340 sf permanent pole barn to
provide shade and shelter in inclement weather, create a formal display and sales area, and better
accommodate the Farmers Market’s patrons, vendors, and the nutritionist. A children’s pavilion
will be installed in the dedicated children’s garden to be used for educational programs. This will
complement the Adopt-A-Bed program with West Gate Elementary School. The pole barn will
serve as a formal area for the contracted certified nutritionist to engage patrons, and to convey
educational information during field trips, tours, to train volunteers, and to conduct the edible
backyard gardening workshops. ADA compliant parking, ramps, and a mulch corral will also be
installed. These Community Farm construction activities, funded by the Redevelopment Agency
(non-federal), will be completed within eighteen months. Expansion to a satellite site (land is
owned by the Redevelopment Agency), will enable the Community Farm to increase the quantity
and variety of produce grown. A perimeter fence and gate and irrigation system will be installed,
followed by clearing and grubbing, soil amendments and subsequently, the installation of fruit
trees and plants. Produce will be brought to the main farm for the Farmers Markets. Located just
north of Westgate Avenue, the Community Farm is ideally located proximate to and is easily
accessed from the community’s social center. A weather station will be installed to track weather
conditions year over year, to determine any correlations with the production success of specific
crops. This will also be an important educational tool for field trips, tours and workshops.
Improvements to the satellite site will be completed in twelve months following the completion of
an environmental site assessment, which will be completed in year 1. The Community Farm uses
the CubePOS (Point-of-Sale) system and will continue to use this system to track the variety and
volume of produce sold, the number of sales, the number of households that use SNAP benefits,
the percentage of overall sales made by SNAP beneficiaries, and Farmers Markets revenue, year
over year to track the Community Farm’s progress. The number of volunteer hours will also be
tracked during the planting, growing and harvest seasons.

GOAL 2 - Community Education and Training: The West Gate Elementary School and the
Westgate Community Farm will build upon and formalize their partnership by creating an
Adopt-A-Bed pilot program consisting of 6 planting beds at the School campus in year 1. This
project will include informational and workshop programs that introduce students to the concepts
of best farming practices, organic farming practices, healthy-food production, and the value of
food systems, with a hands-on educational experience. This activity will also complement field
trips to the Community Farm when it is safe to return to group activities. This project will provide
eight field trips per season at no cost to the students, and track the number of attending students,
annually.

A second apprenticeship position will be created in year 1 to assist with activities and receive
first-hand experience and training with the process involved in expanding operations at the main
farm and the satellite site. The Community Farm will initiate an edible backyard garden workshop
program targeted at the Westgate residents. This program will convey best farming practices and
demonstrate the organic farming principles used throughout the Community Farm, enabling
workshop participants an opportunity to be better educated and less dependent with some of their

Westgate/Belvedere Community Redevelopment Agency UAIP Application Narrative | Page 7

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756923 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA—NRCS—NHQ-'UAIP-—21—NOM’1¥



commercially grown produce needs. A starter kit valued at $200 will be provided to one participant
per workshop, chosen through a raffle, consisting of seeds, seedlings, basic tools, and a How-To
manual, containing resources for acquiring supplies. Up to 6 participants choosing to install an
edible backyard garden will be provided with technical assistance, materials and tools to start their
project. The number of projects conducted, the number of participants, and the number of gardens
installed will be tracked with a spreadsheet to monitor program success, year over year. Within
year 2, a certified nutritionist will be onsite, bi-monthly at the Community Farm during farmers
Markets and will be available to provide information and education to residents toward
developing/improving healthy nutrition habits. The number of people consulting with the
nutritionist will be tracked.

Beginning in year 2, Information from the weather station will be tracked. Any correlations to
crop success will be recorded. Species that grow best during specific southern Florida seasons will
be noted. Lessons learned at the farm is freely shared by the Farm Manager with anyone seeking
information which inciudes up-and-coming farmers, gardening clubs, community residents, the
elementary school, and in the USDA grant reports, among others.

GOAL 3 - Community Outreach and Resource Hub: The Community Farm will build upon
its value to the community by hosting public/outreach meetings with its County partner at the pole
barn. Within the first year, at least one meeting will be held to inform residents of the available
expanded services and programs, and to get feedback regarding the species of fruit trees that they
would most like to have at the satellite site. Within year 1, the website will be updated in English
and Spanish with activities such as field trips, tours, the edible backyard garden workshop, and the
apprenticeship program. This will be followed by frequent website updates to include the
seasonally available produce with prices that will be available at upcoming Farmers Markets, and
the schedule indicating when the nutritionist will be available at the Farmers Markets. Community
resources links will aiso be added. The website may also include an ‘Ask the Nutritionist’ question
and answer page. The number of hits to the website will be tracked monthly through upgraded
Search Engine Optimization (SEO) technology in addition to the number of questions to the
nutritionist. At the start of year 1, the Farm will begin a direct e-newsletter mail out three times a
year to all Westgate households. The number of attendees on field trips, tours, and the workshops
will be tracked annually.

The Project Manager for the Redevelopment Agency will confirm that the work for which they
are being invoiced, has been completed and is eligible for payment under the respective program
fund, prior to requesting reimbursement from the USDA.

The Community Farm will improve access to fresh food choices by increasing the volume and
variety of produce grown, enabling this project to serve a greater number of households in this
single urban area. The Community Farm will work with its community partners to provide
Westgate residents with educational programs for children, field trips, workshops, the
apprenticeship program, and advice and guidance from a nutritionist, to improve the community’s
understanding of the importance of a healthy diet, understanding the food system, sustainable
agricultural practices, in addition to developing life-long skills for a farming career.

vi.  Evalunation:

Since its inception in 2015, the Community Farm has constantly been improving the soil
quality through soil amendments and growing produce using organic farming principles. With the
addition of the 0.32 acre satellite site where an agroforest will be created with a variety of fruit
trees, the grow season will be extended, ultimately enabling this project to provide easy access to

Westgate/Belvedere Community Redevelopment Agency UAIP Application Narrative | Page 8

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756923 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA—NRCS-NHQ-UAIP-21-NOF‘&8



a greater volume and variety of community grown produce. Information from the weather station
will be tracked and evaluated alongside production output year over year to determine if there are
any correlations with the success of the various types of crops grown at the site. The Farm Manager
enthusiastically shares technical information including best practices and lessons learned with
other urban farms, beginning farmers and community garden groups. The Community Farm has
many years of experience with numerous specialty crops that are grown based on feedback from
the residents, enhancing the farms value with produce not commercially available in this part of
the state.
The Following metrics will be used to evaluate the Community Farm’s progress:
* Number of West Gate Elementary School students attending field trips
o The Community Farm anticipates at least 100 students annually
o Number of West Gate Elementary School students participating in the Community Farm’s
social media
o Targeting 50 comments from students annually
¢ West Gate Elementary School student participation in a poster competition demonstrating the
importance of a healthy diet
o Targets 50 student entries per competition
» Edible backyard garden workshops attendees
o This project targets 12 participants annually .
e Number of implemented household edible backyard gardens
o This project targets 6 households installing an edible garden
» Number of households using SNAP benefits
o Increase SNAP beneficiaries from 25% to 35% annually
* Overall percentage of sales from SNAP beneficiaries
o Increase sales from SNAP beneficiaries from 30% to 33%
o Number of transactions at the Farmers Markets annually
o Increase the number of transactions by 10% annually
» Volume of produce grown annually
o Increase volume of produce by 10% annually
¢ The number of residents consulting with the nutritionist
o This service targets assisting 192 residents annually
& Number of residents using the Ask a Nutritionist website feature
e Number of community businesses supporting the farm by providing complementing programs
at the Farmers Markets
¢ Number of Cottage Food businesses/vendors participating at the Farmers Markets
o Targeting 2 per year starting in year 3
¢ The number of annual volunteer hours at the Community Farm
o targeting 250 volunteers annually

vii.  Self-Sustainability:

Following the creation of the Westgate Green Market Express in 2011, the Redevelopment
Agency developed the Westgate Community Farm in 2015. This project has been very well
received by Area’s residents and is successful in its mission to provide convenient access to fresh
food choices at affordable prices. This critically needed community resource contributes toward
the mitigation of this urban Area’s USDA food desert designation. The USDA grant funds will
allow the Redevelopment Agency and the Community Farm to increase access to fresh food

Westgate/Belvedere Community Redevelopment Agency UAIP Application Narrative | Page 9

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspage ID: WS00756923 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS—NHQ-—UAIP-—ZJ.-NOF%%



choices to the Area’s residents through the expansion to a satellite site. These funds will also allow
the Redevelopment Agency to build upon its partnership with the West Gate Elementary School
(School) and facilitate the implementation of an on-campus, Adopt-A-Bed teaching tool for the
students, and to facilitate field trips to the Community Farm. The Redevelopment Agency is
currently working on re-establishing its partnership with the Florida Atlantic University (FAU)
College of Nursing Westgate Community Health Center to provide residents with easy access to
free health consultations and nutrition advice. In the event that the Health Center is not able to
provide a nutritionist, one will be identified, preferably from within the Area’s community.

The Redevelopment Agency’s operating budget is generated annually through tax increment
financing (TIF). This funding source has become reliable and predictable due to ongoing
redevelopment efforts made over the past 32 years, in conjunction with community stakeholders
and partners. The Westgate Community Redevelopment Agency will continue to fund the
Community Farm’s operations including the expanded activities following the end of the grant.
As such, the following activities will continue (Exhibit 5) beyond the grant’s performance period:

The 0.32 acre satellite site that will be developed as an agroforest consisting primarily of fruit
trees to increase production yield year over year as the trees mature. This site is projected to
increase the Community Farm’s overall production volume by as much as 20% by year 3 and 50%
by the end of year five.

As the Community Farm’s revenue increases commensurate with the increased production, the
funds will be reinvested into operations, including the two paid apprentice positions. .

The Community Farm and the West Gate Elementary School will continue the Adopt-A-Bed
pilot project on campus, providing students with hands-on experience at these edible gardens,
education about the importance of a healthy diet, developing an understanding of best farming
practices and the food system, and field trips to the Community Farm.

The Community Farm will continue to work with volunteers from the Westgate community,
AmeriCorps and drug rehab facilities that are interested in learning new skills about best farming
practices, including organic farming techniques.

Community Farm revenue and the Redevelopment Agency will continue to fund the Edible
Backyard Garden workshops, and to maintain the dedicated children’s garden that will
complement the field trips from the elementary school and children’s groups in general.

Regular updates to the website will continue with seasonally available produce at the Farmers
Markets. E-newsletters and mailers to all community residents will also be funded by the
Redevelopment Agency.

Lessons learned at the Community Farm such as best farming practices, the relevance of the
data collected from the weather station as relates to production, the successes of the organic
farming principles and its effectiveness with the varieties of produce grown at the sites, will
continue to be shared as the Community Farm grows in relevance. This includes sharing
information with the elementary school, the community, and other entities interested in developing
or expanding urban farms.

The Redevelopment Agency or the Health Unit seek foundation funding to continue the
providing residents with health and nutrition advice, following the end of the grant.

Westgate/Belvedere Community Redevelopment Agency UAIP Application Narrative | Page 10

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: W500756923 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIP—?.J.—NOFO‘J



OMB Number: 4040-0019
Expiration Date: 02/28/2022

Project Abstract Summary

This Profect Abstract Summary form must be submiited or the application will be considered incompiete. Ensure the Project Abstract
field succinctly describes the project in plain language that the public can understand and use without the full proposal. Use 4,000
characters or less. Do not include personally identifiable, sensitive or proprietary information. Refer to Agency instructions for any
addifional Project Abstract field requirements. If the application is funded, your project abstract information (as submitted) will be made
available to public websites and/or databases including USAspending.gov.

Funding Opportunity Number
|USDA—NRCS—NHQ—UAIP-2 1-NOFO0001110

CFDA(s)
|10.935 ]

Applicant Name

|Westgate Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency

Descriptive Title of Applicant's Project

Westgate Community Farm ~ Production Expansion, Community Education, Training and Outreach Initiative

Project Abstract

PROJECT ABSTRACT SUMMARY

USDA Urban Agriculture and Innovative Production (UAIP} Competitive Grants Program

Westgate Community Farm - Production Expansion, Community Educatien, Training and Qutreach Initiative

The Westgate/Belvedere Community Redevelopment Agency (Redevelopment Agency) respectfully requests $300,000 in
UAIP funds for the expansion of the Westgate Community Farm project and related educational activities.

The Westgate Community Redevelopment Area (Area) is a blighted urban/suburban USDA designated food desert located
in unincorporated Palm Beach County (PBC), Florida, comprised of a single two square mile sexrvice area. This Area
is characterized by a high percentage of low-income, mobility challenged households, suffering from limited
access to healthy and affordable food choices. To contribute toward the mitigation of this Area’s designation as
a focod desert, the Redevelopment Agency developed the Westgate Community Farm in 2015 to improve access to fresh
produce for the Area’s residents. While all Area residents are targeted, the primary target beneficiarxies are
Area residents who receive SNAP benefits. This project will alsoc focus on local elementary students, and
residents seeking careers/building skills in farming. Acceording to 201¢ American Community Survey (ACS) data,
36.5% of Westgate residents fall below the 100% poverty level (PBC at 12.2%), 38.1l% of households receive SNWAP
benefits (PBC at 9.8%), and has an average household size of 4 people (PBC has 2.6). Almost all (95%) of the
local elementary schocl students also qualify for free/reduced lunch (PBC School Board, 2021). In addition,
median household income is a mere $34,980 compared to PBC at $63,299, and well below the estimated minimum
2020-21 annual living wage of $%4,057 for a family of four living in PBC.

The key elements that the Redevelopment Agency uses to evaluate the local food system inadequacies include the
high concentration of low-income individuals, individuals living in poverty, the number of househelds with SNAP
benefits, and the number of elementary school students receiving free/reduced lunches at the elementary school.
Evaluation of the local focd system is alsc a critical factor, considering limited availlability of healthy food
destinations resulting from inadeguate business investment attributed to blight conditions within the community,
and a prevalence of fast focod restaurants and convenience stores clustered along the high-speed commercial
corridors bordering this service area. In addition, household mobility issues are also recognized, including low
household car ownership rates, limited mass transit opportunities, and the gecgraphic separation resulting from
the aforementicned corridors.

The Redevelopment Agency seeks tec build upon the successes of the Westgate Green Market Express, Westgate
Community Farm (Community Farm), and the Farmers Market to increase access to fresh food cheices, and increase
the number of apprenticeship positions, workshops, and educational programs for its residents. This three-year
grant will help to accelerate three project goals, which include increasing the Community Farm’s productivity
necessary to expand access to firesh produce, developing a permanent Farmers Market, expanding educational,
nutritional and apprenticeship programs to promote food security and careers in farming, and improve its multi-
lingual community outreach efforts, including updating its website and other electronic and print marketing and
educational media.

This USDA UAIP Grant will enable the Redevelopment Agency to build upon its current efforts to improve the local
food system within its single urban service Area, increase the production of preduce, and expand programs offered
through the Community Farm. These funds will also formalize, improve upon, and expand educational activities and
services through partnerships with West Gate Elementary Scheol, a certified nutritionist, and Palm Beach County.

PREVIEW Date: Jul 20, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756922 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS—NHQ-UAIP-M-Noé\o@l\o



OMB Number: 4040-0004
Expiration Date; 12/31/2022

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

* 1. Type of Submission: * 2. Type of Application: * If Revision, select appropriata letter(s):
|:| Preapplication E New | |
X Application [ Continuation * Other (Specify):

[] Changed/Corrected Application | [_] Revision } |

* 3. Date Received: 4. Applicant Identifier:
Completed by Grants.gov upon submission. | l |

5a. Federal Entity identifier: 5b. Federal Award Identifier:

State Use Only:

6, Date Received by State: |_—_| 7. State Application Identifier: | ]

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

" a. Legal Name: Westgate Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency |

* b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN): *c. UEL

52-1657361 | ||v3svasercer

d. Address:

* Streett: I1280 0ld Congress Ave Ste 215 |
Street2: | |

* City: |West Palm Beach l
County/Parish: | |

* State: |E‘L: Florida 1
Province: | _l

* Country: |USA: UNITED STATES l

* Zip f Postal Code: |33409—63?7 |

e. Organizational Unit:

Department Name: Division Name:

f. Name and contact information of person to be contacted on matters involving this application:

Prefix: | | *FirstName:  [glizee |

Middle Name: | |

* Last Name: |Michel |

Suffix: | |

Title: |

Organizatienal Affiliation:

* Telephone Number: |561~640-8181 Fax Number: I

* Ernail: |emiche1@pbcgov.org |

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756923 Funding Oppertunity Number: USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIP-zl-NiF@?l_lO



Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

* 9, Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:

|B: Special District Government |

Type of Applicant 2: Select Applicant Type:

[ |

Type of Applicant 3: Select Applicant Type:

* Other (specify):

*140. Name of Federal Agency:

|;1atural Resources Conservation Service

11. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:

l10.935
CFDA Title:

Urban Agriculture and Innovative Production

* 12, Funding Opportunity Number:

USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIP-21-NOFC0001110

* Title:

Urban Agriculture and Innovative Production {UATIP) Competitive Grants Program

13, Competition ldentification Number:

Title:

14, Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, States, etc.):

J l Add Attachment | | Delete Attachment || View Allachment

* 15, Descriptive Title of Applicant’s Project:

Westgate Community Farm - Production Expansion, Community Education, Training and Cutreach
Initiative

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions.

Add Attachments | | Delete AttachmentsJ | View Altachments

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756523 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA—NRCS—NHQ-UAIP—21-\\10%10



Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

16. Congressional Districts Of:

* a. Applicant * b. Program/Project

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressional Districts If needed.,

r | ﬁdd Attachment | | Delele Altachment || View Altachmant l

17. Proposed Project:

* a. Start Date: |10/01/2021 *b, End Date: |09/30/2024

18, Estimated Funding (8):

* a, Federal | 300,000.00]
* b. Applicant | 378,802. 00f
* c. State | 0.00
*d. Local | 0.00
* e. Other | 0.0C
*{. Program Income | 0.00
*g. TOTAL | 578,802.00

*19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

D a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Praocess for review on l:l
|:] b. Program is subject to E.O. 12372 but has not been selected by the State for review.

¢. Program is not covered by E.O. 12372,

* 20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debi? {if "Yes," provide explanation in attachment.)

[ es No
If "Yes", provide explanation and attach
[ ' | [ Add Attachment | | Detete Attachment. | | - View Atiachment

21, *By signing this application, | certify (1) to the statements contained in the list of certifications* and (2} that the statements
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. | also provide the required assurances** and agree to
comply with any resulting terms if | accept an award. | am aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may
subject me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U.S. Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

[ ** | AGREE

** The list of cerlifications and assurances, or an intemet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or agency
specific instructions.

Authorized Representative:

Prefix: | j * First Name:; |Elizee l
Middle Name: | |

*lLastName: [Michel ;

Suffix: | |
* Title: IExecutive Director |
* Telephone Number: |5 61-640-8181 | Fax Number: |

* Emall: |emichel@pbcgov.org

* Signature of Authorized Representative: Completed by Grants.gov upen submission,

* Date Signed: |Compteted by Grants.gev upon submission,

—
PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace 1ID: WS00756%23 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA—NRCS—NHQ-UAIP-21-N0Jfﬂtﬁ-



0TTITO000A0N-1Z-dTVN-OUN-SOUN-Yasn :Isquny A3tunazoddp Sutpund £zZ695L00SM Al soedsyIom TEZ0Z ‘0€ T0r :93eqd MAIAZEG

| abed (Z0L- v JeinoaD) W0 Aq paquosaid
{26 -1 "nod) ¥yZy Wi plepuels

_oa.mom.m...u 49 _oo.mom.mhm _ $ _oo.coo.oom _ $ _ 4 ¢ _ _w s[e}o G
|l ||l ||l ||l k4
||l |l | || '€

00' 208 BLE _ _an.mom.mhm _ _ [ |l || ezopeg_uon] Z

00" 0007 00¢ | sl | §||oo-000*00e | I sl | 56 0T rexspos| "k

(B) ) (3) P) (&) (a) (e
€101 [239pad-UON |elape4 [eJoped-UON jeiapa4 sequiny Aunnoy
19Bpng poasIASY J0 MaN spuns pajeBiqoun pejewnsy mwﬂ”ﬁwﬂmﬂﬁwﬂwﬂmn E.M_%M“_u”h.w_o

AMYIWIANS 139004 - ¥ NOILDIS

220z/8e/z0 |yeq uoneqdx3
9000-0F0b LAqWNN N0 swelfold uononiysuod-uonN - NOILYWHOANI L39and

\



0TTT0000d0N-TZ-dI¥N-DHN-SOUN-¥asn :xesquny A3tunizoddp Sutpund €Z695L005M QI eoedsyIoy 1Z0T Q€ TOL 838 MAIATAD

VI abed (g0~ v 1e(noaD} WO Ag paguasald

{£6 -4 "n8Y) VFZy WLOS PIEPUEIS

uonanpolday [es07 103 pezuoLpny

\

awoou| wetboad ‘2

joo-o 8 | ¢ | $lo | $jleeo | $

[oo"208" 629 ] | ¢ | §|[o0 0875 | §|foo"000700 | ¢ (f9 pue 19 Jo wns) §IVLOL
o0-0 ls |l _ | leoe | |oo-o _ sabieyy yoaspuy
|oo-z08" 829 le _ | ||oo-zos'8ee | {loo-000"00e | (ug-eg jo wns) sabieyy yoauq 230
porss ] | | e | p=m | =90y
loo~se1’ese |l _ | |[oo-sLe’Loe | (oo o0eev _ uoponnsuoy 6
porerees I _ | | |- remoes3U0
porosess I | | | | Eaa— sauddn o
oo ] | | | = | puowdinb3 p
fors R | == | o | fones 2
oz 1 | | [ = | Sujeug U '
poresvee | E | s |poreers | s E joutosiog

Tezepeg-uox o
_mw# . ALINILOV MO zo_ku%_w"_ WYHO0Hd INVED 2 = saliobelen sse|) 3oolao g

SHIHO9ILYID 139dng - 8 NOILD3S



CTTTO00090N-TZ-JIYN-OHN-SOUN-¥asSn :Iaquny AjTunizodde Buppung £Z695L008M :dI aoedsyaom

z 8bed (201- v 12inon) ane Aq paquosald
(26 -4 “Ao'd)) WpZr UlIo] plepuerg

uonanpoiday |eoon 1o pazuoyiny

TZ0Z

'O0E TN 93ed MAIAHMA

ISYJRWAY "7

__mwm._m:ouum.__u:_ K44 _

_ :sabieyn yoaaqg Lz

NOILYIWHO4NI 139dN9 ¥3HL0 - 4 NOILDAS

s

I8 K

{61 - 91 seuy Jo wins) 1y¥101 "0Z

I$

| $

61

8l

TeISPaI-UCN

TRI=paI 9k

yunod (3)

payi (p)

puooag (2) 1sa4(q)

{syvan)

Sao0d3d ONIANNd F¥NLng

weibold jueis ()

123rodd 3HL 40 3ONVIVd J0d a3d33AN SAONNd 1vyd3ad

34 40 S3LVIILLST 1390Nnd - 3 NOILDO3S

L

ls

8] K

s

(rL pue g| saul| jo wns} YLOL 5L

_

s

fesapag-uoN ‘vl

|$

I$

Ml | ¢

s

Jepenp yyy

1apenp plg

lapenp puz Jayenp is| JedA 35| 10} [€)0),

|esspad gl

SAI3IN HSVYD a31SVYI3H0d - A NOILD3AS

E

| $

| 9| | ¢

(L1-g saul) Jo wins) TYLOL 2L

L

0L

Texapog-uoy| L

| $

| 9| K

Teaspad 8

SIVLOL(®)

seainog oo (p)

ajels (o) jueanddy (a}

weibouid yuein (e)

S32UNOSIY TVHIAII-NON - I NOILI3S

\B



0TTTO000I0N-TZ-4I¥0-DHN-SJEN-¥asn :raqunn A3tunizoddp Burpung £z695L005M dI aoedsyxopm TZ0Z ‘0E TNC F931ed MITAHND

"21RYS [BJBpad Bunnsas ay) Jslug
000 | ¢ o, _H_ ¥ Aidminpy 291 aul woyy sje00 aiqibije 1oy ("eleys ebejusolad [eieped 1o} fousbe [eispsd Jnsuos)
1SMO||0} SE 8)e[noleD 'pajsanbal aoue)sISse [elapad /|

ONIONNA Tvd3d3ad

[oo-ses’Loe | ¢ _ | ¢ oo-sc8 Los | $| (18 woy guu oegns) 150D 103r0Nd TWIOL 9L
_ | $ _ | $ [ | $ auoou (weiboud) 1pafoid "Gl
loo-su8’ o€ | ¢ _ I loo"sr8”rog | s wi0lEns vl
_ _ $ _ | $ B | $ sepusbunuon ‘gl
oo-se8c0e | ¢ _ | ¢ 00" se8”L0g | ¢ (141 seuyjo wns) I¥10LENS "2l
[00-006 755 | $ _ R loo~006“cs | ¢ snosuejRIsIy L
_ | $ _ | $ _ | $ uowdinby  0f
[o0-ssteat | $ _ | ¢ loo-sst est | ¢ UOONASUOD B
_ _ $ _ | $ _ _ $ [BAOLUSS pUB Uoowag  °g
[porzoes 18| | 8| joozestes | ¢ HomoUs
[00- 859 ¥ | ¢ _ | $ 00850 ¥ | $ saa) uopoadsur palold ‘g
_ | $ _ | $ _ R so0) BuusaUIBUS pUE [2NPBjYRIe YO 'S
[o0-00s 72 | $ _ | ¢ loo- 0051 | ¢ seay Buussubus pue [RIMDSNYIY b
_ | $ _ | ¢ _ | 3 sjuawAed pue sesuadxe uogesoEy ¢
_ | ¢ _ | s _ B ‘00 ‘sjestesdde “fem-jo-syybu ‘saanjpnns ‘pue  °z
L | $ _ | $ _ | $ sasusdxs [eBs| pue aAleASIUIWDY |
ﬂmo%m..ﬂwﬁﬂ_ﬁo_wwﬁ g w_nmchw”m_wtzmm%w q 1se) [Elo) e NOLLVOIISSYIO 1500

‘Palnou af fiim nod ‘asen sy st yons ji uogedioied Joj ajgibya 21500 pafod jo alays jeiapaH aty] je aaue o) suoneinduwios [guonippe axnbau sweiboid soue)sisse [elopad weusy Ji0N

sweibold uononysuo) - NOILYIWHOANI L39ang

Z202/82/2Z0 :8leq) uonedxg
8000-0+0F JaqunN 8WO

\ 5%



USDA Urban Agriculture and Innovative Production (UAIP) Competitive Grants Program
USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIP-21-NOFO0001110

Westgate Community Farm — Production Expansion, Community Education, Training and
Outreach Initiative

BUDGET NARRATIVE

PROJECT TOTAL: $678,802
Federal Funds Requested: $300,000

Non-Federal Contribution (no match required): $378,802

PART A: FEDERAL FUNDS - BUDGET SUMMARY

‘ L 1Yearl ~ |Year2  |Year3 -
Cost Classification C U [10/121t0 | 1071722t | 10/1/23'to | Total Cost
T 9302|9303 1904 |
1. Personnel $12,480 $18,720 $21,840 $53,040
a. Miriam Nolasco $3,120 $3,120 $3,120 $9,360
b. TBD Farm Apprentice #2 | $9,360 $15,600 $18,720 $43,680
2. Equipment $0 $8,500 $0 $8,500
a. Walk-in cooler 30 $8,500 $0 $8,500
3. Supplies $17,490 $24,730 $14,730 $56,950
Primary & Satellite Farms $600 311,040 31,040 312,680
a. Soil Amendments $600 $600 $600 $1,800
b. Trees/plants $0 $10,000 $0 $10,000
c. Seeding supplies $0 $440 $440 $880
Educational Collaboration $3,570 $370 8370 $4, 310
a. Raised beds, tools, shed $3,200 $0 $0 $3,200
b. Seeding supplies $220 $220 $220 $660
c. Field trip materials $150 $150 $150 $450
Edible Home Gardens §7.320 87,320 87,320 821,960
a. Workshop giveaways $1,200 $1,200 $1,200 $3,600
b. Tools/materials $6,120 $6,120 $6,120 $18,360
Community Outreach 36,000 56,000 86,000 518,000
c. Direct mail-outs $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $18,000
4. Contractual $44,597 $38,049 $38,049 $120,695
a. Jetson Brown $15,288 $15,288 $15,288 $45,864
b. Rodolfo Luarca $6,916 $6,916 $6,916 $20,748
c. Alan Chin Lee $10,193 $7,645 $7,645 $25,483
d. TBD Certified Nutritionist | $7,200 $7,200 $7,200 $21,600
e. TBD Website Consultant $5,000 $1,000 $1,000 $7,000
5. Construction $49,300 $0 $0 $49,300
a. Clear/Grub/Site Prep $7,500 $0 $0 $7,500
b. Permitting/Inspections $2,000 $0 $0 $2,000

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021

Westgate Community Farm — BUDGET NARRATIVE

Page 1 of 8

Workspace ID: WS00756923 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS-NHQ—UAIP-21—NOV%ﬂ



c. Water Meter (1°CL) $16,000 $0 $0 $16,000
d. Electrical connection $3,000 $0 $0 $3,000
e. Irrigation $10,000 $0 $0 $10,000
f. Fencing/gate $10,800 $0 $0 $10,800
6. Other $3.855 $4,190 $3,470 $11,515
a. Soils Testing $270 $270 $270 $810
b. Vertical Gardens $0 $720 $0 $720
c. Weather Station $385 $0 $0 $385
d. Transportation — field trips | $3,200 $3,200 $3,200 $9,600
-' | 127,772 | $94,189 | $78,089
7. TOTALS (Year1) | (Year2) |(Year3) |3300:000
FEDERAL BUDGET ITEMS

1. Personnel ($53,040)
Funds are requested for two part-time farm apprentice positions to support the implementation
of all project goals and objectives. Farm Apprentice #1 is an existing position; Farm Apprentice
#2 is a new position created specifically to assist in the achievement of all project goals. As a
training prograrm, it is anticipated that Apprentice #2 position will continue in some capacity
beyond the term of the grant dependent upon Agency budget and/or farm revenues to support
further training initiatives.

a. Miriam Nolasco — Farm Apprentice #1, part-time CRA employee, 15% of time on grant
activities, 4 hrs./week for all 3 years, paid hourly (no fringe benefits) at ($15/hr.), Assist in
establishing the satellite farm site, including planting, maintenance, and harvesting toward
achieving Goal 1. She will also assist with Edible Backyard Garden program workshops,
school field trips prep and clean up, as well as offsite activities at the partner school to
achieve Goal 2. She will work with the Farm Manager on community outreach and
digital/social media to achieve Goal 3. Year 1: $3,120; Year 2: 3,120; Year 3: 83,120

b. TBD —Farm Apprentice #2, part-time CRA employee, 100% of time on grant activities for
all 3 years, 12 hrs./week in Year 1; 20 hrs./week in Year 2; 24 hrs./week in Year 3, paid
hourly (no fringe benefits) at $15/hr. Federal funding is requested for a second part-time
farm apprentice position to assist as needed in all grant project related activities toward
achieving all project goals and outcomes. Year 1: $9,360; Year 2: $15,600; Year 3: 18,720

Total Personnel: Year 1: $12,480; Year 2: $18.720; Year 3: $21,840

2. Equipment ($8,500)
To support farm operations, and achieve Goal 1, a walk in cooler will be purchased and

installed in the enclosed structure for cold storage of sensitive crops and to extend shelf life for
sale green market days. 100% federal funds requested, purchased in Year 2.
a. Nor-Lake KODB46-C Kold Locker 4’x6” Walk-in Cooler, $6,775 ($8,500 installed)

Total Equipment: Year 2: $8,500

Westgate Commumity Farm — BUDGET NARRATIVE
Page2 of 8

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Werkspace ID: WS00756923 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS—NHQ-UAIP-21-N010w



3. Supplies ($56,950)
Federal funds are requested to purchase supplies to support primary and satellite farm
operations and development, as well as the expansion of education and training, resident edible
home garden programs, and community outreach to achieve all project Goals.

Satellite Farm (Goal 1):

a. Beginning in Year 1, soil amendments to annual production beds will be undertaken that
include the addition of nutrients/fertilizer. $600 each year for all 3 years = $1,800

b. Following soil amendments, at the beginning of Year 2, approximately 300 trees and plants
will be planted at the satellite farm. Some varieties will grow from seeds, while others will
be grafted or planted from cuttings. The satellite farm will grow mangoes, citrus, longans,
sapotes, nances, tree tomatoes, papayas, dragon fruit, avocados, breadfruit, and Barbados
cherries (list is not exclusive). Total one-time cost in Year 2 = $10,000.

Primary Farm (Goals 1 and 2):

¢. Annual seeding supplies for two vertical gardens installed in Year 2 at the primary farm
site. $220 per vertical garden x 2 = $440 for Years 2 & 3 = $880.

Sub-Total for Satellite & Primary Farms Supplies — 312,680

Educational Collaboration (Goal 2):

Federal funding is requested for supplies needed to establish the Adopt-a-Bed pilot program at

the Westgate Elementary School site commensurate with meeting the objectives of Goal 2 —

education and training.

a. In Year 1, construct 6 raised beds on the Westgate Elementary School campus for use
through all 3 years of the Adopt-a-Bed pilot. $400 per raised bed x 6, one-time cost of
$2.,400, plus; '

b. Tools to be used throughout 3-year term in Adopt-a-Bed pilot, one-time cost of $400 in
Year 1, plus;

c. Install a small storage shed to be used throughout 3-year term to store tools and materials
for Adopt-a-bed pilot, one-time cost of $400 in Year 1:

Total one-time start-up cost is $3,200, plus;
d. Seeding supplies for use in Adopt-a-Bed pilot - $220 annually for all 3 years = $660

Funding is requested for supplies for school field trips commensurate with meeting the

objectives of Goal 2.

e. Field trip takeaways: classroom groups will be given small tools, seeds and informational
resources on each visit to the farm all 3 years. Cost for field trip supplies = $50 x 8 trips =
$150x 3 =$450

Sub-Total for Educational Collaboration Supplies — $3,510

Edible Home Garden Program (Goal 2):

Federal funding is requested for supplies needed to establish the Edible Home Garden
Program, including tools and materials for 18 workshop raffie giveaways (6 per year) over 3
years and supplies needed for 18 individual edible backyard gardens (6 per year) over 3 years
for participating residents toward meeting the objectives of Goal 2 — community education,
training, fostering self-sufficiency, and addressing food insecurity.

Westgate Community Farm — BUDGET NARRATIVE
Page 3 of 8

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756923 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIP~21—N0\00001]\10



PREVIEW Date:

a. Tools & materials (one time per workshop edible home garden starter-kit giveaway) at a
$200 value each x 6 workshops annually is $1,200, for 3 years = $3,600

b. Backyard garden installation by request: 6 gardens per year (same general supplies as
school collaboration): Bed, $400 ea. X 6 is $2,400; Tools, $400 x 6 is $2,400; Seeding
supplies, $220 x 6 is $1,320. Total: $6,120 for 3 years = $18,360

Sub-Total for Edible Home Garden Program — $19,560

Community Outreach (Goal 3):

Funds are requested for printing and postage costs for 3 times yearly newsletters to all

households within the CRA district estimated at approx. 3,100. Newsletters will inform

Westgate residents about SNAP benefits, the FAB program, Farm events, market offerings and

pricing, and nutritionist visits toward achieving the objectives of Goal 3 — enhanced

community outreach and health/nutrition resource hub.

a. Direct mail postcards to all residential addresses in CRA district, costs for printing &
postage - $2,000 each time. Year 1: 3 times, $6,000; Year 2: 3 times, $6,000; Year 3: 3
times, $6,000

Sub-Total for Community Outreach Supplies — 318,000
Total Supplies: Year 1: $17,490; Year 2: $24,730; Year 3: $14,730

Contractual ($120,695)

Federal funding support is requested for grant activities undertaken by the Farm Manager and
Assistant Manager to implement all project Goals and Objectives. These positions exist and
are funded annually by the Redevelopment Agency through a continuing contract. Federal
funding is also requested for two 3-year term contracts with: 1) a certified nutritionist, either
through the Agency’s community partner, the FAU Health Clinic, or through RFP a local
certified nutritionist; and, 2) a website consultant to upgrade the Farm’s website, and social
media reach. These contract positions will support the achievement of Goals 2 and 3.

a. Jetson Brown — Farm Manager, 14 hours per week, 35% of time on grant activities for all
3 years. Responsible for all aspects of planning and operations at the Farm, including
planting plans, volunteer and apprentice training, farm tours and field trips, and marketing.
He will develop, implement, and monitor community outreach and education programs to
accomplish Goals 2 and 3. He will oversee the establishment of the satellite farm site to
accomplish Goal 1 — increase production and fresh produce choices. He will also collect
performance data toward fulfilling project metrics. (14 hours per week annually, $21/hr.,
all 3 years)

b. Rodolfo Luarca — Assistant Farm Manager, 7 hours per week, 20% of time on grant
activities. Responsible for maintaining farm operations, and community engagement. He
will assist the Farm Manger in implementing and accomplishing Goals 1 thru 3, and will
specifically oversee the expansion of the backyard garden program (Goal 2). (7 hours per
week, $19/hr., all 3 years)

c. Inter-local agreement with partner Palm Beach County Department of Housing &
Economic Development (PBC DHED) for a $40,000 3-year technical assistance contract.

Westgate Community Farm — BUDGET NARRATIVE
Page 4 of 8

Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756923 Funding Oppertunity Number: USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIP-ZI—NOF(\()OOJ.l

Lo

2



Alan Chin Lee — PBC DHED Special Projects Manager, will provide expertise, guidance,
and assistance in grant implementation and management throughout the life of the project
(Goals 1 thru 3). He will work 40% contract time in Year 1; 30% time in Year 2; 30% in
Year 3 of the project, 70% with Federal funding. He will assist the Agency in report
preparation and monitor the achievement of all project goals and objectives through
performance data and metrics.

d. TBD/FAU Health Unit — Certified Nutritionist, 2 times per month during market season (8
months annually), 100% with federal funds. To complement community education and
training activities (Goal 2), the nutritionist will visit the Farm on market days twice
monthly each of 3 years to offer health and wellness consultations, and provide information
and instruction on healthy eating utilizing the Farm as a teaching tool and backdrop. The
nutritionist will also collaborate on social media outreach and field health questions
submitted on the Farm’s website. $400 each visit x twice per month is $800 x 8 months is
$6,400 over 3 years = $19,200.

Supplies (brochures, resource/informational handouts) for nutritionist visits: $50 per visit,
$100 per month x 8 months is $800 over 3 years = $2,400

e. TBD — Website/Media Consultant, one-time website overhaul cost of $5,000 in Year 1 to
reformat website design, add SEO tracking technology and interactive features, provide
instruction on utilizing social media platforms to improve community outreach (Goal 3)
and bolster the Farm’s digital presence, plus technical support in Years 2 and 3 for $1,000
per year. 100% with federal funds. $5,000 one-time, plus $1,000 annually x 2 years =
$7,000

Total Contractual: Year 1: $44,597; Year 2: $38,049; Year 3: $38,049

5. Construction ($49,300)

Federal funds are requested for the development of a satellite farm, to be completed within the
first year in anticipation of planting at the beginning of Year 2. 100% with federal funds. The
expansion of the Farm’s capacity to incorporate a new Agroforest at the satellite site supports
one of the key components of the project which is to increase production to improve healthy
food choices for the target audience and all residents of the CRA district (Goal 1). The satellite
farm will be established on just over .25 acres of vacant land owned by the Redevelopment
Agency, within proximity to the primary farm. Improvements to the site are minimal and
include installation of security fencing and an irrigation system. Estimated cost breakdown is
as follows:

General/Permitting fees: $2,000

Vegetation removal/clear & grub/site prep: $7,500

1” PBC water meter installation for irrigation: $16,000

Electrical connection for irrigation: $3,000

Irrigation system (furnish/install): $10,000

Fencing (chain link) + gate (furnish/install): $10,450 + $350 = $10,800

R

Total Construction: Year 1: $49,300

Westgate Community Farm — BUDGET NARRATIVE
Page 5 of 8

PREVIEW Date: Jui 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756%23 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIE-Zl—NC\FODUOl%D

(0



6. Other (§11,515)
Federal funding is requested for the following miscellaneous items that support the
implementation of grant activities at both the primary and satellite farm sites, toward achieving
all project Goals and Objectives:

a. Soils testing at both sites (Goal 1): $90 per test x 3 samples taken from different locations.
Undertaken once per year prior to planting for all 3 years, samples are sent to [ocal labs for
analysis and inform specific soil amendments. Each test is $90 x 3 samples is $270 over 3
years = $810

b. At the beginning of Year 2, purchase and install 2 vertical gardens systems (freestanding
or wall mounted onto permanent structure at the primary farm to be used to further expand
production and complement educational programs (Goals 1 and 2). _

» Vertech — Outdoor Varden Kit — Vertical Garden (2° x 3%), $360 x 2 = $720

c. Atthe beginning of Year 1, install a Weather Station comprised of a high/low thermometer,
hygrometer, rain gauge, barometer, anemometer, weather vane, and a casing/stand. The
weather station will be used as both a teaching tool for school field trips (Goal 2), as well
as an additional data source to inform production and growth rates that will be tracked
during the term of the grant and beyond. One-time cost to purchase and install = $385

d. Funding is requested for transportation costs to increase field trips to the Community Farm
commensurate with meeting the objectives of Goal 2.
Transportation for field trips for participating class groups between Westgate Elementary
School to Westgate Community Farm, 8 field trips per year during each of 3 years are
planned.

Cost to rent a bus with driver each is $400 each time for 2-hour field trips = $3,200 x 3
years = $9,600

Total Other: Year 1: $3,855; Year 2: $4,190; Year 3: $3,470

PART B: NON-FEDERAL FUNDS - BUDGET SUMMARY

, Year1 Year 2 | Year 3 '
Cost Classification 10/121to | 10/1/22to | 10/1/23 to- | Total Cost
| 9/30/22 9/30/23 9/30/24 '
1. Personnel $22,564 $13,538 $9.026 $45,128
a. Denise Pennell, $22,564 $13,538 $9,026 $45,128
2. Fringe Benefits $5.,641 $3,384 $2,257 $11,282
a. Denise Pennell $5,641 $3,384 $2,257 $11,282
3, Contractual $5,807 $4,355 $4,355 $14,517
a. Alan Chin Lee $5,807 $4.355 $4,355 $14,517
4. Construction $49,219 $258,656 $0 $307,875
a. Engineering Fees $7,500 $0 $0 $7,500
b. General $41,719 $41,719 50 $83,438
c. Site Work/Utilities $0 $56,662 $0 $56,662
d. Concrete $0 $11,500 $0 $11,500

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021

Westgate Community Farm — BUDGET NARRATIVE

Page 6 of 8

Workspace ID: WS00756523 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIP-21-NOFCD0QO01110

\Lo&



e. Pre-fab structures/install $0 $108,300 $0 $108,300

f. Finishes $0 $8,200 $0 $8,200

g. Specialties $0 $775 $0 $775

h. Mechanical $0 $15,000 $0 $15,000

i. Electrical $0 $16,500 $0 $16,500
1. TOTALS $83.,231 $279,933 315,638 $378,802

NON-FEDERAL BUDGET ITEMS

1. Personnel ($45,128)

a. Denise Pennell — CRA Project Manager, full-time CRA employee, 50% of budgeted time
on grant activities in Year 1; 30% of time in Year 2; 20% of time in year 3, 100% with
non-Federal funding. The Redevelopment Agency has allocated 17% of the total 3-year
salary of this employee for grant related administrative activities. Ms. Pennell will be
responsible for overseeing day to day construction administration activities at the primary
and satellite Farm sites (Goal 1), and ensuring that all grant activities and benchmarks are
completed commensurate with grant goals, timeline, and budget, including overseeing
fiscal activities. She will be responsible for project RFPs to select the construction
contractor, nutritionist, and website designer, as well as working directly with website
designer on website updates {Goals 2, 3). She will also be responsible for submitting and
completing required monitoring reports, grant initiation and close-out.

Total Non-Federal Personnel: Year 1: $22,564; Year 2: $13,538; Year 3: $9,026

2. Fringe Benefits ($11,282)
Fringe benefits paid by federal funds is 25%, 100 with non-Federal Funding.
a. Denise Pennell — $11,282 ($45,128 x 25%) over 3 years.

Total Non-Federal Fringe Benefits: Year 1: $5,641; Year 2: $3,384; Year 3: $2,257

3. Contractual ($14,517)

a. Inter-local agreement with partner Palm Beach County Department of Housing &
Economic Development (PBC DHED) for a $40,000 3-year technical assistance contract.
Alan Chin Lee — PBC DHED Special Projects Manager, will provide expertise, guidance,
and assistance in grant implementation and management throughout the life of the project
(Goals 1 thru 3). He will work 40% contract time in Year 1; 30% time in Year 2; 30% in
Year 3 of the project, 30% with non-Federal funding. He will assist the Agency in report
preparation and monitor the achievement of all project goals and objectives through
performance data and metrics.

Total Non-Federal Contractual: Year 1: $5,807; Year 2: $4,355; Year 3: $4,355

4. Construction ($307,875)
100% non-Federal, Redevelopment Agency funds will be utilized for construction activities at
the primary farm site to formalize farm operations, construct a permanent structure with an
ADA compliant washroom, walk-in cooler, and office area, a pavilion in the children’s garden

Westgate Community Farm — BUDGET NARRATIVE
Page 7 of 8

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756923 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIF-21-NOFO0CO01110

H



area, and site improvements including a mulch corral, driveway and parking area with ADA
stall, pathways, sanitary sewer and water connections. Preparation of construction documents,
contractor procurement, and permitting will begin in Year 1. Construction will begin toward
the end of Year 1 with completion within the first 6 months of Year 2. No construction work
will occur in Year 3. Estimated cost breakdown is as follows:

Engineering Fees — $7,500

General — $71,977

Site Work/Utilities — $56,662

Concrete - $11,500

Pre-fab structures (furnish/install) — $108,300

Finishes — $8,200

Specialties — $775

Mechanical — $15,000

Electrical — $16,500

= ER e Al Ow

Total Non-Federal Construction: Year 1: $49,219; Year 2: $258,656

Westgate Community Farm — BUDGET NARRATIVE
Page 8 of 8

FREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS007565923 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS-NEQ-UAIP-21-NGFO0001110

| Lolo



Hmom>.om ne 238d MEIATED

0TTT0000JON-EZ-dIYN-OHN-SUN-¥asn :raquayx A3Tunizoddo Burpund £2695L008M QI ooedsyioy
—_—
osog wWred 1sam Jo Lo [ g
< >

W

Plig pRatlioy

g

CNOwIn A

SN
r r 1 : Aoswady ymamda[aaspay] Ajumurao))
T 0 Hodnty RUOHPWIAM] yavag wWRg - - sSIWOf] 21opeAlagyotedisem D
DL 1O} an,ﬁﬂn_ [ i &
au&um e By angy ungy m
IHES K] =
~
% 1073
3
Y
)
[N TS L MG u e
Ny o R Py gy E, =
P dalg - =
%, -
Kwunon R,
Oy 1Ay InyreAny -
- &
@
>
w m,_.—umum e Jsam
- T i6g
= e Pray |
&
% 9
Kasaapury
MUY
ysvagiu)gy
0
=)
M:. 3] A
aww SRTTES
=
]
TSR L L ol i ki
@ §L07 siekeyjusuodwon ¢ &
A
RS [_] 7 @ ssadom opwah Buisn v pue N
.J.E..:.-.Dt.
Iy’

& sajut 07 pue | ey pue
@& sanwi 0 pue z7p1e v pue (7
€ sapu oL pue eyl pue i

N3t

5 4

wig § - puntibioeg omcm;o‘
T eoedepus o

L0Z S19AB7 55300 M0 ' SLLOIUJ MO & LEREEE 2 wey P

depy Jesaqg poo- - mm“_< juswdojaaapay Ayunwi
1 ¥qlyx3



O0TTTOODOAON-TZ-dIVA-0OHN-SOUN-vYasn :x2aquny Aztunixoddp Butpung £76954008M :GI 2omdsyiacom TZ0Z ‘08 TOL 93eq MATATNA

zaly juswdopaspay Allunwwon sewo aseparsiedseiebisam ] AﬁZ—M bv

7 _,u.'pmum v‘...wmi“ =

et A e "
% . ! T it 1 edia Sl
% v,wWU g ¥ R . . \L\\ F... i R f

T apesieg

!

TRt .m X
uilD yesy srebisem v |
” i T

&
-2

%s_.b_:_oS
eaay jJuawdolarapay Ajunwwon ayebisapp
Z nqiyxg

Vo3



ue|d

AS

[euld
N R
— L0 L
TS OO
PR L1201 L L[4 412441
T mOE OIS I

SNOISSTINGNS / SNOISTAIY

06-LT “oN gar

L1 “on{ o

w1 A prD

HY Ay wueig

s g useq

Looe=.1 g

2m0zfatiio =eg

EplO|4 ‘AUNoY Yyorag wied
1oMeN

()]
v
=g
(@]
14))
~
®
@
—
4]
D
-

TELODAITYY 0N D53z

20T 318°4 S 21 "N TEST

ONINNYId NYBHN any
IHUDIALBRIV IIVISANV

STOHDIN
LAQIWHDS

O0TTTIO00040N -T2 ~-dE¥N-0HN-SOUN-Yasn :raquny Ajtunjzoddp Butpung £Z695L005M QI @oedsiyIopr

TZ0Z ‘0f TNL ‘oled MEIAHYD

SHADYNYIW LOAroudd {ssub3msa1bUL IRIRYRA 1ON) [e1218WwW0] B8]
BL02RLIE Ao 350 =§a§|/ 8/HD N
. Bui
{3AOHI Y LVT / I BUIZ ewapis Bupsrea—,
£00 :#HX3 5303sHANS 32 " 5 aup) Gujping vseg
SO0 LIBIHXA IMEAYZESIMID /¢ -
M % : g o
ViN # SNOLLTIOS2Y N - I — Co——
£2020-£10Z-AV0BA e HF«..HH._,:M w : ,“ ™~ - stanimn — =
HNOLYIMddY | | TSI Uil (108 SL) p.2Nm | weg tuyey Flmes ] ﬂkﬂ&ﬂ.—.ﬂ.—l_wﬁﬂ_.ﬂ—.__ __]_—P__l—_“—_- .unh.u&x.l_
5£100-2L0Z # TOHLNGD | | "8M 0202-€2:90 LL500-0202-HvZ 10Uy 1o Bueary oN ’ EE=TsIEE I =R=N=l=l= =|=..
899-00080 33 153rOHd “d0 6L0Z-5 170 L6PQ0-GLO0T-HVZ Guuatss anbedg “ =N HIETIE “ == ﬂ% i
dwe)g Buluoz ] dwelg Juawpusury [ | {93094 1H 0 BURSHE: :/f..l i soweg 57
0T =} BB3S g [ ]
A _ . N n-]h .nj_ 9 m i |— stes 2ujion
Auegopug sy S __ﬂhh_ﬂ_w I hﬂhﬂk. -
gHO M & |.|..|.|||| _Hu_Hl iy a3
TE T : === HIFIF.H 1 \ —
D=
Senm o2 MIRES  paspraug 0z %8 _ e L~ t &
. TR e e .
= hﬁh. 5 _.:. = _ e _ m | su _.wu._ ™ _m h:.l¢ = oz ) usdgy, nwx.t.!umh., o L
= - K = =
”u s T_u_..“.. s | o | o1 | o [reoed v |[E] o et e Q) :s.a.._h_wohmhu&\ BakS
i = .H%m.n%l =T e = .
SO peo s | ] pous L 7 g N e oon 4 ZLO0E SAOG T S e T m%mw m.”,_m_.
e i 1 23 T 7/ :
suopenbay juswdojersq s w1 wnozzpayg abens QL 12t o) v o o = Hy Bz
sup Aadoly n. jIF=H=11=I} T FrEyY
[ sy putin bier U oo S ki) o cHivD ot N e OALS TeR REGEG IopO) apig m ] =11
p— Buusaug u:wunD._;M W LY _ "
6 B i
e S8ION A3 DU sy N I _
e I e BHO N -
Hy Bupaz —— | [N = aur] fujpng aseg
T 1L |—| ]
PR —— I £
piron _ g
— = e oS I "G
- paprrasy ey, vl "ORD rwn N WOLIAMTS
) Lepnps) paynhey Smpaay d/v [+]
‘ ittt — VT T EHE] & M
1+ v 2 e e = o
e o -
By e i — ﬁﬂsu._wsaﬂm
e s s oot
dayang masy e | e ey L) bk ¥ PO 2 n:._n e
s P S Lo [ || u Buiping a5eg
S, bt o] wes | juawdopasag ﬁ
o b Yot Buig
[ naeeqre e Ayureg o 15 1650
[sbiaiyecr-< e HD M
E a9 :Buuoz
eleq m:w_ N
-~
g ey,
i1 )
St e g o oGS ¥ 5 e ap, fan
3 oayrapemoy | [V}
m 08 Burmd DALY 9§ Purtoms o panacs, o3 Butd pamnbey p———
TINON HT BAADN HRANM
HEYD JanEm | 2dAY
[ IL Buidiyg pue mc_thn__ N
depy cozmoo.__
E——

0Z0Z ‘€Z 2unf papuswy - ueld a)is [euld AJuno) yoesg wijed
1oNJepy siawieq pue wied a)eh1sap
€ Naiyxs

oy
2



0TTT0000ION-TZ-dI¥N-DHN-SDUN-¥asn : requny Ajtunjzeddp Sutpung £Z695L005M (I =oedsiioy 10

Buipping Anuucs
pue swWxsis
poo} IncqE wean

wewab2uew 135]uNjoA
pue ‘LUonRINRS

aJow pue Buuue|d
uapieb ‘spasu Jueld
‘yoninu ‘pooy
Burmoifi jhoge weat

MOJB noA ey
aonpoud swoy Buig

aonpo.d
UsSal} S1SE) pue JsaneH

Buniej ui shejd 1aljzom
jeuy sjod juepoduwn sy -

SaANoE
‘sopes “aunanioty N :M‘m“mm Buruies| uo spuep filLule) S[qEUIESNS -
Ul SIS pue 3Pl p Alea0| poojbiumelsy -
aoULBUXD oM Uz ety w.n_or_wx._o..s 3_:_.__.::._00 wie4 JROE ean
o no jo yed swoseg
sdiyseonua:dde HONaNRSUL

iuseopue om Spun, SING] Uapiet) pue
| Pl sty pjeid jooussg

_ ﬁ |

| |

: I

H ]
uoINasy|
Sing
diyseanuaiddy uspJeo) pue SJ99JUNjOA nol
ue sdinp)at
sdousHIOp pue sdipjet
,vﬂ p
- yd
/.II/:
~

ALV
ZLLIN.OILIALOD

‘0E TOrL :93ed MITIAEU

2onpoud \—
sdy) pue yonewIou; syong 5300y 159l weoyufis Aemyng
Bujamou LW eelale]
D 11 183 9IGN0g saiqelaban
LNl pue 9sodwaod pieo JIpsid pue PUE SN 05 19A0
AUnusizoo Gog ‘yses ‘1g3 1denoy sasnoesd
EEED ST T s201id jadiely BupLe aigeulBsng
5 Jauled JeH (1s8icj0iby) WEd
suEels a|qelabap Bjlj|sjes aioe €0
10 Asatiea apia aanpoud |e20| ysald Wwie Legin aloy L

|

-

\-

s 4

AlasinN pue

pueig wed wie4 ueqin
asnoyussln

- -

sajeg pue
uoi}onpo.d

ALYyH1sSANS

ueyn jeuoneziuebii weiboid pue wie
wie4 Ajunwuwion syebisopn

¥ nqiyx3



Exhibit 5
Westgate Community Farm Activities/Programs Collage

2

=
~
rd
L
I3
=
.
+

M

SN Y i_,ﬂ}_,’,r _
15 v —‘ ',- . . ‘» 5 wﬁ.. m;i‘;i%@&’némﬁnmh rj\ﬁ.‘:; "
R DI ER N 5 PRI i ’ﬁ'*:il:iiiii"" A f
| I i

IERAPRA i

]
it N
2 tfdﬂhru.‘
. 7~ . 8
- .‘- . . . oL i .
S . . - N ‘
B . ." ’ O
- Y/
. S TR N
it

wal

23 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIP-21-NOFOC0O0

1110

PREVIEW Date: Jul 20, 2021 Workspace ID: WS007569




June 28, 2021

Westgate Belvedere CRA
Mr. Elizee Michel

1280 N. Congress Avenue
Suite 215

Waest Paim Beach, FL 33409

Mr. Michel,

Woestgate Community Farm has been our partner for the last two years, reaching out to our students and
the community teaching environmental and agricultural practices. After a challenging school year
2020-2021 due to the pandemic, we are pleased to continue working together for this new school year
2021-2022 with your support through the USDA Urban Agriculture and Innovative Production grant.
Farmer Brown and his team are dedicated to serving the community. This year we are already planning
on extending our partnership by creating multiple opportunities for school field trips to the farm,
building raised beds, using transplants from the farm, and include mentorship activities for the students
in the Green Club. We also hope to continue helping teachers and students to build their expertise by
making connections with our curriculum, real life jobs and skills. We are thankful with West Gate
Community Farm for the kind donations to our community and participation in the “Planting Your Qwn”
initiative. Students grew their own plants and transplants at home during the pandemic and were able to
collect produce, learn about it, and enjoy family time in the kitchen.

We are looking forward to continuing working together with the farm, and with your support in helping
students gain and transfer the knowledge to create a positive change in their communities. We
appreciate your consideration for West Gate Farm as receivers of the grant.

Singer

)

»

Luisa F-Vargas

West Gate Elementary School
PLC Learning Facilitator

DL Coach

Green Club Co-leader
561-6847100

PREVIEW Date: Jul 30, 2021 Workspace ID: WS00756923 Funding Opportunity Number: USDA-NRCS-NHQ-UAIFP-21-NOFO0001110

\ 172



Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council
BROWNFIELDS PROGRAM
BROWNFIELDS SITE ASSESSMENT APPLICATION

On behalf of a qualifying applicant, the Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council (TCRPC) may perform, via qualified
contractor, an environmental site investigation such as a Phase | or Phase |, for a qualifying Brownfield property. The goal
of the program is fo facilitate the redevelopment of properties that are suspected fo be contaminated with petroleum or
hazardous substances.

Projects sponsored by public agencies with firm redevelopment plans and a strong commitment to facilitating the
development of the site after it is assessed, are preferred. Projects that have financing available for potential cleanup
costs and community involvement in reuse planning will be given higher priority. This program focuses on potential
brownfield redevelopment projects encompassing one or more of the following program areas:

Workforce Housing

Mixed-Use Development

Health and Welfare

Job Creation

Creation of Parks and Open Space

For each site, please provide the requested information and submit application along with letters of support to:

Stephanie Heidt, AICP
Economic Development and
Intergovernmental Programs Director
Treasure Coast Regional Planning Council
421 SW Camden Avenue
Stuart, Florida 34994
Phone: 772.221.4060
Cell: 772.475.3863

E-mail: sheidt@tcrpe.org

APPLICANT INFORMATION

1. Applicant Organization Westgate Belvedere Homes Community Redevelopment Agency
Address 1280 N. Congress Avenue, Suite 215
City/State/Zip West Palm Beach, FL 33408
Contact Person Denise Pennell, FRA-RA, Senior Planner/Project Manager
Phone/Email 561-840-8181 / dpennell@pbcgov.org

\15



2. Describe Applicants Eligibility

Municipality/lLocal Government [ Non-Profit Organization ]
Private Property ] Other (Please specify) L]
Citizen Affected by Potential Site [

SITE INFORMATION

1. Site Name/Parcel Chickamauga Redevelopment Site
Parcel Control No. 00-43-43-30-03-010-0490 {Parcel 1); 00-43-43-30-03-010-0460
(Parcel 2); and 00-43-43-30-03-010-0410 (Single Family Parcel)
Site Address 2607, 2627 & 2631 Chickamauga Avenue
City West Palm Beach, FL 33408
2. Current Site Ownership Same as applicant
(i different from applicant)
3. Site Zoning: Total Acreage of Site: {aftach site map, if available}
RH {Residential, Medium Density) 0.8 ac & 0.2 ac (vacant); 0.43 ac (single family use)

Future Land Use: CH/8 (Commercial High  Total: 1.43 ac (3 parcels)
wf underlying 8 dwelling units per acre}

4, # Buildings on Site: 1 building on the Single Family Parcel (Parcels 1 & 2 are vacant)
Approx. Sq. Footage: 2,304 sf
Condition: Usable, generally good condition, occupied

(e.g., usable, pariiatly razed, gutted by fire, etc.)
5. Amount of Delinquent Property Taxes (if any) $0--

6. Assessed Value $408,320 (total of all 3 parcels per PBC PAPA - 2021)
Note: the value of the site was estimated at $626,000 per a private property appraisal completed in 209 prior
to site purchase by the CRA.

7. Ifthe applicant owns the property, please describe whether you are responsible for any of the
environmental concerns at the site.

No, the properties were purchased by the CRA in December 2019. Environmental concerns stem from the
adjacent property to the northwest. It should be noted that the entirety of the CRA district is designated a
Brownfield Area (see Exhibits A & B). The redevelopment area consists of approximately 1,300 acres in
unincorporated Palm Beach County, bounded by Okeechobee Boulevard to the north, Belvedere Road to the
south, Florida Mango to the east, and Military Trail to the west.

8. Past Site Uses and Approximate Dates (e.g., typs of manufacturing, landfill, industrial, commercial, retail, etc.)

Subject site (see Exhibit C for location):

All three parcels once supported single family residential uses. The parcels wers purchased as an assemblage
in 2001 by Spencer Square Holdings to expand their retail plaza to the north. Between 2007 and 2008, the
building on Parcel 2 was demolished, and between 2016 and 2017, the building on Parcel 1 was demolished
following a house fire that rendered the dwelling uninhabitable. There is a residential structure on the Single

\ 14



10.

11.

12,

13.

Family Parcel, built in 1594, that is currently occupied; the unit continues to be leased by the CRA following its
purchase in 2019.

Adjacent site:

The property adjacent to the northwest of the subject site currently supports a retail gas and fuel
sales/convenience store use {Cumberland Farms); constructed in 2018/19. Historical zoning records and maps
indicate an auto salvage/repair use (Satellite Auto Glass) and a dry cleaning use {Melo Cleaners at the corner
of Okeechobee Blvd. and Seminole Blvd.) operated on the site through the 1990's and early 2000's. Between
2011 and 2013, the buildings associated with the auto salvage use were demolished and the stored vehicles
removed. In the 2010's, the dry cleaner ceased operations and the building was repurposed for general retail
(King of Gold Pawn}, until the building was demolished in 2017/18 to make way for the Cumberland Farms
development (see historical photos in Exhibit D).

Describe how the property became contaminated.

The property adjacent to the northwest of the site is likely contaminated due historic uses: auto salvage/repair
and dry cleaning. Assumption of improper storage or dispesal of contaminants/chemicals that may have
migrated through soils and groundwater to the subject site. The subject site is directly adjacent to the previous
auto repair/salvage yard use and within 225 ft. of the previous dry cleaning use (see Exhibits E & F for 2005
Google satellite images and subject site proximity)

Describe the nature and extent of confamination.

Possible petroleum-related contamination intermingled with solvents due to historic adjacent uses.

If the site is contaminated with petroleum, provide documentation of the following that:

a. the site is of "relatively low risk" compared with other "pefroleum-only" sites in the state;
The subject site is not the suspected source of the potential impacts.

b. there is "no viable responsible party" legally capable of satisfying obligations under Federal or state law to
assess, investigate, or clean up the site;
Based on a cursory agency documentation review, the suspected off-site source of contamination was not
a regulated facility.

¢. funding for the site will be used by a party that is not potentially liable for the petroleum contamination to
assess, investigate, or clean up the site; and
The subject site is not the suspected source of the potential impacts.

d. the site is not subject to a corrective action order under the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
{RCRA).
The subiject site is not the suspected source of the potential impacts.

If the property is not owned by the applicant, please describe any plans for property acquisition.
N/A

If the applicant does not own the property, does applicant have lega! permission authorizing Council to
enter the property to conduct site assessment activities?

N/A, the applicant owns the property.

Yes. If yes, please attach the executed Site Access Agreement form.
Executed Site Access Agreement is attached.

\15



14,

No. If no, please Explain. Note: Failure to obtain legal permission for site access will result in delay of the application.

Describe the anticipated flow of ownership of site/property throughout the process of assessment,
cleanup, and redevelopment and describe any problems,

The CRA will continue to control the site through assessment and potential remediation. Following the
completion of an environmental assessment, the CRA, would, if the assessment determines contamination
exists, proceed with site remediation prior to issuing a public offering via a request for proposal (RFP) for the
redevelopment of the site. The CRA will maintain open communication with the current tenants of the Single
Family Parcel during the assessment and potential cleanup process. Prior to issuing the RFP the CRA will
initiate lease termination/relocation procedures with the current tenants. When a redevelopment proposal is
selected by the CRA Board, an agreement between the CRA and the developer will allow a time certain period,
potentially up to 3 years, for the developer to obtain the necessary funding, entitlements, and permits, before
the CRA formally disposes of the property, enabling a transfer of ownership through land conveyance. The CRA
must receive PBC Board of County Commissioners (BCC} approval to dispose of any property for
redevelopment; this is a separate, but concurrent process that can take up to 3 months to complete. Timeline
for construction to begin on a redevelopment project is estimated to be FY 24/25

GENERAL

1.

Is the brownfields site eligible for State of Florida cleanup funding under the Inland Protection Trust
Fund?

N/A

If yes, what is the DEP priority score?
N/A

What is the timeline for proposed site development/redevelopment activities?

The CRA is targeting the issuance of an RFP for proposals to redevelop the site with mixed use or high density
residential in FY 21/22,

ASSESSMENT

1.

Describe prior site assessment activities, if known. Please aftach relevant assessment repori(s).

None

Describe any compliance or enforcement actions, historically or pending, at the site.

None

Describe site assessment activities being requested (Phase | or Phase il, etc) and estimated costs.
Phase 1 Environmental Assessment (ESA) $3,500

Phase Il ESA up to $30,000 (to be determined upon completion of Phase 1 ESA}

Describe the financial needs for each phase of the project (assessment, cleanup, and redevelopment), if
known.

Redevelopment costs are currently unknown,

\ o



REDEVELOPMENT

1.

Anticipated Future Use: (i.e. residential, recreational, commercial, retail, industrial, greenspace area)

The subject site is anticipated to redevelop with a mixed use or high density residential end-product. The site is
less than 2 acres in size with a future land use that only permits 8 dwelling units per acre by right; 11 units are
allowed. To achieve the higher residential densities outlined in the CRA's Redevelopment Plan, the selected
developer could utilize additional density available through the WCRA's Density Bonus Program, provided the
program criteria is met. The site is within the UH sub-area of the WCRA Zoning Overlay in the County’s ULDC
which allows for a maximum of 150 WCRAO density bonus units per acre, and a height of 10 stories. However,
there is an alternative redevelopment option that is currently fluid: the owner of the Spencer Square retail plaza
immediately adjacent to the north of the subject site is currently seeking fo sell, so there may be an opportunity
for the CRA may work with new owner of Spencer Square to assemble and redevelop a much larger project
with frontage along Okeechobee Blvd. dependent upon the development goals of the new owner.

. Describe applicant's proposed vision for reuse.

Commensurate with the goals and objectives of the Redevelopment Plan (https./fwww.westgatecra.org/plans-
and-studies/) and allowed uses per the WCRA Zoning Overlay, the CRA envisions mixed use or high density
‘Iransit-adjacent' residential development on the site given its proximity to Okeechobee Blvd.

. Provide a proposed budget for the project.

Project budget is commensurate with and specific to the type of development proposed and is unavailable at
this time.

. Describe municipal commitment such as financial incentives to encourage redevelopment {i.e., tax

incentives, tax increment financing, fast-tracking permitting etc.). Attach any supporting documents.

The WCRA is committed to facilitating the redevelopment of the site. Current PBC Comprehensive Plan and
Unified Land Development Code (ULDC} regulations allow the developer to seek additional density for the
development. The availability of a bonus residential density pool acts as an incentive for infill redevelopment
and new development within the CRA area, where approximately 70% of parcels have a CH-8 (commercial high
with an underlying residential of 8 dwalling units per acre) Future Land Use (FLU) designation which only allows
for low to medium density development; this is true for the majority of unincorporated areas in the County.
Regulations and criteria for the approval of bonus density units for a development are codified in the WCRA
Overlay; for projects with 10 units or mare, a minimum of 20% total project units must remain affordable based
on PBC average median income (AMI tiers) Mod. 1 and Low. A development is not permitted to be 100%
affordable. This requirement provides for a range of income levels within one development commensurate with
the County's inclusionary hausing policy. For a developer to access the WCRA density bonus unit pool, a
project must meet cerfain criteria and be approved by the CRA Board.

The CRA's expedited review and ongoing collaboration with County Planning, Zoning, Building and Engineering
staff has successfully assisted developers and property owners navigate their projects from the entitlement
through construction processes. In addition, the CRA has the option of selling the site at or below fair market
value if public benefit can be demonstrated by the selected developer. The CRA can also offer a site
development assistance grant to help offset a portion of the development costs if funds are available. The
developer could also request consideration of TIF rebate by the CRA if needed.

Describe proposed funding sources for any site cleanup and current/past evidence of developer
interest.

The CRA's redevelopment trust (TIF) would fund site remediation activities; leveraged with state grant funding,
if available.

Y17



6. How do proposed reuse(s) and your ongoing efforts to prevent the creation of future brownfields fit into
your community's master plan, economic development planfactivities and other relevant
plans/activities?

The anticipated redevelopment project would leverage private and public investments to ¢reate new sustainable
facilities on land currently vacant and under-utilized, located in a prime infill area adjacent to a major County
arterial roadway and thoroughfare. The project would prevent future blighted influences which exacerbate
disinvestment, perpetuate nuisance uses, and further motivate illegal dumping on vacant properties throughout
the CRA district. A new mixed use or high density residential project will be required to utilize smart growth
principles to efficiently develop the site and will be required to comply with all WCRAQ and ULDC development
regulations.

7. Describe the extent to which the grant would facilitate the creation and/or preservation of parks and open
spaces.

The grant would provide for a Phase | environmental site assessment; foliowed by site remediation should evidence
of contamination be found. Cleanup protocols would enable the CRA to convey a ‘clean’ property to the developers
selected through the RFP process to construct a project with residential units.

The CRA's Density Bonus Program reguires that 5% of the project residential square footage to be dedicated to
outdoor space for resident use. The County's Parks & Recreation Department also requires that all projects
containing residential units have a dedicated open and recreational area. Commensurate with its Redevelopment
Plan the CRA is continuing its ongoing efforts to create passive and open recreational spaces for the residents of the
Westgate area.

The CRA encourages building clustering for a more compact urban environment which supports the
preservation of existing open spaces. The Westgate area is the best place fo use these types of grants since it
will further equitable development in an underserved area. The financial incentives for the developer would
encourage new interests in the area which otherwise could not have been done alone through the public or
private sectors.

8. Describe whether the project will use existing infrastructure or require its expansion.

Infrastructure is available and will be ufilized including off site drainage via the Dennis P. Koehler Preserve, a
wet retention lake to the south of the subject site with available redevelopment credits through the SFWMD.

COMMUNITY

1. Provide a detailed description of the target community that the project will benefit. Explain how the
targeted community will benefit.

According to the 2019 U.S. Census American Community Survey (2018 ACS), the area has a poverty level of
36.5%, with 61.0% of the population earning no more than $34,999, and 45.7% of individuals earning no more
than $24,999 compared to the County at $19.1%. This is significant because, according to the Living Wage
Calculator, the individual living wage for Palm Beach County (County) is $32,490 per the 2020-2021 update. By
contrast, the County has a poverty level of 12.2%, with 35.7% of individuals earning no more than $34,999.

Further, a total of 12,549 Westgate residents live in 3,118 households, for an average of four persons per
household, far exceeding the County's average of 2.6 persons per household. The percentage of Hispanic
(57.4%) and Black {31.2%} residents exceed the County averages of 22.4% and 18.7% respectively, while
individual median income is only $20,413, well below the estimated minimum 2020-21 individual annual living
wage of $32,490 for PBC. Similarly, median household income is $34,980, almost half of the County's median
of $63,299, and even further below the estimated minimum 2020-21 household living wage of $94,057 needed
for a family of four. Not surprisingly, 45.7% of individuals earn no more than $24,899 compared to the County
at $19.1%, and 36.5% of residents fall below the 100% Poverty Level compared to the County at 12.2%, with an
additional 22.0% within 100% to 149% of the Poverty Level. Mobility options are further limited, as 5.1% of
households have zero cars and 34.6% get by with only one car, compounded by limited access to public transit.
6

\ 1R



It is anticipated that the developer will draw from the Westgate community and adjacent communities since new
residential units offered at workforce and affordable rates are simply unavailable in adjacent urban areas in this
current inflated housing market. If the project incorporates a mix of uses, commercial uses that are preferred by
the CRA such as medical office, neighborhood grocer, or community bank support the community by providing
local access.

Describe how your plans for reuse of the site will enhance your community's social, economic, and
environmental well-being.

The redevelopment of this site will create a more economically sustainable and healthier community due to a
mix of uses and incomes to balance the high ratios of existing low to very-low income households. New infil
development in this transitionat area between Okeechobee Blvd. and Westgate Avenue will draw investor and
developer interest in the area, and further activate redevelopment.

Describe efforts to involve community organizations in project development and implementation
activities.

As a part of the entitlement process, the project will be reviewed by several public agencies and forums. The
CRA Board is comprised of community residents, business or property owners who consistently elevate and
pricritize those projects that are in the best interest of the community and further the goals of the CRA's
Redevelopment Plan. Affected community stakeholders will have an opportunity to participate at key points
during the entitiement process.

Describe how affected communities will be involved in future land use and site ownership decisions.

The CRA generally involves the community in decisions about amendments to its Redevelopment Plan and
Zoning Overlay, or in the planning and development of other projects that have a widespread impact on the
area through public meetings and design charrettes. The development of the subject site is a public-private
partnership.

Describe any environmental justice concerns associated with the site.

The CRA district is a historically low-income, marginalized area. Environmental injustice has played out in the
Westgale area over time beginning with de-annexation by the Cily of West Palm Beach in the 1930's due to a
reluctance to invest in the infrastructure needed to elevate the area, through repetitive siting of environmentally
impactful uses such as contractor and auto storage or salvage yards, and auto repair uses, and pervasive and
widespread dumping on vacant or derelict lots throughout the area which continues to some extent today. CRA
staff has invested millions of dollars in sanitary sewer, drainage, and roadway improvements over the years and
has pushed for the adoption of Zoning Overlay regulations that prohibit certain uses, and fostered collaborations
with County Code Enforcement and PBSO Community Policing deputies assist in ongoing enforcement.
Investments that support and lift the community furthers equitable deveiopment.

\1\9



1951

Exhibit A - Brownfield Area Designation

RESOLUTION NO. _r-2003-2076

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS OF PALW BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA, DESIGNATING THE AREA WITHIN THE
BOUNDARIES OF THE REDEVELOPMENT AREA
OF THE WESTGATE/BELVEDERE HOMES
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY (CRA} A
BROWNFIELD AREA; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

WHEREAS, the Florida Brownfields Redevelopment Act, Sec, 378,77

though 376.85, Fia, Stat. (2002) (Act} provides for local governments to designate by
regolution areas cohsisting of one ar more brownfield sites as "brownfield areas” for the
purpese of environmental remmediation, rehabilitation and aconomic redevelopment; and,

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Palm Beach County
desires 1o designate, pursusnt fo the Ach, the redevelopment area of the
Westgate/Belvedere Homes Communily Redevelopment Agency (CRA) as delineated
in the attached map, as a brownfield area io secure the benefits aceruing under the Act;
and,

WHEREAS, per Florida Statutes 376.79(4), a CRA may be declared a
brownfield area, and,

WHEREAS, brownfield designation will enable property owners to
voluhtatily use State Brownfield Programs for environmental remediation, rehabllitation
and economic development; and,

WHEREAS, the Couniy has complied with the procedures outiined in the
WAct and has provided notice as required by Sec. 125.66(4){(b)2, Fla. Stat,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE PALM BEACH
COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, PALM BEACH COUNTY,
FLORIDA, that,
Section 1. The recltat and findings set forth in the Preamble fo
his Resolution are herehy adopted into and are made a part of this resolution,
Saction 2. Pursuant o the Act, the area depictad on Exhibit A,
eaturing the area within the boundaries of the Westgate/Belvedere Homes Community
edevsiopment Ag;éncy. attached hereto and incorporated hersin by reference, s

hereby designated as a brownfield area.

R2003 2076

\&0



1652

Section 3. This rtesolution shall become effective upon its
adoption.

Section 4. The County shall notify the Flotida Department of

Environmental Protection of the decision to designate the redevelopment area of the
CRA as a brownfleld area.

Commissioner Koans moved for the approval of

ihe Resolution. The motion was seconded by Commissioner MeGargy

and, upan being put to a vote, the vote was as follows:

KAREN T. MARCUS, Chair - AYE
TONY MASILOTTI, Vice Chair - AYE
JEFF KOONS - AYE
WARREN H. NEWELL - AYE
MARY McCARTY - AYE
BURT AARONSON . AYE
ADDIE GREEN « AR

The Chair there upon declared the Resolufion duly passed and

adopted this __16 day of ___December , 2003.
PPROVED AS TO FORM AND PALMBEACHCOUNTY,FLORIDA, BY ITS
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

DOROTHY H. WILKEN, CLERK

WY
:

A
1]
b B _‘...-O )

BY gy

. | Asst, County Atiprricy 237 Q Bepay

] =
"“\\\\\;&;\\@@

R2003 2076

D\



Westgate/Belvedere Homes
Communily Redevelopment Area

Brownfield Area

Kt v .-.
P 2 1 hl‘:. ':I o Tl Do
.a:--_ = S
20 dilel  loddeenbocEGivo™

T ey = il __,.., 4
o s 3 07 LT
.y PRt hiry 5]
N Né:r[ T i
A R et
T l".—"'l 111
pescid ey LR
: A = = B v .
AL 1 SrEe Ik d
Al 107 it
STy 2] : )
3 i 4 T "l
il T R A
E,i "| t ‘_.-:]_."‘,t. 'm_lt_,,'l
— 'ﬂ ¥
ELVEDE: .—b A ig E'}?ﬁ
—- |2
I,
Siles
0 a1o0z 04 08 Y, %
- : i

R2003 2076

82



BO0Z 103 YOIBZ:9L §b 495 &N Uo padnpoid dep 1saoN

-gu) jo spousd Juasayp Bupsaco Jojpue ‘AIRINOIE JO SISAS] JUDISHID UM '$3(20%
juBIBYIp JB PaJ08|(02 SSIN0S Jualaip woyy elep Buisn pajeass sem } “fjuo sesodind Ae|ds|p
10} papuai s1 dew s1y) Jswiepsig [uchosiold [BlusWuolAUS Jo Juswpeda eplo|]

000°05:1 :9[eag

2

(pozyesouab} sapUNoD a
(sloqe) ou) sayeisaaju] F 4
SYHSE i sayg prayumog O
seary playumorg B3

puaba

R

8LYS0E ‘908.8. :1ejusd dey

26-41 N

26-42 N

00050500558

o e —
‘W 0005 0005 0

M 8-08

N 192

N E¥-92

i

sploumoig

g 1alyx4




§ 00 Z0ES
ijos

0R02.

sjesieaddy
bRt 1007-Nvf
000572 onz-nel {4
000055 £162-930 |
o wkd T TdeassEs T T
UDNEWIOIU] $I[BS :
{0 tedgd 4N0S 1ol
Anwdvs COOD s ;e
2289 GOTEE 12 HOVIAT Wi 183
392303 buljit
§1¢ 315 3AY 3538TNOD 10 9521
£LOT-D30 #eq #ES 5
2221 dbvg BeOLs wwns :

258 KYZHLEQN $153 340D L83, uoisripgng
QITOCIGIODEEFETO) LN 18y
CALYED4HQININN LR IMUIYY
Ay YONVRIYNDIHD 2052 atuee)
|1e13q Aisadoad

VY2 §31H0H T8I0IATZE IvOLEIM
sldumQ :

y —
w. -

s
J3UT 8 15 SSPLY ISR M USEDS

oy

B LFen i E.W

SERA RL 1504 BREY 2 -
steraty Livdon) R ey uan (4
Srra B

SHIVIAHLONOT &

diysJoumQ g UoesoT SYS - O UGIUXT

\



Exhibit D - Historical Photos of Adjacent Site

|25



AisBew) jeouolsiH 00T - 3 HaX3



Vi

g

! b Tl

AR

I TE0°0 £ 199) +EPTLTZ ROMBISIO [RI0L

Buunzesl pausmd

IR

SD|IU TY0-{ / 389 PEP LTT BOURISIQ

Buyinsesp

i \
i
i
4
BT R

Aiwixoid 8¥S - 4 Haiyx3

\&7



